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ATTACHMENT I - Application Cover Sheet
’ Applicant Information - RFA # 3402

Applicant Name: PacificSource Cormmunity Solutions, Ing,

Form of Legal Entity (business corporation, ete.) ___Corporation

State of domicile: Oregon

Primary Contact Person: Rhonda Busek Title: Director of Medicaid Programs

- Address: 110 International Way

City, State, Zip: _Springfield, OR 97478

Telephone: Birect Line: 541-225-3782 Fax: 541-225-3690

E-mail Address: rbusek@pacificsource.com

Name and title of the person(s) authorized to r'epresem the Applicant in any negotiations and sign any Contract that
may result:

Name: Kenneth P._Provencher Title: President and Chisf Executive Officer

By signing this page and submlttmg an Application, the Authorized Representative certifies that the following
statements are true:

1. Applicant daes not discriminate in its employment practices with regard to race, creed, age, religious
affiliation, sex, disability, sexuval orientation or national origin, nor has Applicant or will Applicant discriminate
against a subcontractor in the awarding of a subcontract because the subcontractor is a minority, women or
emerging small business enterprise certified under ORS 200.055.

2. Information and costs included in this Application will remain valid for 180 days after the Application due date
or until a Contract is approved, whichever comes first.

3. The statements contained in this Application are true and, so far as is relevant to the Application, complete
Applicant accepts as a condition of the Contract, the obligation to comply with the applicable state and federal
requirements, policies, standards, and regulations,

4, The undersigned recognizes that this is a public document and will become open to public inspection, except as
described in Section 7.8,

5. Applicant has followed the instructions provided and has identified any deviations from specifications within
its response. Applicant confirms that any instructions or specifications that it felt were unclear have been
questioned in advance of this Application,

6. Applicant acknowledges receipt of all addenda issued under this RFA, as listed on OHA’s web portal.

7. Ifawarded a Contract, Applicant will be required to complete, and will be bound by, a Contract described in
this RFA. Applicant agrees to the Core Contract terms and conditions in Appendix G, except to the extent
Applicant has timely requested a change or clarification or filed a protest in accordance with the RFA.

8 [Fawarded a Contract, Applicant will meet the highest standards prevalent among Medicaid health plans in
Oregon.

9.  Applicant and its Afﬁiiates comphed wuh the Code of Conduct in Section 7.15 of the RFA in connectian with
the RFA. :

10, Applicant accepts the terms and conditions for OHA’s web portal, as posted on the web portal.

11, Applicant will negot??p ith regarding the statement of work for the Contract,
Signature: / / G Title: e taclesnd / CEQ Date: 4/ l[ 53(‘3’! ().
{Authorized to Bind Applicant) '
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ATTACHMENT 7 -APPLICATION CHECKLISTS

The checklist presented in this Attachment 7 is provided to assist Applicants in ensuring that Applicant submits
a complete Technical Application and Financial Application that will satisfy the pass/fail requirements for an
Application submission in accordance with RFA section 6.1.2.

1. Technical Application, Mandatory Submission Materials

& a. Application Cover Sheet (Attachment 1)
DY b. Attestations, Assurances and Representations (Attachment 6).
X < This Technical Application Checklist
X d Letters of Support from Key Community Stakeholders,
hX(| e Résumés for Key Leadership Personnel,
B f. Organizational Chart.
< g Services Area Request (Appendix B).
h. Questionnaires
@ CCO Criteria Questionnaire {Appendix A).
5| (2)  Provider Participation and Operations Questionnaire (Appendix B).
(3)  Accountability Questionnaire (Appendix C)
Xl s Services Area Table.
W ¢ Publicly Funded Health Care and Service Programs Table
4 Medicare/Medicaid Alignment Demonstration Questionnaire (Appendix D).

2, Techniecal Application, Optional Submission Materials

If Applicant elects to submit the following optional Application materials, the materials must be submitted
with the Technical Proposal:

& a, Transformation Scope Elements (Appendix H).

a b. Applicant’s Designation of Confidential Materials (Attachment 2).’

¥ For the 1% Application date, Appendix D responses are not due until May 14, 2012.

RFA 3402 : Attachment 7 —~ Technical Application Checklist Page 47 of 92




3. Financial Application, Mandatory Submission Materials
APPENDIX E
a a, Certified copy of the Applicant’s articles of incorporation,
I | b. Listing of ownership or sponsorship.
N ¢ Chart or listing presenting the identities of and interrelationships between the parent, the
Applicant.
M | d. Current financial statements,
d e. Contractual verification of all owners of entity.
O f. Guarantee documents.
o g Developmental budget.
h. Operational budget.
M| i. Monthly staffing plan.
a j» Pro Forma Projections for the First Five Years.
| k. Quarterly developmental budget.
| d L Quarterly operational expenses.
[ m. Reinsurance policy.
APPENDIX F
| a. ~ Base Cost Template
RFA 3402 Attachment 7 — Technical Application Checklist Page 48 of 92




From: Chend Huidl

To: Rhonda Busek
Subject: copy of letter that was mafed to you yesterday
Date: Friday, April 27, 2012 §;49;07 AM

Attachments; Imaae0dl ong

Here is the copy of the tette

MWiamath County Commissioners

Al Swilzot, Catrtizaiarar Dannis LINMIGUM, Gomavasioner QNoryt HURI, Gomnissloner
Poolian Ona Posilion Two PEREN Thred

April 26, 20012

Pacifie Sourge Community Heafth Plans, nc.
Bhonds Busek

18 Tatermaioned Wiy

Speippheld, Oregon R7477

{lear M=, PBusek:

TFhe Eamuth County Boand of Conpsbatonurs have approved a letter of Suppert for:
* Paoltic Souree
*  Uascade Clompeehensive Cars
- Greater Orepon Bebavioral Healh Ine,

We support theas organfzations and sheie applivations for Becoming Coordinated Care
Organizatjions in Kilamnath Coaaty,

Hnotosed with thin letter i ihis Hi0k 1o e pobt muscting s wheee this Issue was discussed and
thicn voted on during o work =caszion on April 25, 2002, (arper A ey id e o A 2 S AN Tady

Oiher public meatings ure oidine higpa 7w von viddiencoan prefibo b uathceunty ) aod were held
on April 6, 2012 and April 24, 20012, However, video titles do aot neesssarily rellect the content
witly svpard to special topics covering OO A,

We thuank thess orgunizations for theie devotion in continuing to care tae Khnmnth Cotinny.,

Sincarely,

-

-
% p%:a-l - _,."2 - f
Froennis-t.jeahii Choeryt Flukill, Al Sﬁ’i\ch’.
Chalr Vive-Chuir Commisstonar

o

IOS Matir Glraeat, Klgaiath Fallz, Oregen 27801
Elione: (541) SA3-5100 | Fax: (541) BALGION | EmBad Doccico klamath srus

_rof support that was maifed to you yesterday.




JEFFERSON COUNTY

COMMISSION ON CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

715 SW 4™ Street, Suite A * Madras, Oregon 97741~ Ph: (541)-325-5040 * Fax: {5413 47548738

April 30, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE, 3 Floor
Salem, Oregon 97301

RE: Letter of support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization for
Central Oregon :

Dear Ms. Hurst:

The Jefferson County Commission on Children and Families supports PacificSource Community
Solution’s application for a Coordinated Care Organization in Central Oregon which would include
Deschutes County, Crook County, Jefferson County, and specific zip codes in Klamath County. itis
anticipated that other organizations may be added after additional discussion including Grant
County and Harney County, and specific zip codes in Lake County and Wheeler County. These
discussions are pending as of the date of this application.

Our endorsement also comes with recognition and understanding that this development in Central
Oregon must include collaboration through the Central Oregon Health Board and with our counties
as local mental health and public health authorities, We fully expect these roles will continue
throughout the next six years of CCO operation, working in partnership with the Health Council and
PacificSource as our regional named CCO. We are confident that this continued collaborative work,
bridging the involvement of all interest groups, will yield health benefits to our region’s resident.

PacificSource Community Solutions has a strong community presence and commitment to improving
health care outcomes in the communitles it serves, PacificSource is an active community partner
with a focus on provision of care that improves health cutcomes and reduces medical costs that
align with the objectives of HB 3650 and SB 1580,

In its varied experience as a health services contractor for commercial products, Medicaid products,
and Medicare products, PacificSource is ideally sulted to be the primary agent of Health System
Transformation through integration and coordination of health care for the community including
physical health, addictions and mental health services, and oral health care with a focus on
prevention, .

The Jefferson County Commission on Children and Families expects that the development of a local
community health care system through the PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care




Organization will bring significant value and improvement to the overall population health of Central
Oregon. ,

The proposed appllcation' is aligned with the needs of our community and we expect a positive
impact on the following;

v Improvement in health outcomes leading to improved population health.
v Improvement in heaith outcomes for those members experiencing health disparities.
v Accountability for the provision of Integrated care.
v Improvement in quality of care within the community,
v" Delivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overall.

Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this application in helping Central
Oregon improve population health, Increase member satisfaction, and reduce the cost of health

care.

Sincerel

Wulty,

v M 4
Ron Mulke, {
C

Jefferson County CCF Board Chair




: TREATMENT SERVICES

541-504-8577 » Fax 541-504-2361
F.O Box 1710 # 676 Megus Way + Redrmond. OR 97756

April 30, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE, 3" Floor
Salem, Oregon 97301

RE: Letter of support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization for
Central Oregon

Dear Ms. Hurst:

BestCare Treatment Services, Inc. would like to indicate our support of PacificSource Community
Solution’s application for a Coordinated Care Organization in Central Oregon which would include
Deschutes County, Crook County, Jefferson County, and specific zip codes in Klamath County. It is
anticipated that other organizations may be added after additional discussion including Grant
County and Harney County, and specific zip codes in Lake County and Wheeler County. These
discussions are pending as of the date of this application.

PacificSource Community Solutions has a strong community presence and commitment to improving
health care outcomes in the communities it serves. PacificSource Is an active community partner
with a focus on provision of care that improves health outcomes and reduces medical costs that
align with the objectives of HB 3650 and SB 1580,

In its varied experience as a health services contractor for commercial products, Medicaid products,
and Medicare products, PacificSource Is ideally suited to be the primary agent of Health System
Transformation through integration and coordination of health care for the community including
physical health, addictions and mental health services, and oral health care with a focus on
prevention,

BestCare Treatment Services, Inc. expects that the development of a local community health care
system through the PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization will bring
significant value and improvement to the overall population health of Central Oregon.




The proposed application is aligned with the needs of our community and we expect a positive
impact on the following;

v Improvement in health outcomes leading to improved population health.
Improvement in health outcomes for those members experiencing health disparities.
Accountability for the provision of integrated care,

Improvement in quality of care within the community.
Dellvery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overall.

SN NN

Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this application in helping Central
Oregon improve population health, increase member satisfaction, and reduce the cost of health
care.

Sincerely,

S

Rick TreJéaden, LCSW
Executive Director




Central Oregon Health

Council

*  Tammy Baney,
Commnissioner,
Deschutes County

*  Jim Diegel,
Vice Chair,
President and Chief
Executive Offices,
St. Charles Health
System

' Nike Ahern,
Cormmissioner, Jefferson
County

& Ken Fahlgren,
Commissioner, Crook
County

®  Linds McCoy,
Citizen Representative

®  Chuck Frazier
Citizen Representative

& Stephen Mana, DO
Board President
Central Oregon
Independent
Ptactice Association

% Megan Haase, Medical
Director, Mosaic
Medical, Safety Net
Chinics

8 D[an Stevens, Senior
Vice President of
Government Programs,
Pacific Source Health
Plans

Coeptral Ohregon

{.ouncil

April 30, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE, 3rd Floor
Salem, Oregon 97301

RE: Ietter of support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care
Otganization for Central Oregon

Dear Ms. Hurst:,

The Central Otegon Health Council would like to indicate our support of
PacificSource Community Solution’s application for a Cootdinated Cate
Organization in Central Oregon which would include Deschutes County, Crook
County, Jefferson County, and specific zip codes in Klamath County. Itis
anticipated that other organizations may be added after additional discussion
including Grant County and Hatney County, and specific zip codes in Lake
County and Wheeler County. These discussions are pending as of the date of this
applicatiot.

Our endorsement also comes with recognition and understanding that this
development in Central Otegon must include our collaboration as the Central
Oregon Health Council and with out counties as local mental health and public
health authorities. We fully expect to continue in these roles throughout the next
six years of CCO operation, working in parmership with the Health Council and
with PacificSource as our regional named CCO. We are confident out work
together, bridging the involvement of all intetest groups, will yield excellent health
benefits to out tegion’s tesidents.

PacificSource Community Solutions has a sttong community presence and
commitment to improving health care outcomes in the communities it setves.
PacificSource is an active community partner with a focus on provision of cate
that improves health outcomes and reduces medical costs that align with the
objectives of HB 3650 and SB 1580,

In its vatied experience as a health services contractor fot commercial products,
Medicaid products, and Medicare products, PacificSoutce is ideally suited to be the
ptimary agent of Health System Transformation through integration and
coordination of health cate for the community including physical health,
addictions and mental




health setvices, and oral health care with a focus on prevention.

The Central Oregon Health Council expects that the deveiof)ment of 2 local community health care system through
the PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization will bring significant value and imptovement
to the overall population health of Central Oregon.

The proposed application is aligned with the needs of our community and we expect a positive impact on the
following;

Imptovement in health outcomes leading to imptoved population health,
Imptovement in health outcomes for those membets experiencing health disparities,
Accountability for the provision of integrated cate.

Improvement in quality of care within the community.

Delivery of cost-effective cate that will teduce health cate costs overall.

NN ANAN

Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this application in helping Central Oregon imptove
population health, increase member satisfaction, and reduce the cost of health care.

Sincerely,
The Central Oregon Health Council

}lm Dicgel, resmﬂant and Chief Executive Officer
St. ar!es calth Syste

L(ﬁk écL__

, Commissioner Jeffezson County

I f—
Ken Fahlgren, Gbmmissioner Crook County

(et fora et

Chuck Frazier, Gta'zen%vésenmtive
M\m@,cmﬁ—

Linda M57 § i/:'tizen Represéntative
:
;A -

Stejnhen’mn DO, COIPA

O it

Dan Steve s, Semo(fVP of Govemment, Pacific Sowrce
Health Plans Y




CROOK COUNTY
COMMISSION ON
CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

April 26, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE, 3rd Floor
Salem, Qregon 97301

RE: Letter of support for PacificSource Community Health Plans Coordinated Care Organization
for Central Oregon

Pear Ms. Hurst:

Crook County Commission on Children and Families would like to offer this letter of support for
the PacificSource Community Health Plan’s application to serve as a Coordinated Care
Organization in Central Oregon, including service in a region that includes Deschutes County,
Crook County, Jefferson County, and specific zip codes in Klamath County. it is anticipated that
other counties may be added after additional discussion including Grant County, Harney
County, and specific zip codes in Lake and Wheeler Counties. As Commission Director, | am
actively involved in the Central Oregon Health Board, an affiliate to the Central Oregon Health
Council and support the expectation that the Council will assure community governance and
oversight for our CCO.

This endorsement also comes with recognition and understanding that CCO development in
Central Oregon must include collaboration with county governments as local mental health and
public health authorities. Itis expected that these roles will be continued through the next six
years of CCO operation, working in partnership with the Health Council and with PacificSource
as our regional named CCO. We are confident our work together will vield excellent health
benefits to our region’s residents.

PacificSource Community Health Plans is ideally sulted to serve as the CCO and to work with
the Health Council as the primary agent of Central Oregon’s Health System Transformation
through integration and caordination of health care for the community including physical
health, addictions and mental health services, and oral health care with a focus on prevention.
They are an active community partner with a focus on provision of care that improves health
outcomes and reduces medical costs that align with the objectives of HB 3650 and $B 1580.




The proposed application is aligned with the needs of our community. We expect a positive
impact on: ,

e Improvement in health outcomes leading to improved population health.
Improvement in health outcomes for those members experiencing health disparities.
Accountability for the provision of integrated care.
improvement in quality of care within the community.

Delivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overall.

. The Crook County Commission on Children and Families expects that the development of a
local community heaith care system through the work of the Central Oregon Health Board,
Central Oregon Health Council and the PacificSource Community Health Plan Coordinated Care
Organization will bring significant value and improvement to the overall population health of
Central Oregon,

Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this application in helping Central
Oregon improve population health, increase member satisfaction, and reduce the cost of health
care,

Sincerely,

2 0N A
Al o)

Brenda Comini,
Director

committed to a healthy

and safe environment for
children and families 203 NE Court St, Prineville, OR 97754 {541) 447-3260 Fax (541} 416-0637




Crook County

300 N.E. 3rd Street » Prineville, Oregon 97754 ,
Phone (541) 447-6555 « FAX (541) 416-3891

April 30, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE, 3™ Floor
Salem, Oregon 97301

RE: Letter of support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization for
Central Oregon '

Dear Ms. Hurst:

The Crook County Court would like to Indicate our support of PacificSource Community Solution’s
application for a Coordinated Care Organization in Central Oregon which would include Deschutes
County, Crock County, Jefferson County, and specific zip codes in Klamath County. It is anticipated
that other organizations may be added after additional discussion including Grant County and
Harney County, and specific zip codes in Lake County and Wheeler County. These discussions are
pending as of the date of this application.

PacificSource Community Solutions has a strong community presence and commitment to improving
health care outcomes in the communities it serves. PacificSource is an active community pariner
with a focus on provision of care that improves health outcomes and reduces medical costs that
align with the objectives of HB 3650 and 5B 1580.

In its varied experience as a health services contractor for commercial products, Medicaid products,
and Medicare products, PacificSource is ideally suited to be the primary agent of Health System
Transformation through integration and coordination of health care for the community including
physical health, addictions and mental health services, and oral health care with a focus on

prevention.

The Crook County Court expects that the development of a local community health care system
through the PacificSource Community Solutions Coardinated Care Organlzation will bring significant
value and improvement to the overall population health of Central Oregon.

Mike McCabe, Judge * Ken Fahlgren, County Commisgioner » Seth Crawford, County Commissioner




The proposed application is aligned with the needs of our community and we expect a positive
impact on the following;

Improvement in health outcomes leading to Improved population health.
Improvement in health outcomes for those members experiencing health disparities.
Accountability for the provision of integrated care.

Improvement in quality of care within the community.

Defivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overall.

AN N Y

Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this application in helping Central
Oregon improve population health, increase member satisfaction, and reduce the cost of health

care.
Sincerely,

e h.. WLl

Mike McCabe
Crook County Judge




TOGETHER WE FING SOLUTIONS

1130 !\:}W Harriman
Suite A

Band, OR 97701
ph: 541 385~1717
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DESCHUTES COUNTY

April 30, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE, 3rd Floor
Salem, Oregon 97301

RE: Letter of support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization for
Central Oregon

Dear Ms, !-furst:

On behalf of the Deschutes County Children and Families Commission, we are writing this letter in
full support of PacificSource Community Solution’s application for a Coordinated Care Organization
in Central Oregon which would include Deschutes County, Crook County, Jefferson County, and
specific zip codes in Klamath County. [t is anticipated that other organizations will be added after
additional discussion including Grant County and Harney County, and specific zip codes in Lake
County and Wheeler County. These discussions are pending as of the date of this application,

PacificSource Community Solutions has a strong community presence and commitment to improving
health care outcomes in the communities it serves. PacificSource is an active community partner
with a focus on provision of care that improves health outcomes and reduces medical costs that
align with the objectives of HB 3650 and SB 1580,

In its varied experience as a health services contractor for commercial products, Medicaid
products, and Medicare products, the PacificSource is ideally suited to be the primary agent of
Health System Transformation through integration and coordination of health care for the
community including physical health, addictions, and mental health services, and oral health care
with a focus on prevention.

The Deschutes County Children and Families Commission expects that the development of a local
community health care system through the PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care
Organization will bring significant value and improvement to the overall population health of
Central Oregon. :

The propdsed application is alighed with the needs of our community and we expect a positive
impact on the following.

Improvement in health outcomes leading to improved population health.
Improvement in health outcomes for those experiencing health disparities.
Accountability for the provision of integrated care.

Improvement in quality of care within the community.

Delivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health costs.

Our Vision; Healthy Children, Strong Families, Suppottive Communities
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1130 NW Harriman
Suits A

Bend, OR 97701
ph: 541 385-1717
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(niLoren& FAMILIES | www.deschutes.org/ect
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Please accept this letter as formal support and recognition of the vatue of this application in
helping Central Oregon to improve health outcomes, to increase satisfaction among those receiving
care, and to reduce the overall cost of health care in our region.

Sincerely, -
/%J? %S;mcgm
William H. Davidson, CFC Chair Hitlary Saraceno, CFC Director

Our Vision: Healthy Children, Strong Families, Supportive Communities




2577 NE Courtney Drive + Bend, Oregon 87701

Public Health {541) 322-7400 + FAX (541) 322-7465
Behavioral Health (541} 322-7500 » FAX (541) 322-7565
www. deschutes.org

April 25, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE, 3™ Floor
Salem, Oregon 97301

RE:  Lletter of support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization for
Central Oregon

Dear Ms. Hurst:

Deschutes County Health Services would like to indicate our support of PacificSource Community
Solution’s application for a Coordinated Care Organization in Central Oregon which would include
Deschutes County, Crook County, Jefferson County, and specific zip codes in Klamath County. ltis
anticipated that other organizations may be added after additional discussion including Grant
County and Harney County, and specific zip codes in Lake County and Wheeler County. These
discussions are pending as of the date of this application.

PacificSource Community Solutions has a strong community presence and commitment to improving
health care outcomes in the communities it serves, PacificSource is an active community partner
with a focus on provision of care that improves health outcomes and reduces medical costs that
align with the objectives of HB 3650 and SB 1580.

In its varied experience as a health services contractor for commercial products, Medicaid products,
and Maedicare products, PacificSource is ideally suited to be the primary agent of Health System
Transformation through integration and coordination of health care for the community including
physical health, addictions and mental health services, and oral health care with a focus on
prevention.

Enhancing the lives of citizens by delivering quality services in a cost effective manner.




Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
April 25, 201?
Page 2

Deschutes County Health Services expects that the development of a local community health care
system through the Central Oregon Health Council as the community governance entity working in
partnership will the PacificSource Community Solutions as our Coordinated Care Organization will
bring significant value and improvement to the overall population health of Central Oregon.,
The proposed application is aligned with the needs of our community and we expect a positive
impact on the following;

= Improvement in health outcomes leading to improved population health.

» Improvement in health outcomes for those members experiencing heaith disparities.

= Accountability for the provision of integrated care.

= Improvement in quality of care within the community.

» Delivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overall.

Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this application in helping Central
Oregon improve population health, increase member satisfaction, and reduce the cost of health

care.

Sincerely,

Scdtt Johnson
Dire¢to

\WZELS\kathehAMY DOCUMENTS\CORRESPONDENCEN2011-2012\t05 of PacificSource for CCO App.doc




JEFFERSON COUNTY .
PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT

715 8W 4™ Sireet, Suite C @ Madras, Oregon 97741 @ Ph: (541) 4754456 € FAX: {541)475-0132

Dare: April 18,2012

To:  Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402
250 Winter Street NE, 3rd Floor
Salem, Oregon 97301

From: Tom Machala, MPH, RN - Director

RE: Letter of support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization for Central Qregon
Dear Ms, Hurst:

Please be advised the Jefferson County Public Health Department supports PacificSource Community Solution’s
application for a Coordinated Care Organization in Central Oregon which would include Deschutes County,
Crook County, Jefferson County, and specific zlp codes in Klamath County. It is anticipated that other
organizations may be added after additional discussion including Grant County and Harney County, and specific
zip codes in Lake County and Wheeler County. These discussions are pending as of the date of this application.

This support comes through our active involvement in the development of the Central Oregon Health
Board and Central Oregon Health Council and with the expectation that the Council will assure community
governance and oversight for our CCO. We believe this program will help Central Oregon improve
population health, increase member satisfaction and reduce the cost of health care.

Our endorsement also comes with recognition and understanding that this development in Central Oregon
must include our collaboration as the Jefferson County Public Health Authority. We fully expect to
continue in this role throughout the next six years of CCO operation, working in partnership with the
Health Council and with PacificSource as our regional named CCO. We are confident our work together,
bridging the involvement of all interest groups, will yield excellent health benefits to our region’s
residents.

PacificSource Community Solutions has a strong community presence and commitment to Improving health
care outcomes in the communities it serves. PacificSource is an-active community partner with a focus on
provision of care that improves health outcomes and reduces medical costs that align with the objectives of HB
3650 and SB 1580.




In its varied experience as a health services contractor for commercial products, Medicaid products, and
Medicare products, PacificSource is ideally suited to be the primary agent of Health System Transformation
through integration and coordination of health care for the community including physical heaith, addictions and
mental health services, and oral health care with a focus on prevention.

Jefferson County Public Health expects that the development of a local community health care system through
the PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization will bring stgnificant value and
improvement to the overall population health of Central Oregon.

The proposed application is aligned with the heeds of our community and we expect a positive impact on the
following;

v Improvement in health outcomes leading to improved population health,
v Improvement in health outcomes for those members experiencing health disparities.
v Accountability for the provision of integrated care.

¥ Improvement in quality of care within the community,

v" Delivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overall,

The lefferson County Pubiic Health Department expects the development of a local community health care
system through the work of the local community in conjunction with the PacificSource Community
Solutions will bring significant value and improvement to the overall population health of Central Oregon.




Aprit 30, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist

Office of Contracts and Procurement

Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402 , LET'S TALK DIVERSITY
. rd . f

250 Winter Street NE, 3" Floor C O 8 | it i on

Salem, Oregon 97301
Building Community $teength Through Diversity

RE: Letter of support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization for
Central Oregon

Dear Ms. Hurst:

The Let’s Talk Diversity Coalition of Jefferson County and the Confederated Tribes of Warm Springs
would fike to Indicate our support of PacificSource Community Solution’s application for a
Coordinated Care Organization in Central Oregon which wouid include Deschutes County, Crook
County, Jefferson County, and specific zip codes in Klamath County. Itis anticipated that other
organizations may be added after additional discussion including Grant County and Harney County,
and specific zip codes in Lake County and Wheeler County. These discussions are pending as of the
date of this application.

PacificSource Community Solutions has a strong community presence and commitment to improving
health care outcomes In the communities it serves. PacificSource is an active community partner
with a focus on provision of care that improves health outcomes and reduces medical costs that

align with the objectives of HB 3650 and SB 1580.

In its varled experience as a health services contractor for commercial products, Medicaid products,
and Medicare products, PacificSource Is ideally suited to be the primary agent of Health System
Transformation through integration and coordination of health care for the community including
physical health, addictions and mental health services, and oral health care with a focus on
prevention.

The Let’s Talk Diversity Coalition expects that the development of a local community health care
system through the PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization will bring
significant value and improvement to the overall population-health of Central Oregon,

The proposed application is aligned with the needs of our community and we expect a positive
Impact on the following;

Improvement in health outcomes leading to improved population health.
Improvement in health outcomes for those members experiencing health disparities.
Accountability for the provision of integrated care.

Improvement in guality of care within the community.

Delivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overall.

A R




Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this application in helping Central
Oregon improve population health, Increase member satisfaction, and reduce the cost of health
care,

Sincerely,

LD : o
g@' - (f\;?/t—{iiwx 5o

Sonya Littledeer-Evans
Chalr - Let's Talk Diversity Coalition
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Services

Health » Justico » Hope

365 NE Court Street
Prineville, OR 97754

Mental Health Counseling
Phone: 541/323-6330
Fax: 541/447-6694

Adult Aleohol & Drug
Services

Phone: 541/323-5330
Fax; 541/416-0001

Developmental Disabiliies
Case Management
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April 30, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE, 3" Floor
Salem, Oregon 97301

RE: Letter of support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care
Organization for Central Oregon

Dear Ms. Hurst:

Crook County Mental Health would like to indicate our support of PacificSource
Community Solution’s application for a Coordinated Care Organization in Central
Oregon which would include Deschutes County, Crook County, Jefferson County, and
specific zip codes in Klamath County. It is anticipated that other ofganizations may
be added after additional discussion including Grant County and Harney County, and
specific zip codes in Lake County and Wheeler County. These discussions are pending
as of the date of this application. This support comes with our active involvement in
the Advisory Council and expectation that the Council will assure community
governance and oversight for our CCO.

Our endorsement also comes with recognition and understanding that this
development in Central Oregon must include our collaboration as the Crook County
Mental Health agency and with our counties as local mental health and public health
authorities, We fully expect to continue In this role throughout the next six years of
CCO operation, working in partnership with the Health Council and with
PaclficSource as our regional named CCO. We,are confident our work together,
bridging the involvement of all interest groups, will yield excellent health benefits to
our region’s residents.

PacificSource Community Solutions has a strong community presence and
commitment to improving health care autcomes in the communities it serves.
PacificSource is an active community partner with a focus on provision of care that
improves health outcomes and reduces medical costs that align with the objectives
of HB 3650 and SB 1580.

"L utheran Communily Services Northwesi periners with Individuals, families and communifies for heeith, justice and hops.”




In its varied experience as a health services contractor for commercial products,
Medicaid products, and Medicare products, PacificSource is ideally suited to be the
primary agent of Health System Transformation through integration and
coordination of health care for the community including physical health, addictions
and mental health services, and oral health care with a focus on prevention,

Crook County Mental Health expects that the development of a local community
health care system through the PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care
Organization will bring significant value and improvement to the overall population
heaith of Central Oregon.

The proposed application is aligned with the needs of our community and we expect
a positive impact on the following;

¢ Improvement in health outcomes leading to improved population health.
o Improvement in health outcomes for those members experiencing health
~ disparities.

¢ Accountability for the provision of integrated care.

« Improvement in quality of care within the community.

¢ Delivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overall.

Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this application in
helping Central Oregon improve population health, increase member satisfaction,
and reduce the cost of health care,

Sincerely,

ott Willard
Area Director




M@S&iCMedlCa! www.mosaicmedical.org

Real People, Real Care.

April 30, 2012

Tammy L, Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE, 3 Floor
Salem, Oregon 97301

RE: Letter of support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization for
Central Oregon

Dear Ms. Hurst:

Mosaic Medical would like 1o indicate our support of PacificSource Community Solution’s application
for a Coordinated Care Organization in Central Oregon which would include Deschutes County,
Crook County, Jefferson County, and specific zip codes in Klamath County. It is anticipated that other
organizations may be added after additional discussion including Grant County and Harney County,
and specific zip codes in Lake County and Wheeler County. These discussions are pending as of the
date of this application.

PacificSource Community Solutions has a strong community presence and commitment to improving
health care outcomes in the communities it serves. PacificSource is an active community partner
with a focus on provision of care that improves health outcomes and reduces medical costs that
align with the objectives of HB 3650 and 5B 1580.

In its varled experience as a health services contractor for commercial products, Medicaid products,
and Medicare products, PacificSource is ideally suited to be the primary agent of Health System
Transformation through integration and coordination of health care for the community including
physical health, addictions and mental health services, and oral health care with a focus on
prevention,

Mosaic Medical expects that the development of a local community health care system through the
PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization will bring significant value and
improvement to the overall population health of Central Oregon.

The proposed application is aligned with the needs of our community and we expect a positive
impact on the following;

v Improvement in health outcomes leading to improved population health.
v Improvement in health outcomes for those members experiencing health disparities.

Prinaville Bend Madras
375 NW Beaver St Stz 101 09 NE Greenwaod Avensic. Suite JI $1U 8% Hwy 97, Suite 10}
Prinevill, Qrogun 97754 Hend. Oregon 97701 Madras, Oregon 97741
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Real People, Real Care.

v Accountability for the provision of integrated care.
¥ Improvement in quality of care within the community, ,
v' Delivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overall.

Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this épp!ication in helping Central
Oregon improve population health, increase memnber satisfaction, and reduce the cost of health

care. )
e

Megan Haase
CEQ

Prineville Bend Madras .
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2508 NE Neff Road

S Ch 1 Bend, Oregon 97701
t‘ ; ar eS 541.382.4321

HEALTH SYSTEM ) www.steharleshealibeare.org

April 30, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE

3" Floor

Salem OR 97301

RE:  Letter of support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization for
Central Oregon

Dear Ms. Hurst:

St Charles Health System would like to offer our support of PacificSource Community Solution’s
application for a Coordinated Care Organization in Central Oregon which would include Deschutes
County, Crook County, Jefferson County, and specific zip codes in Klamath County. it is anticipated
that other organizations may be added after additional discussion including Grant County and
Harney County, and specific zip codes in Lake County and Wheeler County. These discussions are
pending as of the date of this application. As part of the Central Oregon Health Council, St Charles
Health System supports this application in concert with the development of a Joint Management
Agreement between PacificSource and the Central Oregon Health Council to manage the CCO in this
region.

PacificSource Community Solutions has a strong community presence and commitment to improving
health care outcomes in the communities it serves, PacificSource is an active community partner
with a focus on provision of care that improves health outcomes and reduces medical costs that
align with the objectives of HB 3650 and SB 1580 and has been an active member of the Central
Oregon Health Council since its inception.

In its varied experience as a health services contractor for commercial products, Medicaid products,
and Medicare products PacificSource Community Solutions is ideally suited to join with the Central
Oregon Heailth Council and be part of Health System Transformation through integration and
coordination of health care for the community including physical health, addictions and mental
health services, and oral health care with a focus on prevention. St Charles Health System expects




Tammy L. Hurst
April 30, 2012
Page 2 of 2

that the development of a local community health care system through the Central Oregon Health
Councll’s Joint Management Agreement with the PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated
Care Organization will bring significant value and Improvement to the overall population health of
Central Oregon.

The proposed application Is aligned with the needs of our community and we expect a positive
impact on the following;

Improvement in health outcomes leading to improved population heaith.
Improvement in health outcomes for those members experiencing health disparities.
Accountability for the provision of integrated care.

Improvement in quality of care within the community.

Delivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overall.

AN RN

Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this application in helping Central
Oregon improve population health, increase member satisfaction, and reduce the cost of health

%

lames A. Diegel, FACHE
President and CEO

Sincerely,

3t. Charles Health System
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April 30, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE, 3td Floor
Salem, Otegon 97301

RE: Letter of support for PacificSoutce Community Solutions Coordinated
Care Organization for Central Oregon

Dear Ms. Hurst:

The Central Oregon Health Board would like to indicate out support of
PacificSource Community Solution’s application fot a Cootdinated Care
Otganization in Central Oregon which would include Deschutes County, Crook
County, Jefterson County, and specific zip codes in Klamath County. It is
anticipated that other organizations tay be added after additional discussion
including Grant County and Harney County, and specific zip codes in Lake
County and Wheeler County. These discussions ate pending as of the date of this
application.

QOur endorsement also comes with tecognition and understanding that this
development in Central Oregon must include our collaboration as the Central
Otegon Health Board and with our counties as local mental health and public
health authotities. We fully expect to continue in these roles throughout the next
six yeats of CCO operation, working in partnership with the Health Board and
with PacificSoutce as our regional natmed CCO. We are confident our work
together, bridging the involvement of all interest groups, will yield excellent health
benefits to our region’s residents.

PacificSource Community Solutions has a strong community presence and
commitment to improving health care outcomes in the communities it setves.
PacificSource is an active community partner with a focus on provision of care
that imptoves health outcomes and reduces medical costs that align with the
objectives of HB 3650 and SB 1580.

In its varied expetience as a health services coniractor for comercial products,
Medicaid products, and Medicare products, PacificSource is ideally suited to be the
primaty agent of Health System Transformation thtough integtation and
coordination of health care for the community including physical health,
addictions and mental health services, and oral health with a focus on prevention.




The Central Oregon Health Board expects that the development of a local community health cate system through the
PacificSonrce Community Solutions Coordinated Cate Organization will bring significant value and improvement to
the overall population health of Centtal Oregon.

The proposed application is aligned with the needs of our community and we expect a positive impact on the
following;

Improvement in health outcomes leading to imptoved population health,
Imptrovement in health outcomes for those membets expedencing health dispatities.
Accountability for the provision of integrated cate.

Improvement in quality of care within the community.

Delivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overall.

AN N

Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this application in helping Central Oregon improve
population health, increase member satisfaction, and reduce the cost of health care.

Sincetely,
The Centryl {xegon Health Board

/)
Ken Fahlgren, Copfmissioner Crook County

Tammy Baney, Commissiofgr Deschutes County
(
Mike Ahern, Commussioner Jefferson County

ce: . Crook County Court .
Deschutes County Board of Commissioners
" Jefferson County Board of Commussioners




CROOK COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

A Healthier Future for the People of Crook County
375 NW Beaver St,, Suite 100 Prineville, OR 97754
Telephone: (541} 447-5165  Fax (541) 447-3093

DIVISIONS: immunizations - Vital Statistics - Community Health
Nursing - Maternal-Child Health - Family Planning « WIC - HIV/STD
Communicable Disease - Public Health Preparedness - Healthy Start

~ + Health Promotion Programs - School Based Health

April 30, 2012

Tammy L. Hurst, Contract Specialist
Office of Contracts and Procurement
Sole Point of Contact, RFA 3402

250 Winter Street NE, 3rd Floor
Salem, Oregon 97301

RE:  Letter of Support for PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care
Organization for Central Oregon

Dear Ms. Hurst:

On behalf of the Crook County Health Department, | are writing this letter in full support of
PacificSource Community Solution’s application for a Coordinated Care Organization in Central
Oregon which would include Deschutes County, Crook County, Jefferson County, and specific
zip codes in Klamath County. It is anticipated that other organizations maybe added after
additional discussion including Grant County and Harney County, and specific zip codes in Lake
County and Wheeler County. These discussions are pending as of the date of this application.

This support comes with our active involvement in the Central Oregon Health Council and
Central Oregon Health Board. It is our expectation that the Health Council will assure
community governance and oversight for our CCO and that our CCO will in turn continue to
develop a strong and mutually supportive planning, program development and contractual
relationship with COHB and our participating counties.

Our endorsement also comes with recognition and understanding that this development in
Central Oregon must include our collaboration as the Crook County Board of Commissioners
and the CO Health Board and with our countles as local mental health and public health
authorlties, We fully expect to continue in these roles throughout the next six years of CCO
operation, working in partnership with the Health Council and with PacificSource as our

An Equal Opportunity Employer




regionally named CCO. We are confident our work together, bridging the involvement of all
interest groups, will yield excellent health benefits to our region’s rgsidents.

PacificSource Community Selutions has a strong community presence and commitment to
improving health care outcomes in the communities it serves. PacificSource is an active
community partner with a focus on provision of care that improves health outcomes and
reduces medical costs that afign with the objectives of HB 3650 and SB 1580.

In its varied experience as a health services contractor for commercial products, Medicaid
products, and Medicare products, PacificSource Is ideally suited to serve as the CCO and to
work with the Health Council as the primary agent of Central Oregon’s Health System
Transformation through integration and coordination of health care for the community
including physical health, addictions and mental health services, and oral health care with a
focus on prevention, '

Crook County Health Department expects that the development of a local community health
system through PacificSource Community Solutions Coordinated Care Organization will bring
significant value, strong partnerships and coordination with our strong population based public
health programs including tobacco prevention, WIC, reproductive health, immunizations, and
community health nurses serving CaCoon children, pregnant women and children.

The proposed application is aligned with our region’s needs. We expect a positive impact on the
following:

¢ Improvement in health outcomes leading to improved population health.

¢ Improvement in health outcomes for those members experiencing health disparities.
s Accountability for the provision of integrated care.

¢ [Improvement in quality of care within the community.

o Delivery of cost-effective care that will reduce health care costs overail.

Please accept this letter as formal recognition of the value of this application in helping Central
Oregon improve population health, increase member satisfaction, and reduce the cost of health

care, -
V4
‘J o P
Je = @z |

Sin7

Muriel DelaVergne-Brown, RN, MP‘H;f', Public Heaith Director
Crook County Health Department J

375N gaver 5t,, Suite 100

Prineville, Oregon 97754

541-447-5165

An Equal Opportunity Employer




KENNETH P. PROVENCHER

2471 NW Micheile Drive
Corvallis, Oregon 97330
(541) 745-2069
' kprovencher@pacificsource.com

EXPERIENCE

PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS, Eugene, OR
1995« Present

President & CEO {2001 - Present). Chicf Executive for 280,000 member regional, not-for-profit
health plan with 650 employees, revenues in excess of $1billion, and net worth of $160 million, The
compatty provides Commercial, Medicare and Medicaid coverage and administration in Oregon, Idaho,
Montana and Washington. Since 2001, the company has experienced considerable growth, change and
expansion including six acquisitions and increases of 150% in members, 250% in net worth and 350%
in revenues. During this period, the company has been an industry leader in service, innovation, public
policy and community collaboration and has launched a progressive provider partnership model,

Also serve as CEO and President of PacificSource Administrators Inc, PacificSource Community
Healih Plans, Inc., PacificSource Community Solutions, Tne, and President of the PacificSource
Charitable Foundation,

Acting President & CEO (2000 —2001). Served as acting CEOQ for six months prior to bemg narmed
CEQ in March, 2001.

Vice President of Operations (1996 - 2000). Responsible for administration, direction and
coordination of ail aspects of operations. Major duties and accomplishments included:

M Administration and direction of claims, customer service, provider network management, and
billing/membership departments.

E Coordination of all plan activities to ensure smooth and efficient operations and achievement of
financial, growth and guality objectives, PacificSource consistently outperformed all major
Oregon health plans in terms of profitability and growth. ’

B Direction of development and implementation of all new products, provider contracts, operational
enhancements and market expansion. Successfully directed expansion efforts throughout the state
of Oregon.

W Assisting Chief Executive Officer in the direction and coordination of strategic planning process
and in investigating, evaluating, negotiating and implementing new business, acquisition and
merger opportunities.

Provider Contracting Director (1995-1996). Responsibilities included:

B Provider network development, contracting and management to support both HMO and PPO
products. Negotiated discounted fee-for-service, per diem, case rates, capitation and other risk-
sharing arrangements.

E Direction of Provider Affairs Department respons:b]e for provider relations, credentlalmg,
profiling, electronic linkages, and provider database and fee schedule maintenance.

OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, Corvallis, OR
1997 — 2005

Adjunct Instructor. Teach *Reimbursement Mechanisms” and “Contracting and Negotiations”
courses in graduate and undergraduate Health Administration program.




Kenneth P, Provencher
YHA UPSTATE NEW YORK, East Syracuse, NY
1988 - 1994

Vice President (1990 - 1994) for a 15 hospital regional health care system.
Responsibilities and accomplishments included: .

B Direction of regional managed care and hospitai-physician integration initiatives. Responsible for
planning and implementation of regional strategy, development of workshops and educational
programs and providing contract negotiation support,

®  Development and implementation of a business plan to establish document imaging company
providing centralized, computer-driven imaging technology to assist hospitals in the management,
storage, and retrieval of medical and other records. Responsible for oversight and direction of ail
aspects of the company's operations consisting of 40+ employees and $1.2 million budget.

E Management and coordination of regional productivity improvement and cost reduction initiatives
including projects related to length of stay reduction, inventory management, and control of
pharmaceutical and orthopedic implant costs.

B Development of a successful grant proposal that resulted in a 3-year $750,000 award to establish a
clinical quality improvement resource center which provides CQI training, education, and support
to member hospitals.

B Coordination and direction of regional educational and information sharing programs to assist
hospitals in effectively meeting community health needs and reporting community benefits,

Director, Managed Care (1988 - 1990)
Responsible for all managed care activities for regional health care system,

UNITED HEALTH SERVICES, Binghamton, NY
1986 - 1988

Administrative Director for the UHS Network, a hospital/physician joint venture established to
develop managed care contracts, joint marketing initiatives and physician practice support services.
Responsible for planning, development and implementation, as well as day-to-day operational
management. Specific accomplishments and responsibilities included:;

B Development of business and marketing pians.

B Analysis of managed care options, development of managed care strategy and coordination of
negotiations with managed care organizations.

B Development and implementation of physician service benefits including discount purchasing
program, answering service, patient newsletter, physwian referral service and physician marketing
package.

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD OF NORTH CAROLINA, Durham NC
1985 - 1986

Director of Finance and Operations for HMO of North Carolina, a Blue Cross and Blue Shield
hospital-based HMO. As a key member of the HMO development team, was responsible for:

Preparation of budgets and financial projections.

Development of provider capitation payments and negotiation of provider agreements.
Identification of information system requirements.

Marketing of program to targeted hospitals and physicians.

Negotiation of provider agreements,

Completion of application for state certification.




Kenneth P, Provencher
KAISER PERMANENTE, Portland, OR
Summer, 1984

Summer Intern. Exposed to all aspects of HMO operations, Performed financial and market analyses
for assigned projects.

CENTRE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL, State College, PA
1980 - 1983

Psychiatric Assistant on inpatient psychiatric unit in 193-bed community hospital, Additional
responsibilities included development of procedures for collecting and summarizing patient outcome
and quality data, and preparation of quality assurance reports.

EDUCATIONAL TESTING SERVICE, Princeton, NJ
1979 - 1980

Research Assistant for longitudinal research projects. Conducted statistical analyses and set up and
managed databases.

EDUCATION

THE WHARTON SCHOOL, UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA
MBA, Health Care Management, 1985

COLLEGE OF WILLIAM AND MARY
Graduate Study, Psychology, 1977 « 1979

PROVIDENCE COLLEGE, Providence, RI
BA, Psychology, magna cum [aude, 1977

CURRENT PROFESSIONAL, CIVIC AND VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES

Board Member, United Way of Lane County - Served as President 2010

Member, United Way of Lane County 100% Access Coalition — Served as Chair 2007-2009
Board Member, The Foundation for Medical Excellence

Board Member, Oregon Medical Insurance Pool — Served as Chair 2009-2011

Co-Chair, Oregon Health Leadership Council

Board Member, Oregon Urology Foundation

Youth Baseball and Basketball Coach

Board Member, Corvallis Little League

PAST PROFESSIONAL, CIVIC AND VOLUN TEER ACTIVITIES

Chair, Oregon Health Care Safety Net Advisory Council

Board Member, Health Matters of Central Oregon

Member, Oregon Health Information and Privacy Collaboration Steering Committee
Member, Archimedes Design Team

Member, Oregon Health Policy Commission Delivery System Advisory Board
Member, Oregon Health Fund Delivery Systems Committee




Erick Doolen
4036 NW Live Oak Place « Corvallis OR 87330
(541)758-8476 « erick.doolen@mail.com

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:
PacificSource Health Plans, Springfield, OR (September 2005 to present)

Sanior Vice President of Operations and Chief Information Officer. May 2010 - presant

Responsible for information technology, claims, customer service, membership, and billing across
PacificSource’'s Commercial, Medicare, and Medicaid lines of business. Serving over 280,000 members
in Oregon, ldaho, and Montana responsibilities include managing distributed Operationsand IT
teams to deliver extraordinary service while ensuring standardized and efficient processes that meet
regulatory and compliance guidelines.

« Responsible for the integration of Operations and IT when PacificSource acquired a company in
Central Oregon with new lines of business including Medicare and Medicaid. Integration
inciuded the conversion of the Medicare business onto PacificSource systems with Operationsin
the Bend office. Additionally, IT was integrated across the company with a functional structure
to support all lines of business.

Chief Information Officer. Septamber, 2005 — Aprif 2010

Responsible for strategic technology investments and delivery of information technoiogy to the
company. Led 51T teamswith over 801T professionals for theimplementation of new capability and
the ongoing operations of the existing portfolio of IT applications and services. Asthe Security Officer
responsible for all aspects of IT security including ensuring appropriate investment in security
capability and fulfilling HIPAA security duties.

» Successfully completed conversion from legacy claims system to Facets core system for claims
processing, eligibility, billing, and customer service. In phases over 28 monthstheindividual,
small group, and large group business was moved to the new system. Implementation included
building over 300 reports and 75 datainterfaces. Project required coordination of multipie
vendors and a cross-functional team within PacificSource of over 80 people.

+ Completed significant upgrade of infrastructurein support of PacificSource expanding locations
and becoming moredistributed. Investmentsto support distributed coliaboration and increased
travel included wireless network in all facilities, VOIP phone system, teleconference/ web
conference system, and video conferencing.

~» Implemented improvementsin core data center capability including the addition of backup
generator and UPS, impiementation of VMWare and blade serversto create avirtualized server
environment, and implementation of enterprise-level SAN.

Hewlett-Packard Company, Corvallis, OR (May 1994 to August 2005)

Imaging and Printing Group Americas I T Director, Jnuary 2005 A ugust 2005

Responsible for information systems for the customer facing processesin the Americas. Worked with
partner organizations to provide end-to-end IT solutions for customer support, supply chain,
marketing, and sales. Managed over 90 peoplewith $30+M budget.

WorldwideInkjet Supplies Factory Systems Director. February 2000 — December 2004

Responsibte for factory control and information systems across 5 inkjet supplies manufacturing
factoriesin the United States, Asia, and Europe. This organization consisted of 290 engineers with an
annual budget in excess of $32M. Delivered on operational commitmentsinduding aggressive yield
improvements, productivity improvements, and other cost reductions. Started organization with
‘virtual’ community across all factories by building a governance structure and supporting strategy.
Successfully transitioned from the virtual team to a compietely integrated, global organizdion.




Manufacturing Engineering Manager: April 1996 December 1997

M anaged team of process, software and {ooling engineersresponsible for a modular manufacturing
tool set, and associated information systems used to manufacture inkjet cartridge components.
Provided ieadership in preparation for process startup of a factory in Irefand including engineering
training, manufacturing equipment purchase or transfer, and cross training of process and software
engineers. Startup was successful in all schedule, cost, and quality goals.

Manufacturing Systems Engineer May 1994 - March 1996

Responsible for control systems on custom manufacturing egquipment used to produce new mkjet
cartridge components. Worked with vendors during equipment build and checkout of control
systems. Partnered with process engineersand production fo qualify new tools, implement statistical
process control, improve cycle time, and increase automation.

GTE Government Systems, Mountain View, CA (October 1987 o May 1994)

Technical Manager October 1991 - May 1994

Led ateam of systems, software, hardware, mechanical, and RF engineersto successfully design,
build, and deploy a mobileradio research laboratory. Worked closely with the customer to determine
mission requirements and transiate into system requirements, design, and implementation.

Systems Enginear Octobar 1987 -September 1991

Worked in three positions with increasing levels of responsibility developing experimentsfor a
classified signal processing system. Led team of five systems engineersresponsible for the
requirements definition and subsequent debug, integration and formal testing of the system.

PROFESSIONAL VOLUNTEERING:

Oregon Health Leadership Council’'s Administrative Simplification Executive Committee Co-Chair
(anuary 2010 - present)

In support of the overall OHLC goal of controlling healthcare costs, the Administrative Smpilification
efforts have developed standards for electronic transactions, implemented a single sign-on solution
for providers accessing health plan portals, and identified provider portal best practices. Efforts
currently underway incude establishing a central repository for credentialing and development of
additional standards for electronic transactions.

Oregon Administrative Simplification Work Group member (March 2010— Jdine 2070)

This stakeholder work group was created by the Office of Oregon Health Policy and Research as a
result of H B 2009 to develop recommendations for standardizing administrative transactions between
health plans and healthcare providers.

Health Information Technology Oversight (HITOC) Council member (April 2012 - present)
Appointed by the Oregon Governor to serveon HITOC. This council isresponsible for setting goals
and developing astrategic health information technology plan and monitoring progress in achieving
those goals. HITOC is currently coordinating Cregon's public and private statewide efforisin
electronic health records adoption and the eventual development of a statewide system for electronic
health information exchange.

HITOC Finance Workgroup member (Fabruary 2011 — present)

Workgroup is responsible for developing and recommending finance models to HITOC for funding of
the Health Information Exchange services within Oregon,

EDUCATION: Bachelor of Sciencein Electrical Engineering and Bachelor of Sciencein Computér
Science, Washington University, St. Louis, 1987

ACTIVITIES: Golf, soccer coach (1998 —2003), Childcare Committee member (1998 — 2002),
Organizer for fund raising golf tournaments (2007-2012)




Peter F. Davidson, CPA

Business: 541 684-5212

110 International Way, Cell; 541 554-1734

Springfield, OR 97477 ‘ Email: Pdavidson@pacificsource.com
Management Experience

PacificSource Health Plans Springfield, OR

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 2008 - Present

CFO of a not-for-profit community health insurance plan that covers 265,000 commercial,
Medicare and Medicaid members. PacificSource Health Plans, and its subsidiaries, deliver
healthcare soiutions to businesses and individuals in Oregon, Idaho, Washington and Montana.
PacificSource is a 78 year-old company that values partnership, service excellence, and
community solutions for improving the healthcare delivery system. Responsibilities include
oversight of the organization’s financial, investment, provider network, actuarial, legal and HR
departments. Key duties invelve long range planning and strategic growth.

Oregon Medical Group Eugene, OR
Chief Executive Officer 1998 - 2008
CEO of a primary care based multi-specialty group that included a 105-provider medical
practice, laboratory, imaging department and investment in a local hospital system.
Responsibilities included focus on clinical and service excellence, strategic planning,
development of the management team and physician recruiting.

Joseph J. Bean Assoclates Portland, ME
Partner 1995 - 1998
Vice President and partner in a management and development firm specializing in the
operation of healthcare companies. Noteworthy activities included the development of a
Breast Health Center, consuiting on financial and strategic issues for the fargest independent
physician association’in Maine and the management of various.integrated medical groups.

Certified Public Accounting 1987 - 1994
Managed tax, consulting and compensation services for a base of clients in the field of
healthcare and technology.




Peter F. Davidson, CPA

Business: 541 684-5212
110 International Way, Cell: 541554-1734
Springfield, OR 97477 Email: Pdavidson@pacificsource.com

Professional License / Affiliations

Certified Public Accountant- CPA
Certified by the State of California Board of Accountancy August 1986,
Current license to practice held in Maine #CP 1667 and Oregon #13213

State Affiliations
Oregon Health Policy Board Subcommittee — CCO Glohal Budget Methodology, 2011
Oregon Health Authority Senate Bill 204, 2011

Current Affiliations

Direction Service, a non-profit multi-program family support agency - Board of Directors
Lane Transit District - Budget Committee Member

AICPA — Member

PacificSource Charitable Foundation - Advisor

Former Affiliations

Cascade Health Solutions, a community-based non-profit health services organization - Board of
Directors

Lane Community College Foundation - Board Member

Agate Resources (LIPA, OHP MCO} — Board Member and Treasurer

Trillium Community Health Plans, Medicare Advantage Plan — Board Member
Lane County 100% Access — Executive Committee and Board Member
American Diabetes Association Walk — Chair, Eugene Region 1999 and 2000
Maine State Music Theatre —Board Member

Brighton Medical Center Foundation Board of Trustees — Board Member
Maine Employee Benefits Council — Board member

Education

Bowdoin College Brunswick, ME
B.A. Biology 1981; Honors: Cum Laude, James Bowdoin Scholar.

Personal Information
Age 52. Married with 2 children.
Gardening, running and cooking




Sujata S. Sanghvi, FSA, MAAA

110 International Way, Springfield, Oregon 97477 ssanghvi@pacificsource.com

Oregon Health Care Experience

September 2002 to Present
PacificSource Health Plans, Springfield, OR

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. June 2004 — Present Current
responsibilities include all Sales, Marketing, Operations, and Infermation Technology (IT)
functions including all commercial and government lines of business. Prior to taking on
responsibility for Sales, Marketing, and IT functions in 2010, responsibilities also included
provider contracting and network administration and actuarial, underwriting, and analytics.

s Active participant in Central Oregon Opportunity Conference and Lane County
Opportunity Conference including supervision and review of analytic support related to
both Opportunity Conferences and presentation of data at the Lane County Opportunity
Conference. '

s  Member of Oregon Health Policy Board’s Health Incentives and Outcomes Committee.

s Active participant in State Exchange Carrier workgroups for SHOP and Individual
Exchanges.

o  Member of workgroup on Value Based Benefits for the Oregon Health Leadership
Council.

Vice President, Actuarial Services. September 2002 to May 2004, Responsiblé for rating,
underwriting, and reserving. Products include individual and group medical plans and group
dental.

January 2008 to Present
United Way of Lane County, Springfield, OR

Board Member and Chair of Research and Evaluation Committee, The Research and Evaluation
Committee is responsible for periodic assessment of community needs through survey and use
of public data. Through the 100% Access Healthcare Coalition, | was also active in bringing
together community emergency room data to provide insight regarding use of emergency room
by uninsured, Medicaid, and commercial insurance status.

Other Professional Experience

August 1999 to June 2002
Harvard Pilgrim Health Care, Wellesiey, MA

Acting Chief Financial Officer and Chief Actuary. June 1, 2001- January 2, 2002. Managed
Accounting, Financial Planning and Analysis, and Treasury Functions, along with Chief Actuary
functions. Oversaw completion of development and implementation of new Oracle-based
Financial Management System, including consolidation to a single general ledger, as well as
accounts payable, purchasing, budgeting, and HR/payroll functionality. Managed Accounting,
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Financial Planning and Analysis, and Treasury Functions, along with Chief Actuary functions.
Total staff under management approximately 120. Actively participated in investor meetmgs
regarding sale and leaseback of major real estate holdings.

Senlor Vice President & Chief Actuary. Responsible for Actuarial Services, Underwriting, and
Reporting & Analysis functions, with a staff of forty. Hired as part of turnaround management
team as company’s first actuary. Plan results improved from $227 million loss in 1999, to eight
consecutive profitable quarters as of June, 2002, Promoted from Vice President to Senior Vice
President in October 2000 in recognition of key strategic role in planning both product and
network strategies.

* Board Member of Neighborhood Health Plan, an HMO with primarily Medicaid

membership, owned by HPHC, until May 2002, when the plans de-affiliated.

June 1997 to july 1999
Prudential Health Care, Roseland, NJ

Vice President and Pricing Actuary. Responsible for commercial pricing for health insurance
products across thirteen states. Challenges included re-assessing central control of pricing and
underwriting in a decentralized, matrix environment. Designed, developed, and implemented
single rate calculation system for proposal and mid-market renewal business for all medical
products. System integrated claims and loss ratio experience for renewal business and allowed
for data collection and reporting on both prospect and renewal quotes and a unified rating
engine for 35 networks across thirteen states. Oversaw development of pricing models and
trend assumptions for medical products including HMQ, Point-of Service, PPO and indemnity
products. Developed stop loss rating and pooling factors. Reviewed administrative pricing
guides for administrative services only products. Integrated reserving process and assumptions
into experience rating methodologies.

April 1995 — May 1997
Coopers & Lybrand, LLP, Boston, MA

Senior Consultant. Managed care consultant with engagements ranging from employee benefits
consulting, provider contracting, and strategic planning. Representative projects include in-
depth risk adjustment analysis of multiple plan experience for large public employer with 100,
000 members and analysis of existing and proposed managed care contracts for major
physician-hospital organization. Proposed changes to terms create potential savings of $2
million.

October 1988 to March 1995
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Massachusetts, Boston, MA

Started as entry level actuarial analyst progressing to Director of Actuarial Services, Managed
Care Programs in less than five years, while attaining ASA and MAAA. In final position,
managed staff of 12 people to develop management reporting, pricing, rate filings, reserving,
and financial planning for all managed care products, including HMO Biue, Bay State, and Blue
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Choice. Experience included pricing for all group products, including HMO, PPO, indemnity, and

dental plans as well as Medicaid plans.

Education and Professional Desighations

Harvard College
Cambridge, MA Bachelor of Arts in Mathematics and Religion, 1988

Actuarial Designations
¢ Fellow in the Society of Actuaries, 1997
*  Member of the American Academy of Actuaries, 1995
Other
s Certified in Basic Mediation, Southern Oregon University, June 2003
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Thomas N. Ewing, M.D.
2795 Emerald Street
Eugene, Oregon 97403
{541) 683-5897
tewing@peacehealth.org

CURRICULUM VITAE

EDUCATION

Intermountain Health Care, Advanced Training Program in Health Care Delivery Improvement, 1998
The American College of Physician Executives, Physician in Management Series | & I, 1998
Medical University of South Carolina, Charleston South Carglina, Family Medicine Residency, 1986
Washington University School of Medicine, St. Louis Missouri, M.D., 1983

llincis Wesleyan University, Summa cum laude, National Merit Scholarship Finalist, B.A., 1978

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

EVP and Chief Medical Officer, PacificSource Health Plans, Springfield, Oregon, 2012-Present
Chief Medical Officer, PeaceHealth Medical Group, Eugene, Oregeon, 2007-2012

Medical Director, 4J Weliness Clinic, Eugene, Oregon, 1995-present

Practicing Family Physician, PeaceHealth Medical Group, Eugens, Oregon, 1995-present
Medical Director, PeaceHealth Medical Group, Eugene, Oregon, 2002-2007

Medical Director, PeaceHealth Internet Services, Eugene,‘ Oregon, 1999-2003

Acting Medical Director, Peace Health Medical Group, Eugene, Cregon, 2001-2002

Medical Director, Quality and Informatics, Peace Health Medical Group, Eugene, Oregon, 2000-2001




Director of Informatics, PeaceHealth Medical Group, Eugene, Oregon, 1998-2000
Practicing Family,Physician and Partner, Eugene Clinic, 1989-1995
Clinical Assistant Professor, Medical University of South Careciina, Charleston, South Carolina, 1988-1289

Practicing Famlily Physician, Fetter Family Health Center, Charleston, South Carolina, 1986-1988

Emergency Medicine, Aftending Physician, Charieston Memorial Hospital, Charleston, South Carolina,
1986-1987

Emergency Medicine, Bamberg Memorial Hospital, Bamberg, South Carolina, 1984-1985

LEADERSHIP & GOVERNANCE POSITIONS

Board Member, Oregon Health Care Quality Corporation, Eugene, Oregon, 2009-present
Member, Quality Council, PeaceHealth Medical Group, Eugene, Oregon, 1985-present
Clinical Faculty, Oregon Health Sciences University, Portland, Oregon, 1993-present
Board Member, Oregon Imaging Center, Eugene, Oregon, 2007-2009

Chairman, Professional Liabllity Committee, Eugene, Oregon, 2002-2008

Chairman, Quality Counbil, PeaceHealth Medical Group, Eugene, Oregon, 1899-2004
Member, Operations Council, PeaceHealth Oregon Region, Eugene, Oregon, 1985-1899
Board Member, Eugene Clinic Board of Directors, Eugene, Oregon, 1994-1995

Board Member, Board of Directors, HiV Alliance, Eugene, Oregon, 1990-1994

Program Director, Perinatal, Fetter Family Health Center, Charleston, South Carolina, 1986-1988

CERTIFICATIONS & LICENSURE

Board Certified, American Board of Family Practice, 1986-present

Oregon License, MD 15926, 1989-present




GRANT SUPPORT

Executive Sponsor, PeaceHealth Medical Group High Value Medical Home Innovation, Eugene, Oregon,
2010-present

Executive Sponsor, PacificSource, Enhancing Wellness Project, Eugene, Oregon, 2010-present

Executive Sponsorship, Regence Blue Cross Blue Shield, Planned Care Medical Home Pilot, Peace
Health Medical Group, Eugene, Oregon, 2008-2010

"Prevention of Low Birth Weight andPreterm Labor for Women at Risk", Co-awthored with Sally
J. Frenkel RN ACCE and Janna Ellings CNM. March of Dimes granted 10/87.

PUBLICATIONS
"Temperature as a controller of Microvascular Activity in Rat skeletal muscle activity". BIOS 1, 4; 12/79
liMy Bookmarks", eMD Information Technology for Physicians, McGraw-Hili, May 2000

"Development and Implementation of an Information Management and Information Technology Strategy
for Improving Healthcare Services: A Case Study", Journal of Health Information Management, vol. 15,
ne. 3, fall 2001

"The Risks and Rewards", Health Data Management, vol.i, no. 2, February 2003
MEMBERSHIPS

Oregon Academy of Family Physicians
American Acaden;ry of Family Physicians
Diplomat, American Board of Family Physicians
American Medical Association

Lane County Medical Society
PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

Provider communication and education on Community Health Plan strategy

Developed and lead a county wide consortium of Primary Care Leaders focused on evolving new care
models in close collaboration

involved with PacificSource Health Plans and PacificSource Community Health Plans across all product
lines

Presentations and lectures available upon request




DAN A. STEVENS
2965 NE CONNERS AVENUE
BeND, Or 97701

EDUCATION
s Master of Business Administration Portland State University Pottland, OR 2000
*  DMaster of Public Health Otregon Health and Science University Portland, OR 1997
s Bachelor of Arts Bowdoin College Brunswick, ME 1991

PROFESSIONAL & COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS

¢ Central Oregon Health Council Member (2011-present)

»  Healthmatters of Central Oregon Board Member (2010-present)

¢  United Way of Deschutes County Board Member and Managed Programs Committee Member
(201 1-present)

o Central Oregon Center on Agi Seniot Center Volunteer/Meals on Wheels (2011-present
e gng , p

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

PacificSource Health Plans 2010 ~ present
Senior Vice President, Government Programs

Chief Operating Officet, PacificSource Community Health Plans

PacificSonrce Health Plans is a nol-for-profit comninnity health plan, serving nearly 300,000 members in the Pacific Northwest throngh Commiercial,
Medicare, and Medicaid programs.

¢ Administrative leader for PacificSource’s federal and state programs serving 17,000 Medicare and 40,000 Medicaid beneficiaties
e Responsible for development of benefit designs and provider/member engagement strategies to enable accountable care models
s Appointed to the Governor’s work group to help formulate eriteria for Coordinated Care Organizations (Fall/2011)

Regional Director, Provider Netwotrk Development, Providence Health Plans 2007 - 2010

Administrator, Providence Preferred Oregon

Provider network executive repotting to the Chief Executive, with accountability for all provider services in Commercial and

Govemnment Programs products. Major responsibilities included leading and executing the provider contracting strategy, risk model

development, and payment innovation programs aimed at promoting new care models. P&L responsibility for Providence

Preferred, Oregon’s largest PPO network serving over 250,000 énrollees.

»  Oversee provider contracting and provider engagement strategies for network of over 16,000 providers. _

¢ Led the planning and deployment of tools to achieve greater adoption of electronic transactions between health plan and its
_ provider partners, resulting in $1.1 million savings in the first year

* Appointed to State Administrative Simplification task force, to develop strategies to enable transactional efficiencies between

providers and payers.

Assistant Administratot, Providence Portland Medical Center, Portland, OR 2002 - 2006
480 bed tertiary iedical center with an active medical staff of > 1,500 physicians; $400 million in rewnne

Served as key member of the senior executive team, reporting to the CEO. With continued responsibility for service line
administration from previous role, added P&L accountability for 3 operating divisions comprising 725 FTHs. Additional duties
included strategic and capital planning, multiple site medical group administration, clinical integration across a three-hospital delivery
systern, facility planning, and customer satisfaction initiatives.

¢ Guided hospital-based employed physician division through petiod of rapid growth from 7 to 50 employees in three years




o Developed and deployed focused initiatives to improve customer satisfaction, resulting in scores exceeding the 90% percentile
nationally

»  Led cross functional teams to enhance capital planning decision making; guided negotiations and due diligence in annual capital
budgeting process

Administrator, Medicine Setvice Lines, Providence Portland Service Area 1997-2002
The Portland Service Area of Providence is the metropelitan area’s market share kading healthoars delivery systers with 16,000 employees, 1,100 acute
care beds, 3,560 active medical staff, and >63,000 annnal acute admissions.

Responsible for business development, capital planning, operations redesign, physician recruitment, and care model enhancement
for clinical service lines representing annual tevenues of $225 million.

¢  Collaborated with physician leadess to improve clinical performance reporting systems and conduct comparative effectiveness
studies :

¢ Asa Six Sigma trained Change Facilitator, engaged clinical and operational leadesship teams to drive productivity enhancements
and reduce clinical defects

Senior Research Analyst, Providence Portland Setvice Atea 1995-1997

+  Authored grant applications for externally funded research; conducted population-based outcomes research studies and
presented findings to regional and national audiences

¢ Conducted the state’s first comprehensive stady evaluating the impact of Oregon IHealth Plan’s expansion on the health
outcomes of previously uninsured Oregonians
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Service Area
Description
County

Crook

Deschutes

Jefferson

Klamath {(Members
in these four zip
codes access care in
Deschutes County)

Pending Countijes;

Grant

Harney

Lake {(Membersin
Lake County seek
care in Deschutes

County)

Wheeler

Zip Code

. 97751, 97752, 97753, 97754,

97760

97701, 97702, 97707, 57708,
97709, 7712, 87739, 97758,
97759, 97760

97730, 97734, 97741, 97760,
87761, 97711

97731, 97733, 97737, 97739

97817, 97820, 97825, 97845,
97848, 97856, 97864, 97865,
97869, 97873, 97877

97710, 97720, 97721, 97722,

97732, 87736, 97738, 97758,
97904, 97911

97638, 97640, 97641, 97735,
97739

97750, 97825, 97830, 97874

Maximum Number of Members-
Capacity Level

3800

28000

5500

250

1100

1250

1300

250




APPENDIX A - CCO Criteria Questionnaire

A.1: Background Information about the ‘Applicant:

a.

PacificSource Community Solutions, Inc. (PSCS} is a corporation domiciled in the State
of Oregon. o

PSCS Applicants and affiliates include the following: Central Oregon Health Council,
Deschutes County, Jefferson County, Crook County, Klamath County, St. Charles Health

System, Blue Mountain Hospital, Central Oregon Independent Practice Association, and

Mosaic Medical, It is anticipated that other organizations will be added after additional
discussion including Wheeler County, Lake County, Grant County, and Harney County.
These discussions are pending as of the date of this application.

PSCS’s effective date for serving Medicaid populations would be August 1, 2012.

PSCS is not invoking alternative dispute resolution with respect to any provider at the
time of this application.

At this time, PSCS is not requesting any changes or negotiating any terms or conditions
in the Core Contract. PSCS recognizes that there are parts of the contract mandated by
Medicaid or Medicare. As the PSCS CCO evolves, PSCS respectfully requests the
opportunity to revisit the contract if necessary to negotiate any ferms or conditions
outside of those portions mandated by Medicaid or Medicare. F is during this evolution
that the applicability of requirements such as the ISSRs within the new delivery system
can be evaluated and discussed in terms of future applicability.

The proposed service area by zip code 97751, 97752, 97753, 97754, 97760, 97701,
97702, 97707, 97708, 97709, 97712, 97739, 97756, 97759, 97760, 97711, 97730, 97734,
97741, 97760, 97761, 97731, 97733, 97737, and 97739 (Klamath). Pending zip codes
for Grant County, Harney County, Wheeler County, and Lake County include; 97750,
97817, 97820, 97825, 97845, 97848, 97856, 97864, 97865, 97869, 97873, 97877, 97710,
97720, 97721, 97722, 97732, 97736, 97738, 97758, 97904, 97911, 97825, 97830, 97874,
97638, 97640, 97641, 97735, and 97739 (Lake),

The primary address for the proposed service area for Pacific Source Community
Solutions is 2965 NE Conners, Bend OR.

The service area will include Deschutes County, Crook County, Jefferson County, and
specific zips in Klamath County. Discussions are currently occurring regarding inclusion
of Wheeler County, Harney County, Grant County, and Lake County (specific zips).
Once decisions are made, it is PSCS’s goal to move forth accordingly. PSCS has
contracts with counties and county health departments to provide covered services for
Medicaid members. As the CCO develops, PSCS will expand its agreements to
coordinate the public health care services as listed in ORS 414,153 with county health
departments, other publicly supported programs, and other providers contracted with
PSCS. '

PSCS has a contract with OHA as a Fully Capitated Health Plan and a Mental Health
Organization, PSCS had these contracts as of Octeber 1, 2011.
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PSCS is the identical organization with the current MCO contract and has not undergone
any legal status change since October 1, 2011,

PSCS currently includes a Fully Capitated Health Plan (FCHP) and a Mental Health
Organization (MHO). : _

PSCS is completing this application for the counties listed above, The counties listed
above are currently included in the FCHP service area that is the subject of the current
PSCS FCHP contract with OHA. The counties listed on this application are not
inclusive of all the counties covered by PSCS currently. Crook County, Deschutes
County, Jefferson County, and the specific zips listed for Klamath County are currently
included in the MHO Service area that is the subject of the current PSCS MHO contract
with OHA. This application would expand the service area to include Wheeler County,
Harney County, Grant County, and specific zips in Lake County.,

PSCS is a wholly owned subsidiary of PacificSource Community Health Plans, Inc.
(PCHP), PCHP is a wholly owned subsidiary of PacificSource Health Plans.
PacificSource Health Plans either directly or through its subsidiaries participates in
Healthy Kids Connect and Public Employees Benefit Board. PSCS participates in the
Adult Mental Health Initiative as included in its MHO Contract. (Please see attached
Attachment A.1.m ~ PacificSource Health Plans Corporate Chant).
As indicated on the organization chart referenced above, PacificSource Community
Health Plans (PCHP), the parent company of PSCS, currently has a coniract with
Medicare as a Medicare Advantage Plan. The service area for PCHP MA-PD Plan is
Crook County, Deschutes County, Grant County, Hood River County, Jefferson County,
Klamath County*, Lake County*, Sherman County, Wasco County, Wheeler County,
and Lane County. Klamath County and Lake County are partial counties as indicated by
g
PSCS does not hold a current certificate of insurance from the State of Oregon
Department of Consumer and Business Services, Insurance Division.

(1) PSCS has developed an OHP capitation methodology as a part of its contracting
model with providers for its OHP population. This OHP capitation methodology
removes volume-of-service based on financial incentives and replaces it with incentives
that reward primary care (including those that have successfully applied for Patient
Centered Primary Care Home (PCPCH) recognition status) and for providing “the right
care at the right time at the right place”. This new agreement further provides shared
savings incentives for PCPCH primary care providers as well as specialty providers for
appropriate management of care as measured by performance in a specialty care fund, a
hospital fund, and a prescription drug fund. In addition, PSCS has existing payment
methodologies including these Medical Home Incentive Payments which align quality
and best practice metrics that are designed to promote high quality care alongside cost
efficient care, PSCS has partnered with Central Oregon IPA (COIPA) who is investing
in new informational capabilities which are anticipated fo lead to community-wide
evidence-based best practices, and will provide a data-based solution to variations in care
in the PSCS Medicaid population.




(2) PSCS will demonstrate the experience and capacity for the coordination of the
delivery of physical health care, mental health and chemical dependency services, oral
health care and covered DHS Medicaid-funded LTC services. This experience will be
further demonstrated in other sections in the application.

(3) PSCS will engage community members and health care providers in improving the
health of the community and addressing regional, cultural, socioeconomic and racial
disparities in health care that exist among the entity’s enrollces and in the entity’s
community. This engagement is described in various sections following this section.

g. Please see resumes for the following individuals listed below attached.,

+ Chief Executive Officer ~ Kenneth Provencher
+ Chief Finaneial Officer ~ Peter Davidson

¢ Chief Medical Officer ~ Tom Ewing, MD
*Chief Administrative Officer ~ Sujata Sanghvi
Chief Information Officer ~ Erick Doolen

* Chief Operations Officer ~ Dan Stevens

r. Please see organizational chart which shows the relationships of the various departments.
(Please see attached, PacificSource Community Solutions Organizational Chart).
s. PSCS is deferring submission of the following documents until PSCS’s readiness review
under Section 6.7.1.
¢ Joint Management Agreement.
¢ Regional Health Assessment ~ “2012-2015 Central Oregon Health
Improvement Plan” full report.
» Plain langunage narrative of members’ rights and responsibilities.
s Hospital agreements.

A.IL Community Engagement in Development of Application

The PSCS CCO application effort is supported by the community it represents as is evidenced by the
governance description provided in Section 1. Multiple community partners have been involved with
PSCS staff to develop the CCO application, participate on the CCO workgroup, and have authored
sections of the application. In addition, the Central Oregon Health Council (COHC) provided
specific input in relation to “Governance” for the CCO application process with PSCS. Deschutes
County, Crook County, and Jefferson County Public Health completed the Community Health
Assessment and Health Improvement Plan for the region with input from numerous stakeholders.

Relevant History: PSCS and other community partners convened a group of thought leaders to begin
discussions in 2008 to discuss health reform beginning with the integration of public health,
behavioral health and physical health. These discussions and partnerships led fo the development of
a regional health transition board with the initial charge of integrating the physical health and
behavioral health needs of Central Oregon residents. As a result of this work, PSCS became both the
FCHP and MHO for Deschutes County, Crook County, Jefferson County and 4 zip codes in Klamath




County in January 2011, This project included the placement of behavioral health staff in primary
care provider offices such as Mosaic Medical.

t

The Central Oregon leadership group led to the creation of the Central Oregon Health Council
(COHC). In July 2011, the Governor signed legislation that officially recognized the Central Oregon
Health Council through SB 204. The COHC responsibility included development and -
implementation of a regional health improvement plan due to the State of Oregon in March of 2012.
The COHC has lead various initiatives and taken different forms during the last two years. Over
these last two years, the COHC has initiated projects including:

o Formation of the Central Oregon Health Board, an Inter-Governmental Agency that
consolidates administrative services provided by Deschutes, Jefferson and Crook
Counties.

¢ Development of an Emergency Department Diversion program.,

s Integration of MHO (behavioral health) and FCHP (physical health) services.

¢ Development of the Program for Evalnation of Development and Learning clinic at
St. Charles Medical Center.,

o Co-location of Behavioral Health Consultants in Primary Care Settings.

s Development of a Regional Health Improvement Project.

¢ Partner in the passage of SB1506 which improves data transparency for mental health
medications prescribed to Medicaid members.

In addition, PSCS has also taken the role of a neutral convener in Central Oregon, bringing providers
and systems to a common table to focus on making Central Oregon one of the healthiest regions in
the country. Through a series of meetings called Opportunity Conferences, leaders from the
following organizations were brought together:

& S$t. Charles Health System,

s Bend Memorial Clinic,

» High Lakes Health Care, _

¢ Central Oregon Independent Practice Association,

s Mosaic Medical,

s Public Health Agencies in all three counties including County Public Health
Directors, .

s Mental Health Agencies in all three counties including County Mental Health
Directors, and )

e Chemical Dependency organizations,

The Opportunity Conferences resulted in a shared community focus on four strategic areas that will
improve the health of the PSCS community.

Complex Care Strategy.

Improving Primary Care Access.

Community Health Information Exchange platform.
Enhancing Preventive Services.

YN




It is these initiatives and the collaborative work done by Central Oregon Health Council over the last
two years that has resulted in a common vision for the community, This shared vision and invited
participation has greatly informed the development of the Central Oregon CCO application. In the
development of the CCO delivery system model and the completion of the CCO application, PSCS
has relied on the same partners involved in developing the shared vision for Central Oregon, both in
a consultative fashion and in drafting certain elements of the application. PSCS is currently working
to engage the leadership in Wheeler, Grant, Lake and Harney Counties which have expressed interest
in becoming a part of the Central Oregon CCO.

Section 1 — Governance and Organizational Relationships

A.1.1. Governance
Description of CCO Governance

The Central Oregon CCO will utilize Central Oregon Health Council (COHC) as its governance
structure. COHC has a three year history of bringing public and private healthecare stakeholders
together to develop and implement collaborative community health initiatives in Central Oregon.
COHC’s role was formalized in 2011 with the passage of SB 204, which obligates COHC to oversee
a Regional Health Assessment and implement a robust Health Improvement Plan for the region.

Membership in the COHC will be evolving over the next 2 months, to fulfill the govérnance role
specified in ORS 414.625 and SB 1580. Current COHC membership consists of:

- County Commissioner from Jefferson County

- County Commissioner from Crook County

- County Commissioner from Deschutes County

- President of Central Oregon IPA (COIPA)

- CEO of St Charles Health System

- COO of PacificSource Community Solutions (PSCS)
- Consumer representative from Jefferson County

- Consumer tepresentative from Deschutes County

Additional membership being considered includes, minimally, representation from behavioral health,
oral health, specialty care and a regional Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC).

Although PacificSource Health Plan’s Board of Directors cannot delegate full fiscal authority to a
community governing board, COHC governance functions of the CCO and the relationship between
the two organizations will be robust. COHC is currently forming as a legal entity for the purpose of
providing full community accountability and oversight to both the CCO and to regional populatibn
health initiatives including initiatives that address the needs of members with severe and persistent
mental illness and members receiving DHS Medicaid-funded service and supports. Prior to the CCO
Readiness Review, COHC and PSCS will enter into a Joint Management Agreement (JIMA) to
delineate CCO governance and operations roles. It is the intention of both COHC and PSCS that
PSCS’s CCO contract with OHA be contingent on the successful execution and ongoing maintenance




of the IMA between PSCS and COHC. It is anticipated that the JIMA will be available at the
Readiness Review. (Please find attached, Attachment 1.1.1. Governance Visio).

Under the Joint Management Agreement with PSCS, Gevernance functions to be fulfilled by
COHC include:

-~ Oversight of CCO strategic plan and annual work plan.

- Establishment CCO performance metrics.

- Creation of principles and framework for annual CCO budget, principles around global
budget management, and shared savings/community reinvestment principles.

- Endorsement and enforcement of the CCO quality plan, and community standards of care for
CCQ enrollees in concert with the CCO Clinical Advisory Couneil.

- Accountability for Community Needs Assessment, Community Health Improvement Plan,
and plans to address significant health disparities in the region including the needs of
members with severe and persistent mental illness and members receiving DHS Medicaid-
funded 1.TC services in concert with the CCO Community Advisory Council.

- Accountability for healthcare transformation including care model innovation, and strategies
to enable meaningful integration of behavioral health, physical health, oral health, and the
long term care delivery system.

- Evaluation of PSCS in its role of CCO legal entity.

- Resolving disputes among CCO contractors, providers, and other stakeholder organizations.

- Assurance of transparency and accountability to the local community and to CCO members.

Under the Joint Management Agreement with COHC, CCO legal entity functions to be
fulfilled by PacificSource Community Solutions include:

- Fulfill CCO fiscal entity and legal entity functions including maintenance of required reserve
levels, appropriate licensure, and financial risk bearing:

- Be lead CCO operating entity. Includes provision of managed care and Third Party
Administrator functions including provider network maintenance and contracting, eligibility,
claims, customer service, member communications, compliance, member appeals, care
coordination and utilization management,

- Ensuring CCO annual work plan and priorities are carried out effectively on behalf of
members in concert with COHC, appropriate Advisory Councils, and providers.

- Provision of robust analytics and supporting data to develop global budget, alternative
payment methodologies, and performance metrics.

- Develop and maintain contracts with any downstream entities deemed necessary for the CCO
to efficiently fulfill the above obligations.

Community Advisery Council

PacificSource is working with COHC and its community partnersAto develop a Community Advisory
Council (CAC) to meet the requirements of ORS 414.625. The CAC will be broad based, and its
Chair will be a voting member of the COHC governing body. There will be consistent
communication between the COHC governing body and the CAC to ensure transparency and




accountability for the governing body’s consideration of recommendations from the CAC. The
Community Advisory Council will be seated and chartered prior to the CCO effective date.

A.1.2. Clinical Advisory Panel

PSCS will establish a Clinical Advisory Panel (CAP) as a means of assuring best clinical practices.
The CAP will serve as a subcommittee of the Central Oregon Health Council (COHC). The role of
the CAP will be to provide clinical oversight and leadership to community clinical integration efforts,
clinical quality improvements projects and improvements in the local health care system and
delivery. The CAP will also serve a central role in coordination of the quality committees of the
health plan, Central Oregon Health Board (COHB) and the Central Oregon IPA (COIPA). The CAP
will consist of 15-17 members. Members will include a COHC member, Operating Council member
and Community Advisory Council member as liaisons. Additional members will include
representatives of behavioral health, oral health, the local FQHC, the hospital system, health plan,
COIPA, public health, clinical pharmacy, Long Term Care, Alcohol & Drug, Alternative Medicine,
Obstetrics, and other Specialty Care. The committee chair will be a clinical member of the
governing body of the CCO. The representatives from COIPA, PSCS and behavior health will be
members of their respective organizations quality committees. Through all CAP members, PSCS will
also obtain representation from each of the following regions: Bend, LaPine, Sisters, Redmond,
Prinevilie, Madras and Warm Springs. The CAP will also include members that provide
representation of underserved populations. At least two positions each will be for members
presenting Jefferson & Crook Counties. (Please find attached Attachment A.1.2 — CAP Visio).

A.1.3. Agreements with Type B Area Agencies on Aging and DHS local offices for APD
(APD)

PSCS is working directly with DHS local APD office in obtaining the initial MOU. These
conversations have been expanded to include identification of current processes, intersects, and areas
of collaboration.

A.1.4, Agreements with Local Mental Health Authorities and Community Mental Health
Programs

Representatives of the Central Oregon Counties including Crook County, Deschutes County and
Jefferson County have been working closely with representatives of PSCS to create a formal,
administrative, programmatic and financial framework that will assure the Local Mental Health
Authority’s (LMHA) role and Community Mental Health Program’s (CMHP) role will be
accomplished successfully throughout the region. There is agreement in principal to create both a
legally binding letter of agreement and a contractual global payment by PSCS for LMHA/CMHP
responsibilities. A comprehensive program contract, including a global payment methodology and
reporting framework will be signed between PSCS and the Central Oregon Health Board (COHB) in
summer 2012. This contract will be based on a matrix of assigned responsibilities between the
Central Oregon Health Council (COHC), PSCS as CCO fiscal agent, the COHB, and the
participating counties. Within the next six months, all behavioral health responsibilities currently




managed by PSCS MHO through its subcontractor Accountable Behavioral Health Alliance (ABHA)
will be assumed by the COHB, its participating counties, and/or PSCS.

L]

The parties agree that all resources needed to sustain current CMHP services, particularly for people
requiring intensive services, will be provided to the COHB, and then through the COHB to the
participating counties. This includes but is not limited to such essential services as EASA, acute
care, AMHI, assertive community treatment, children’s wraparound services, 24/7 crisis services,
residential and employment programs, and other programs and services for people requiring more
intensive services and support. It is further agreed that the CMHP will participate actively in the
transformation process, in complex care models, in outcome based investments, in the movement to
improve care coordination and integration, in the development of person centered primary care
homes and in the shared services that require both OHP and State General Fund resources to be
successful.

Al4.a. As outlined above, intensive negotiations have resulted in a
framework and matrix for these working relationships. At the time of application, these roles
and responsibilities are being priced and a financial model is being created, In addition, work
has begun on the global payment framework that will assure that PSCS invests in COHB
services for OHP members requiring intensive services and supports. The participating
counties, through the County Commissioners represented on the COHB, have reviewed this
framework and authorized budget and personnel development in anticipation of a signed
contract and payment plan within the next 60-90 days. It is expected that the COHB may
assume many of the duties currently assigned to ABHA on or close to the PSCS CCO start
date.

A.1.4.b. Central Oregon Counties have a long history of working with St. Charles
Health System, public safety and social service organizations, and residential programs in the
local area to serve and support people transitioning for extended or long-term psychiatric care
programs. Deschutes County, in particular, has invested in residential development with a
significant increase in SRTF, RTH and supported housing options in the last 18 months. The
region’s Central Oregon Regional Acute Care Council (CORACC) will be reconstituted
through the COHB to assure acute care and residential resources are in place and responsive
to the needs of OHP members in a timely manner, It is agreed that representatives of PSCS
will participate actively in the work of COHB’s CORAC Council.

Ald.c. PSCS will coordinate with Community Emergency Service Agencies
to promote an appropriate response to members experiencing a mental health crisis. PSCS
will work with and through Local Public Safety Coordinating Councils and their participating
members. In addition, the work of the Crisis Intervention Coalition in Deschutes Council
will be sustained as additional officers throughout the region and will be trained in and serve
as extensions of a CIT model in Central Oregon. This forum in each County and collectively
throughout the region, will promote an appropriate response to members experiencing a
mental health crisis. .




A.LS, Social and support services in the service area

A.LS5.a. PSCS is in the process of identifying key agencies and individuals within the
offices listed below. As these agencies and individuals are identified, PSCS will meet to
discuss how to partner with each agency so that the services they offer are incorporated into
the work being done within the CCO. These key agencies and offices are:

o DHS Children’s Adults and Families field offices in the service area;

o Oregon Youth Authority (OYA) and Juvenile Departments in the service area;

o Department of Corrections and local community corrections and law
enforcement, local court system, problem solving courts (drug courts/mental
health courts) in the service area, including for individuals with mental illness and
substance abuse disorders;

o School districts, education service districts that may be involved with students
having special needs, and higher education in the service area;

o Developmental disabilities programs;

o Tribes, tribal organizations, urban Indian organizations, Indian Health Services
and services provided for the benefit of Native Americans and Alaska Natives;

o Housing;

o Community-based family and peer support organization;

o Other social and support services important to communities served.

Connections to these resources for members of the CCO will happen directly through
connections of Community Health Workers, public health staff, and other consumer
advocates in the health care system and their community services networks, Connections
will also happen through the networks and relationships of the COHB and COHC
Membership to existing advisory boards. These connections will include: County Local
Alcohol and Drug Planning Committees, Mental Health Advisory Boards, Commissions on
Children and Families, Local Public Safety Coordinating Councils, Emergency Food and
Shelter Advisory Boards, Family Court Advisory Boards, and local hospital boards to name a
few. The COHB Membership to Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council, Regional
Housing Authority, and Regional Community Action Agency will provide additional
connections.

A.1.6. Community Health Assessment and Community Health Improvement Plan

Community Health Assessment: PSCS through the COHC has begun work on a community health
assessment and a community health improvement plan. In 2011, collaboration began to conduct one
region-wide assessment through shared work with schools, public health agencies, health care
organizations, United Way and other community partners. By collaborating in this manner, it is
expected that there will be increased efficiencies in the work to conduct the assessment, but more
importantly, involved organizations will share the workload, involve their stakeholders, learn
together and work together to act accordingly for the advancement of the community.




The assessment as currently structured involves:

o Identifying key indicators, definitions, and sources )

» Gathering existing objective data '

e (Gathering new subjective data (surveys, focus groups, etc.)

¢ Analyzing the information

s Informing through a cohesive story

¢ Formatting the document

s Developing and implementing a marketing plan

s Coordinating interventions from each organization to begin addressing the identified gaps
¢ Evaluating the interventions to determine impact on key indicators

PSCS will work with the OHA, including the Office of Equity and Inclusion, to further identify the
components of the community health assessment. Currently, PSCS partners with the local public
health authority, hospital system, and local mental health authority. PSCS will be discussing the
status of the current community health assessment with local APD offices to identify areas of
partnership and collaboration. The assessment will be analyzed in accordance with OHA’s race,
ethnicity and language data policy once the policy is made available.

As a part of the community assessment discussions that have occurred, plans for a Regional Health
Database — Healthy Communities Institute have started to develop. Community pariners have agreed
that rather than having multiple agencies searching multiple (and often similar) sources for data and
information year after year, the creation of a common database that would evolve over time to
become a single source of data with automated feeds from disparate sources, standard reports and
customizable mining capabilities would be useful. PSCS and its community partners will collaborate
with other regions and the state to ensure standard definitions and design. The work is expected to
occur in four main phases:

s Planning and quick wins.

»  Approving of Healthy Communities Institute Website and funding decisions.

+ Designing of the database infrastructure through Healthy Communities Institute and core data
feeds and reports available to the public on a shared website,

« Enhancing and automating, possible merging with other regions info a state-wide database.

In addition, a smaller group of data stakeholders fiom Crook County, Jefferson County, and
Deschutes County began working with Sarah Kingston, MPH, data analyst for Deschutes County to
analyze the data from the three counties to create a comprehensive health report including
information on disparities, race and ethnicities, and language needs in the three counties.

PSCS was included in the assessment through the opportunity conferences sponsored by
PacificSource Health Plans. This regional community health assessment will be an ongoing process
led by the Central Oregon Health Board Public Health Departments yearly. There will be quarterly
strategic planning sessions with tri-county pariners to analyze the data and assess strategies. Data
from public sector and private sector is also being used to identify the needs in the community, An




effort will be made to continue to add partners to the table who did not participate in the initial
process such as the AAA system.

Deschutes County, Crook County, and Jefferson County will continue to assist PSCS in the
engagement of diverse populations including but not limited to individuals receiving DHS Medicaid
Funded LTC and individuals with severe and persistent mental illness in the community health
assessment process through consultation focus groups, surveys, and coniracted services as needed to
gather data from specific populations.

The Central Oregon Health Report 2012 Executive Summary is attached. (Please see attached
Attachment A.1.6 — Central Oregon Health Report 2012 Executive Summary). The fuil Central
Oregon Health Report will be available at Readiness Review.

Stakeholders in support of this regional effort include: St, Charles Health System, Mosaic Medical,
HealthMatters, United Way, Deschutes County Health Department, Jefferson County Health
Department, Crook County Health Department, Deschutes County Commission on Children and
Families, Crook County Commission on Children and Families, Jefferson County Community Health
Improvement Plan, High Desert Education Service District, FivePine Lodge, St, Charles Health
System ~ Behavioral Health, St. Charles Health System ~ Performance Management, St. Charles
Health System ~ Self-Care, St. Charles Health System ~ Kids@ Heart, PacificSource Community
Solutions, Warm Springs Tribal Council, Bend Memorial Council, Central Oregon Independent
Practice Association, Les Schwab, City of Bend, City of Redmond, City of Prineville, City of Sisters,
City of Madras, AAA, St. Charles Health System ~ Redmond; St. Charles Health System ~ Bend, St.
Charles Health System ~ Prineville, Mountainview Hospital ~ Madras, Partnership to End Poverty,
and Kids Center.

Health Improvement Plan: A data/assessment workgroup composed of community partners met
January 3, 2012, Available data was reviewed and discussed incorporating experiential and
professional knowledge. From that meeting, nine priorities for the Central Oregon Region were
identified; sub-categories of interest were called out and listed where appropriate. The areas chosen
for the Health Improvement Plan were then vetted through the COHB and COHC and Healthy
Environments was added as an additional area. The ten areas chosen werte:

¢ Disparity and Inequality

e Access and Isolation

o Early Childhood Wellness

¢ Food Insecurity

s QOral Health

o Safety, Crime, and Violence
» Chronic Disease

s  Alcohol, Drug, and Tobacco
» Behavioral Health, Suicide
s Healthy Environments




Staff from the counties worked with a contractor to write the Health Improvement Plan for the region
which has been submitted to the State of Oregon as required by SB204, The workgroup created the
plan based on the ten areas with engagement of multiple commiunity partners to compléte the work.
The Health Improvement Plan was approved by the COHB and the COHC. The plan provides the
guidance for developing coordinated care plans in the region while focusing on prevention and the
Triple Aim and aligns with the care strategies being developed by PSCS.

Section 2 — Member Engagement and Activation

A.2.1. Member and Family Partnerships

PSCS will actively engage partners in the design and implementation of treatment and care plans
being inclusive of cultural preferences and goals for health maintenance and improvement,
Whenever possible, PSCS will engage members in a way that the member s choices will be reflected
in provider selection and treatment plans.

A2.l.a, PSCS and its subcontractors understand that the brief period of time when a
member is newly enrolling on the plan is critical for building a strong and lasting
relationship. Currently, PSCS members are sent identification cards, member handbooks,
provider directories and an automatic assignment of a primary care provider (if an existing
primary care provider isn’t assigned). These resources allow the member to engage in
managing their health by connecting them to not only PSCS but also a community provider
who is actively interested in taking care of the member.

Members new to the plan and who call PSCS Customer Service for the first time are
identifiable in the system so that the customer service staff can allocate additional time to
walk the member through accessing their benefits, Customer service staff has the
opportunity to spend time with the member which can include conferencing in local provider
offices to help setup initial consultations. If the member already has an established primary
care provider identified in the system, the customer service agent will ensure that they are
properly assigned within the system. Customer service staff will also send the member or
their guardians a disclosure form to allow for others to actively participate in managing their
care.

Currently, the customer service departmeht maintains a list of quality activities that ate being
offered by the PSCS and educate staff members on their benefits relevant to the members’
situations. Additionally the customer service department maintains a list of community
resources that the member might be interested in accessing outside of the standard benefit
package. It is the main goal of PSCS customer service staff to build a relationship of trust and
integrity with each member that can help guide the member through the health delivery
system. Through policy and program designs that are coordinated with community partners, a
consistent method for facilitation of meaningful member engagement will occur.

PSCS will work with its partners to develop community terms of engagement that can be
consistently applied across providers, services and settings. Member engagement wili be




fostered through shared decision-making within the clinical advisory committee and the
community advisory committee, Tools will be developed along with population based
clinical guidelines to improve the members care and to help the member evaluate health care
decisions. The following methods based on research and best practice will be supported
through the program when possible.

¢ Employ individuals when possible whose cultures and language maich the
populations. '

¢ Provide training in coordination with providers regarding cultural norms and
practices that effect care and outcomes.

* Engage interpreters.

e Provide targeted member materials for identified populations.

» Provide translation of materials for members upon request.

* Develop partnerships with public health, community and faith based
organizations serving minority populations to increase frust, access, and
education.

s Collect data and analyze data to identify and address disparities and social
injustice issues within the community,

¢ Utilize peer navigators, community health workers, community public health
nurses, and public health programs such as WIC to access members and
improve client care,

¢ Provide reports to the Community Advisory Committee to aid in the
improvement of care.

¢ Develop written care plans and offer training to providers on the use of the
care plans,

¢ Develop a variety of materials and training tools for member engagement.

¢ Initiate specific focus groups coordinated with public health for high need
clients to determine gaps in care and needs. Development of surveys to better
assess needs will be considered as well.

¢ Document outreach to and case management of members to allow for better
tracking coordination and facilitation of care between partners.

¢ Develop health literacy programs. Multiple providers including St. Charles
Health Systen, Mosaic, and the counties are cutrently engaged in this
process.

A2.Lb. PSCS and its subcontractors approach each interaction with a member as a
chance to educate and empower. PSCS believes that members can be hindered and
disadvantaged in managing their care due to a lack of knowledge and confidence and lack of
empathy from their health care organization. PSCS places a focus on understanding and
actively supports each member in overcoming barriers. PSCS ensures that each member is
educated on the PSCS’s quality initiatives and other community resource available to the
member, The claim and authorization system can be used to measure member activation
rates. The time is measured from the first day of enrollment to the first date of service ona




claim, first call to Customer Service or the first referral to a provider. The claim and
authorization system has the ability to flag members with certain chronic diseases or complex
needs based on both claims and referral data. Any staff member who interacts with a
member with a chronic disease or complex need can be notified of the condition so they can
ensure the member’s needs are addressed appropriately. This notification allows staff the
opportunity to provide members with focused instruction or education,

PSCS will further analyze opportunities to encourage member engagement teams in provider
practices, PSCS will work with community partners to:

¢ Develop training programs by public health on the social determinants of
health and the effect on health.

s Identify and address transportation barriers.

¢ Identify situations leading to lack of access to healthy food.

¢ Encourage walking paths and other opportunities for physical activities for all
populations in communities.

¢ Provide education and information for members regarding prevention
programs such as Oregon Quit Line, Living Well and other programs.

e Provide engagement materials for members.

PSCS will engage members in culturally and linguistically appropriate ways. The enrollment
system has the ability to track a member’s race, ethnicity and primary language. This allows
PSCS to ensure all materials sent to the members are provided in the members’ primary
language. It also allows customer service staff to route calls from a member to a native
speaker or to prepare a language line interpreter, The customer service department will
employ native Spanish speakers and utilize a language line service for all other languages.

PSCS will educate members on how to navigate the coordinated care system and will ensure
access to peer wellness and other non-traditional healthcare worker resources. PSCS will
provide education to staff on the nuances of navigating the new coordinated care approach.
Customer service staff will go through extensive training on the local community’s available
resources, Because the customer service staff is one of the most readily available resources
to a member, it is critical that they understand the new delivery model and are able to guide
the members through the process.

PSCS will encourage members to use effective wellness and prevention resources and to
make heaithy lifestyle choices in a manner that is culturally and linguistically appropriate.
PSCS will maintain a list of quality programs and alternative benefits that are being offered
and educate members on benefits of making healthy lifestyle choices.

PSCS will provide plain language narrative that informs members about what they should
expect from the PSCS with regard to their rights and responsibilities. As conversations
continue in the development of the CCO, this narrative will evolve. A draft of the narrative
will be available upon readiness review. Once the Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
is activated, it is expected that the CAC will monitor and measure member activation. The
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process of how this is to be accomplished will be determined by the CAC with assistance
from PSCS staff and community partners.

Section 3 — Transforming Models of Care

Patient-Centered Primary Care Homes (PCPCH)

AJd.la. PSCS will support provider networks through the provision of technical
assistance, tools for coordination, management of provider concerns, relevant member data,
and training tools necessary to communicate in a linguistically and culturaily appropriate
fashion as explained below, '

Technical assistance: PSCS will provide assistance, resources, and
supportive services for clinics who are working to become “PCPCH
Recognized”, clinics that have already received PCPCH recognition,
and clinics who are working toward advancement of tiers, In
addition, PSCS will offer assistance, resources, and supportive
services for clinics who are implementing other quality improvement
efforts in collaboration with PSCS. This assistance can include
practice facilitation and/or coaching, participation in learning
collaborative, online learning modules, and other resources that
support practice transformation and result in better health, better care,
lower costs and enhanced member experience. Presently, several
clinics in the Central Oregon area have already achieved PCPCH
Recognition. These clinics are able to collaborate with one another as
well as with practices who have not yet applied in order to provide
technical assistance and share best practices for application,
advancement of tier level, and practice transformation.

Sharing of information among provider practices is currently being
facilitated by the Central Oregon Independent Practice Association
(COIPA) and other community partaners including PSCS. The Oregon
Health Authority has partnered with Northwest Health Foundation
and HRSA to fund a PCPCH Center (Center) which intends to
provide technical assistance and opportunities for providers to
participate in a learning collaborative, learning networks, and online
learning to support practice transformation. It is expected that the
Center will provide assistance with strategic planning and financial
coordination. COIPA and PSCS are in the process of settingup a
PCPCH community forum in Bend with the potential of a second
community forum in the Gorge with speakers from Oregon Health
Policy and Research. The tentative date for Bend is set for May 22™.
The agenda is being developed, and potential topics include:




o Overview of PCPCH Program.

o Application Process.

o ' Additional PMPM funds available for recognized clinics.
o Reporting.

o Payment timelines and structures (MCO vs. FFS OHP

members, and Q&A opportunities).
The intention is to also make discussion available remotely to clinics
out of the area with use of “Go to Meeting”. - .

Tools for coordination: In coordination with traditional case
management services PSCS currently provides and will continne to
provide, PSCS case managers are well trained and are currently
taking on “co-management” tasks and communications with coaching
and transitions in collaboration with clinic-based case managers.
PSCS intends to further build upon these relationships and
collaboration further through the PSCS/PCPCH model. PSCS
encourages care coordination through the use of Exceptional Needs
Care Coordinators (ENCCs), PSCS case managers, and an electronic
referral system to keep primary care managers involved with and
well-informed about the specialty care being received by their
members. Data analysis is being used to identify and support
opportunitics to improve quality/coordination of care.

Management of provider concerns. When concerns are brought to
PSCS Provider Network Department, the appropriate team researches
the issue and contacts the provider. Often, PSCS Provider Network
will work with multiple departments within the company to research
and address the providers concern. During the research process, the
provider is kept informed of the progress/status. In addition, PSCS’s
community partner, COIPA, currently provides support for provider
members and serves as a liaison between providers and various
community resources, including other providers, payers, the hospital
system, efc,

Relevant Member data. For PCPCH clinics, PSCS is currently
providing a list of clinic assigned members and identifying which
members have ACA qualified condition eligible claims. This activity
will assist clinics in identifying members that may be ACA qualified.
In addition to that information, PSCS is providing some additional
information about the member such as Ingenix ERG prospective risk
score, total medical and pharmacy costs of the member for the past 12
months, date of most recent ER visits, total ER visits in the last year,
date of most recent inpatient stay and count of inpatient stays in the
last year, and the DRG for the most recent stay to help assist clinics




with managing PSCS members. PSCS is also a data supplier to
Quality Corp and has worked with them to add PSCS’s Medicaid
lines of business to the reporting of quality improvement measures
which include member specific results that providers can access
through an online portal. Currently, an agreement between COIPA,
TransUnion, and PSCS allows data reports to be developed using
OHP member claims. These reports identify and track quality
initiatives and give providers an additional resource for population
management and tracking of utilization. Three local provider offices
are expected to participate in a pilot with Q-Corp which will provide
opportunities to analyze EMR data in an effort to begin looking at
consolidating claims and clinical data.

Training and tools necessary to communicate in a linguistically
and culturally appropriate fashion with Members and their
families, Provider Directories noting the provider’s languages will
be provided to members to ensure members can choose a Primary
Care Provider that is fluent in the member’s primary language.
Materials will be written in 6™ grade reading level and will also be
translated into Spanish, since the thresholds as identified by OHA are
met for this need in Central Oregon. If members need other
informational materials in another form, PSCS will provide them with
the pertinent information, Examples include:

¢ Other Languages

e Large Print
Computer Disk
Audio Tape
Oral Presentation
Braille
PSCS also provides interpreter services, including sign language, for
members. Members can request an interpreter to assist at their doctor
office visits. These services are available in person or by phone. For
members who have cultural or physical challenges deterring them
from receiving the appropriate care due to transportation, PSCS will
assist in providing transportation services fo and from healthcare
appointments, PSCS will continue to work with community partners
in the service area to provide these services to ensure members get the
needed care.

PSCS will provide members with newsletters that include pertinent
benefit information, resources, access to care, and other important
information about their health. These newsletters will be available in
Spanish and other formats noted above. PSCS has a website for
members where they can access information 24 hours a day, 7 days a




week. The website is Section 508 compliant and is written at a 6
grade reading level.

A3.1b, PSCS will continue to engage its members though a number of outreach
initiatives. Contact will be made via print materials, member access via the PSCS website,
direct outreach to the member either through clinical or non-clinical staff at PSCS, and
through initiatives that are communicated in conjunction with PSCS provider partners.
Through these vehicles, members will be made aware of program changes and transformation
activities and their impact on provider capabilities. PSCS will assist its providers in
developing methods of member engagements. Currently, new members at one PSCS
provider office have an initial hour-long appointment with a patient navigator who explains
what it means to be in a PCPCH, what the member should expect with regard to access to
care, what he/she should expect in relation to quality and customer setvice-from the provider
staff, and what is expected of the member with regard to keeping appointments,
communicating with the clinic and his/her PCP, and appropriate ER utilization, etc, PSCS
considers this to be a best practice mode! for providing member education, achieving member
engagement, and setting expectations. It has strong potential for being implemented in other
PSCS provider offices.

Al.lc PSCS will partner with the provider community to implement a network of
PCPCHs that will include a plan to encourage use of PCPCHs by members and a plan to
encourage providers to move toward higher tiers. PSCS is in full support and alignment
when working with clinics currently tiered for PCPCH and is also assisting those clinics who
are currently working to apply for recognition. Currently in the Central Oregon area, 12
clinics have been awarded PCPCH recognition. These clinics are located in all areas that
have the highest member saturations throughout this geographic area. For clinics that are
attempting to apply but may fall short of the “must haves”, PSCS is willing and able to
support requests for assistance to ensure these clinics have the capabilities to meet standards
required for PCPCH recognition. PSCS has internal resources well versed in PCPCH
standards and requirements at all tiers and are ready and able to engage with clinics
regardless of their current readiness and level of engagement in PCPCH. For those clinics
that have applied and been recognized for Tier 1, 2 or 3, PSCS is able to supply rosters of
Medicaid members in their area that are attributed to their clinic as well as indicators of what
ACA qualifiers these members/patients may meet these criteria to be able to assist them with
the appropriate identification. PSCS is able to identify member saturation and will reach out
to clinics in areas of high member concentration to promote and support PCPCH recognition.
For those not yet recognized, PSCS is ready to work with them to ensure they are capable of
applying and becoming recognized. This will ensure that clinics serving these populations are
engaged and are collaborating with PCPCH standards and expectations. As the number of
PCPCH recognized clinics increase, PSCS and its partners can begin to work with each
network to ensure that the needs of each member population’s needs are addressed
appropriately and across all aspects of care to ensure that targets and benchmarks are
obtainable and reached within 5 years and beyond.'




PSCS will require two-way communication and coordination between the PCPCH and other
contracting health and service providers in a timely manner for comprehensive case
management. Once PCPCH clinics are tiered and members are attributed, PSCS will set up
an introduction of a communication requirement/outline between PSCS case management
team and the clinic. This requirement/outline will be created to ensure communication is
open and utilized to its fullest capacity. These relationships will be built from the beginning
and will be a top priority to ensure collaboration is enhanced with communication that is -
effective and timely. PSCS has the ability to communicate with clinics in various ways
including: Phone, In Person, Fax and Email. One PSCS provider is already using Relay
Health to electronically communicate lab orders and results with the local hospital system.
‘The electronic OHP Referral system utilized by PSCS allows for e-submission and review of
referrals. Through this system, many referral responses are received same day. The system
allows for specialty providers to route additional referral requests back to PCPs for approval,
or PCPs can delegate sub-referral authority to a specialist.

A3.1d. PSCS’s PCPCH delivery system will coordinate PCPCH providers and
services with DHS Medicaid-funded LTC providers and services. In coordination with
traditional case management services PSCS currently provides and will continue to provide,
case managers who are coordinating tasks and communications and are well trained in
providing coaching in transitions and assistance for LTC providers. PSCS intends to build
upon these relationships and collaboration further through the CCO/PCPCH model. PSCS
will identify local LTC providers in the service area of application and assist with
coordination and communications if PSCS members require LTC outside their immediate
service area, In addition, an Advanced Iliness Management committee with representatives
from the hospital, palliative care, home health, in-home care, hospice, and primary care is
working to develop evidence-based guidelines for advanced illness management, with the
intention of educating providers and improving coordination of member care and
communication between PCPs, Specialists, and ER providers.

Ad.lLe. PSCS will encourage the use of federally qualified health centers, rural health
clinics, school-based health clinics and other safety net providers such as family planning
programs that qualify as patient centered primary care homes, PSCS currently partners with
Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) Rural Health Centers (RHCs), school-based
health clinics, and other safety net providers for the comprehensive provision of care for
OHP enrollees. These safety net providers are highly-engaged participating members of the
Central Oregon Independent Practice Association (COIPA) which is the main physician-led
organization in central Oregon, which works to align the safety-net physician community
with all community providers through activities such as: '

o Committees on quality, appropriate utilization, transitional
care, end-of-life care, and disease management.

o Community Health Information assessments o assess cost
and utilization with a goal of reductions in variations of care.




o Alignment of provider incentives, through new
reimbursement models which reduce the reliance on per
service, volume based reimbursement, and increase payment
methodologies which provide investment for high quality,
cost-effective care.

In addition, these safety net providers are core participants in the PCPCH initiative, and have
further participated in grant funding and other shared savings from PSCS for initiatives
which support both medical home development and increased capability for integration of
dental and behavioral health capabilities. Through the co-promotion of safety net provider’s
increased capability, PSCS has and will continue to encourage and expand the use of these
providers by the communities they serve.

A3.2. Other models of patient-centered primary health care

AJd.2.a. Considering a long-term strategy as the CCO evolves, PSCS may
consider the use of other models of patient-centered primary health care that align
with other PacificSource plan models. PacificSource through PSCS has adopted the
model of PCPCH throughout ali its Medicaid medical home endeavors (See Medicaid
Line of Business below) and had agreements prior to the PCPCH standards being
formed. A multiyear agreement was adopted and agreed to and included
measurements very similar to PCPCH measurements. Upon renewal of each medical
home agreement currently in place, PSCS will ensure that it completely and entirely
represents PCPCH standards and requirements to ensure full collaboration with this
model,

Commercial/Medicaid Lines of Business: PacificSource is engaged
in a statewide initiative that coordinates and collaborates with
multiple payers and clinics across the state of Oregon. This patient-
centered model coordinates all the individuals responsible for treating
members with chronic conditions. Under this pilot project, a specially
trained nurse acts as a navigator, developing a personal relationship
with a member to understand exactly how best to care for them. This
nurse then coordinates between other partners on the team, including
the member’s primary care physician, medical specialists, hospitals
and health plans. Potential initiatives have been identified that could
help improve quality while reducing the $20,000 per person in annual
health care costs for this segment of the population is anticipated.
Medicare Advantage HMO Line of Business: PacificSource is
engaged with a large clinic in Bend, Oregon. This patient-centered
model embeds a Care Manager (RN) in their clinic to manage and
coordinate the individuals responsible for treating members with
chronic conditions. Similar to the pilot above, the embedded Nurse
Care Manager acts as a navigator, developing a personal relationship




with a member to understand exactly how best to care for them. This
nurse then coordinates between other partners on the team, including
the member’s primary care physician, medical specialists, hospitals
and health plans.

Medicaid Line of Business: PSCS is engaged with the local IPA in
Bend, Oregon (Ceniral Oregon Independent Practice Association-
COIPA) in a patient-centered model. This patient-centered model
embeds a Care Manager (RN) in the FQHC to manage and coordinate
the individuals responsible for treating members with chronic
conditions. This Nurse Care Manager (NCM) is employed by
COIPA and PSCS supports the salary for this nurse to be embedded in
the clinic. Similar to the pilots above, this embedded NCM acts as a
navigator, developing a personal relationship with a member to
understand exactly how best to care for them. This nurse then

coordinates between other partners on the team, including the
member’s primary care physician, medical specialists, hospitals and
health plans.

Grant Funding for Medical Home and PCPCH: In addition, the safety
net providers are core participants in the PCPCH initiative, and have
further participated in grant funding and other shared savings from
PacificSource for initiatives which support medical home
development and increased capability for integration of dental and
behavioral health capabilities. Through the co-promotion of safety
net provider’s increased capability, PacificSource has and will
continue to encourage and expand the use of these providers by the
communities they serve.

A3.2,b. PacificSource and its associated health plans recognize that one
essential element in the achievement of the Triple Aim in the communities it serves
will be the positive transformation of primary care. Through collaboration and
partnership, PacificSource seeks to foster and align with that change. PacificSource
beligves that aligning internal goals and strategies to incorporate PCPCH standards
within a medical home network is the best path in achieving Health System
Transformation,

A3l PacificSource will require timely fwo-way communication and
coordination between its patient-centered primary health care providers and other
contracting health and services providers for comprehensive care management. Once
PCPCH clinics are tiered and members are attributed, PacificSource will set up an
introduction of a communication requirement/outline between the care management
team and the clinics. This requirement will ensure communication is open and
utilized to its fullest capacity between all entities. Whenever possible, PacificSource
will facilitate coordination between clinics EHR/EMR systems to most efficiently




transfer information as well. These relationships will be built from the beginning and
will be a top priority to ensure collaboration is enhanced with communication that is
effective and timely. PacificSource has the ability to communicate with clinics
through their methods of preference which maybe a combination or one of the
following: Phone, In Person, Fax and Email. In addition, one of PacificSource’s
providers is already using Relay Health to electronically communicate lab orders and
results with a local hospital system, PacificSource’s electronic referral system allows
for e-submission and review of referrals. Through this system, many referral
responses re received same day. The system also allows for specialty providers to
route additional referral requests back to PCPs for approval.

AJ.2.d. PacificSource’s patient centered primary health care delivery system
will coordinate with PCPCH providers and services with DHS Medicaid-funded LTC
providers and services. In coordination with traditional case management services
and PCPCH case management PacificSource currently provides and will continue to
provide, case managers are well trained and are currently capable of coordinating
tasks and communications with coaching in transitions and assistance for LTC
providers. PacificSource intends to build these relationships and collaboration further
through the CCO/PCPCH model. PacificSource is capable of assisting with
coordination and communications if members require care in an LTC facility in
service area or outside this service area.

A33. Access

A33a PSCS will take steps to assure that coordinated care services are
geographically located in settings that are as close to where members reside as
possible, are available in non-traditional settings and ensure culturally-appropriate
services, including outreach, engagement, and re-engagement of diverse communities
and under-served populations (e.g., members with severe and persistent mental
illness) and the delivery of a service array and mix is comparable to the majority
population, PSCS assures network adequacy via regular assessments of providers
who are open fo new members, as well as monitoring wait times for members to get
access to their designated provider. Members have the choice of who they want as
their dedicated primary care provider, but if a member does make a selection, PSCS
ensures geographic proximity for assignment to a primary care home,

In addition, PSCS is able to identify member saturation and reach out to clinics in
those areas of high concentration to determine level of PCPCH recognition. For
those offices that may not be recognized, PSCS is ready to work with them to ensure
they are able and capable of applying and becoming recognized. This will ensure that
clinics serving these populations are engaged and are collaborating with PCPCH
standards and expectations. Once this has been identified and clinics are in
compliance, PSCS can begin to work with each network to assure that the specific
arca member population’s needs are address appropriately and across all aspects of




care to ensure that targets and benchmarks are obtainable and reached within 5 years
and beyond,

A

In terms of non-traditional care, PSCS has been involved in a cross-community
collaboration to develop, fund and encourage Community Health Workers (CHWSs)
within the provider community, as well as within the safety net providers in the PSCS
provider network. In addition, PSCS has provided grant funding to enable a
community health assessment to determine to what extent and in what domains non-
traditional care workers are best deployed in a community where those providers
have not yet been deployed. This assessment also identifies geographical locations of
services and cultural appropriate services to provide outreach, engagement, and re-
engagement of diverse communities and underserved populations including those
members who have severe and persistent mental illnesses, CHWSs engage with the
members both in the inpatient as well as outpatient setting, to ensure members have
the most benefit from these engagements and have access across the continuum of
care. In terms of Personal Health Navigators, PSCS employs Transitional Care
Coordinators who function in a member advocate/navigator role in helping members
with medical system question/navigation, transportation, primary care assignment,
and other forms of personal assistance. Interpreters are available both within PSCS
and in conjunction with customer service staff via a contract with interpretation
services vendors, as well as in the provider community, particularly within the safety
net providers. This will assist in making sure members get culturally-appropriate
care reflective of the diverse community both PSCS and PSCS provider partners
serve. Members with severe/persistent mental iliness and who otherwise are regarded
as underserved, benefit from excéptional needs care coordination services made
available to them, with PSCS staff and Community Health Workers dedicated to
making sure they receive personalized/coordinated care for their care needs. There
are no referral requirements for such members, Many of the PCPCH also have
integrated Behavioral Health Consultants, mental health professionals, who are
trained in providing brief therapeutic interventions in primary care settings for those
who may have mental conditions secondary to a primary medical illness and whose
symptoms are impacting their healthcare. These Behavioral Consultants have also
worked with individuals with complex and chronic conditions who are part of the
Emergency Department Diversion project, resulting in more appropriate utilization of
the healthcare system.

PSCS is working to identify populations and demographics of the populations needs

to be able to identify local resources that are appropriately qualified and ready to
provide patient centered levels of care. This provides opportunities for
members/patients to receive services at the most effective level of care. PSCS is
currently working in several areas that are incorporating FQHC’s, RHC’s, Safety Net -
and also school-based clinics with Primary Care and ensuring these members have




access to these resources and communications are open and utilized between these

qualified clinics.
A33.b. PSCS does not anticipate any barriers at this time.
A33.c. PSCS will engage members of all covered populations to be fully

informed partners in transitioning to this model of care. PSCS will engage its
meimbers though a number of outreach initiatives. Contact is made via print
materials, member access via PSCS website, direct outreach to the member either
through clinical or non-clinical staff at PSCS, and through initiatives that are
communicated in conjunction with PSCS provider partners. Through these vehicles,
members can become aware of program changes and their impact on provider
capabilities, through the medium where they most effectively get their information.

PacificSource as an oi‘ganization of multiple products is currently researching
different member engagement models and strategies such as Insignia Health that will
provide assistance across multiple and diverse populations.

A3.4, Provider Network Development and Contracts

Adda. PSCS will build on existing provider networks that deliver
coordinated care and a team based approach, including providers external to the
Central Oregon service area, to ensure access to a full range of services to
accommodate member needs. PSCS is able to identify member saturation and reach
out to clinics in these areas of high concentration. PSCS will work with each
network to ensure that the specific area member populations’ needs are address
appropriately and across all aspects of care to ensure that targets and benchmarks are
obtainable and reached within 5 years and beyond. PSCS Staff is knowledgeable in
regards to requirements related to utilization of appropriate community resources and
are ready to coordinate. PSCS is currently working in several areas including some
outside Central Oregon that are incorporating FQHC’s, RHC’s, Safety Net and also
school-based clinics with Primary Care and ensuring these members have access to
these resources and communications are open and utilized between these qualified
clinics.

A3.4.b, PSCS will develop mental health and chemical dependency service
alternatives to unnecessary inpatient utilization for children and adults, including
those with addictive disorders. PSCS will work with community partner
organizations to identify resources specific to mental heaith and chemical dependency
that can be provided in an outpatient setting,

PSCS has developed strategics to divert members with non-medically necessary
inpatient care, decrease length of stay, and prevent readmissions, As a part of the
strategy, PSCS receives hospital census data from the major hospital system in
Central Oregon, St. Charles Health System. PSCS has also embedded a Nurse Case
Manager (NCM) in St, Charles Health System. The census data, along with the




embedded NCM, are part of a robust hospital case management system to reduce
hospital readmissions. All PSCS members admitted to the St. Charles Health System
are screened and, when appropriate, actively case managed during their inpatient stay.
PSCS’s embedded NCM works with the system and providers to ensure appropriate
inpatient lengths of stay based on disease severity and co-morbid conditions. PSCS
members who transition out of the hospital and require additional services will be
assigned to a centralized NCM or Care Coordinator for ongoing clinical follow up.
The case management and care coordination interventions are focused on improving
arcas that are known to cause hospital readmissions and improve overall quality of
care (follow-up PCP appointment, medication adherence, fall risk, etc). In addition,
PSCS is developing a post-hospital discharge program to call every member
discharged from the hospital. This process will be facilitated by the dedicated
Transitional Care Coordinators and a structured workflow that is built on the St.
Charles Health System census data. This program will focus on telephonic care
coordination and follow up to reduce readmissions.

PSCS is actively pursuing census data from other inpatient facilities in the proposed
service area. In addition, PSCS utilizes a robust reporting system (Thompson
Reuters) that utilizes claims experience to identify members at risk for readmission
and targeted care coordination, disease management and case management services.
Using this data, PSCS care coordination team will provide telephonic care
coordination and follow up to reduce readmissions. Where appropriate, members will
be enrolled in case management incliding case management of mental health and
chemical dependency conditions.

Reporting of readmissions, urgent care and ED visits using claims history is utilized
to report on each Primary Care Medical Home confracted with PSCS. This data is
used to inform process improvement and quality improvement opportunities with the
PSCS provider network. In one example, PSCS providers review the time of day
their members visited the Emergency Department and Urgent Care. If the visit
occurred during the PCP hours, the clinic reaches out to the member for re-education
about the availability of same-day appointments.

Add.c. PSCS will develop a behavioral health provider network that supports
members in the most appropriate and independent setting, including their own home
or independent supported living. PSCS has contracted with a robust network of
mental health & chemical dependency providers to ensure that PSCS members have
access fo these services. This network is further addressed in RFA 3402 Application
Appendix B. All PSCS Nurse Case Managers receive regular training on the
availability of these services in the community to ensure that inpatients who are
identified with mental health & chémical dependency needs are connected with the
appropriate clinicians and do not have to rely on intensive inpatient services for their
care. PSCS assures network adequacy via regular assessments of providers who are
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open to new members, as well as monitoring wait times for members to get access to
their designated provider.

In terms of non-traditional care, PSCS has been involved in a cross-community
collaboration to develop, fund and promote Community Heaith Workers (CHWs)
within the provider community, as well as within the safety net providers in PSCS
provider network. In addition, PSCS has provided grant funding to enable a
community health assessment to determine to what extent and in what domains non-
traditional care workers are best deployed in a community where those providers
have not yet been deployed. These CHWSs engage with the members both in the
inpatient as well as outpatient setting, to ensure members that most benefit from these
engagements have access across the continuum of care. In terms of Personal Health
Navigators, PSCS employs Transitional Care Coordinators who function in a member
advocate/navigator role in helping members with medical system and behaviorai
system question/navigation, transportation, primary care assignment, and other forms
of personal assistance. Interpreters are available both within PSCS and in
conjunction with customer service staff via a contract with interpretation services
vendors, as well as in the provider community, particularly within the safety net
providers, to assist in making sure members get culturally-appropriate care reflective
of the diverse community both PSCS and PSCS’s provider partners serve, Members
with severe/persistent mental illness and who otherwise are regarded as underserved,
benefit from exceptional needs care coordination services made available to them,
with PSCS staff, peer support specialists and Community Health Workers dedicated
to making sure they receive personalized/coordinated care for their care needs. There
are no referral requirements for such members.

Coordination, Transition and Care Management Care Coordination:
Care Coordination:

A3.8.a. - PSCS will support the flow of information between providers,
including DHS Medicaid-funded LTC care providers, mental health crisis services,
and home and community based services, covered under the State’s 1915(i) State
Plan Amendment (SPA) for members with severe and persistent mental iliness, in
order to avoid duplication of services, medication errors and missed opportunities to
provide effective preventive and primary care. PSCS maintains an electronic
database for documenting member eligibility, claims payment, referral status,
authorization status and any special eligibility categories that a member may qualify
for, This database is a product of PSCS’s claims & eligibility sub-contractor,
Through a web-based portal, PSCS providers are able to view the current status and
historical record of authorizations and referrals.

Services that are funded by agencies outside of PSCS can be more difficult to
coordinate. In order to facilitate communication and information flow between LTC
providers, mental health crisis services and providers of home and community based




services; the PSCS Medical Services staff receives periodic training on the contacts
and availability of community resoutrces. This includes in-person presentations by
community partners to inform PSCS of services offered to members, The contact
information for these providers is maintained on an internal Sharepoint site dedicated
to the Medical Services staff. This is maintained by the Medical Services Manager.
These resources are used to support case management and care coordination
activities.

PSCS is also tightly coordinated with the Central Oregon Health Board (COHB), The
‘COHB is an Inter-Governmental Agency that consolidates administrative services
provided by Deschutes, Jefferson and Crook Counties. The PSCS Health Services
staff will work closely with the COHB staff to ensure integration of services provided
to the SPMI population. Recent coordinated efforts have included a Performance
Improvement Project that brought physical health providers to a health fair at the
Deschutes County Annex to provide preventive screenings to the SPMI population.

PSCS also maintains an integrated data warchouse that captures claims history and
member eligibility records. The PSCS Actuarial Services Unit is responsible for
generating reports out of the data warehouse to identify targeted arcas for under and
over-utilization. These reports are distributed to clinical, operational and contracting
staffs who take any action necessary to ensure the proper level of services are
provided.

The Integrated Care Management (ICM) team consists of PSCS case managers,
PSCS care coordinators, physical health providers, behavioral health therapists and
community health workers. The ICM team meets each week to coordinate care for
high-needs members who have both behavioral health and physical health needs. This
often includes members meeting the SPMI definition. These members are identified
through data analysis that targets elevated risk scores, high claims experience and
other clinical intelligence rules. The coordinated effort of this multi-disciplinary team
is able to identify gaps in a member’s care that can lead to poor health and quality of
life outcomes. Often times the intervention of this group is to ensure that members
get connected with community resources and/or a medical home. Since its inception
in the 4® quarter of 2011, the ICM team has coordinated care for approximately 50
members. For those who have been in the program at least 6 months, the prospective
risk scores have declined from an average of 11.2 to 7.9. PSCS is commiited to
building on this success by expanding the ICM team model to reach more members
in 2012. This will include the following changes:

e adding new care coordinators,

¢ streamlining workflows,

¢ improving data aggregation,

s enhancing member engagement on the ICM team, and




e utilizing a distributed model that takes the tecam to the member
and providers.

AJ3.5.Db. PSCS will work with its providers to develop the partnerships
necessary to allow for access to and coordination with social and support services,
including crisis management services, and community prevention and self-
management programs. PSCS is rooted in the community governance and the
integration of physical health, behavioral health and public health. This is represented
in the membership of the Central Oregon Health Council (COHC), the COHC
Operations Council and the tight integration of the CCO, COHB and the Central
Oregon IPA (COIPA). These community collaborations have allowed, and will
continue {o reinforce, partnerships between public health initiatives focused on
community prevention and member self-management and physical and behavioral
health initiatives. This is evidenced in the Regional Health Improvement Plan,
published in April 2012 that was jointly developed by members of the COHC
associated organization. Please see the Central Oregon Health Report information
documented in Section A.1.6,

AJdS.c. PSCS with community partners will develop a tool for provider to use
to assist in the culturally and linguistically appropriate education of members about
care coordination, and the responsibilities of both providers and members in assuring
effective communication. This tool will be a result of the culmination of the
Community Health Assessment and the Regional Health Plan. In addition, PSCS will
work with the OHA, including the Office of Equity and Inclusion, to further identify
the components of the community health assessment. The assessment will be
analyzed in accordance with OHA’s race, ethnicity and language data policy once the
policy is made available.

A3.5.d. PSCS will work with providers to implement uniform methods of
identifying members with multiple diagnoses and who are served with multiple
healthcare and service systems. PSCS will implement intensive care coordination
and planning model in collaboration with member’s primary care health home and
other service providers such as Community Developmental Disability Programs and
brokerages for members with developmental disabilities that effectively coordinates
services and supports for the complex needs of these members. PSCS will identify
members with complex medical and social needs through the following uniform
methods: | '

o Robust reporting software used to identify high-needs members,
PSCS currently use a software engine purchased from Ingenix;
however, this is being transitioned to a Thomson Reuters
application during 2012. These reporting systems integrate
member demographics, disease burden and claims history to
identify members who are likely to require high resource levels in
the near future. This data is overlaid with Clinical Intelligence




Rules which help to identify members with interveneable
conditions.

o Members may also be identified through the ENCC program. All
newly eligible ENCC members receive a wellness survey.
Surveys are tabulated and scored for physical health and mental
health needs based on national norms for responses to the
standardized Short Form 12 survey. High need ENCC members
are prioritized for referral and enrollment into the programs
betow. ENCC member rosters are provided to contracted medical
homes each month by the Quality Improvement Coordinator in
Health Services.

Identified members are then connected with appropriate
community and health plan resources by the PSCS Care
Coordinators. These resources may include:

o Patient Centered Medical Home.

o Complex Care Clinic which resulted from the previously
documented Opportunity Conference.

o Integrated Care Management team (previously documented
above),

o Community Health Workers
o Currently contracted through Mosaic Medical and St.

Charles Health System.
Referrals to other community-based resources as necessary.

e]

AdS.e. PSCS will meet state goals and expectations for coordination
of care for members with severe and persistent mental illness receiving home
and community based services covered under the State’s 1915(i) SPA and
members receiving DHS Medicaid-funded LTC services, given the exclusion
of DHS Medicaid-funded LTC services from global budgets. PSCS is
working closely with the COHB to ensure comprehensive coordination of
care for the SPMI population. The COHB will be delegated responsibility for
coordinating care for this population. PSCS will provide the COHB with a
capitated budget to manage this population and all contract requirements of
the CCO contract that could be delegated will be evaluated and potentially
fransferred to the COHB, with oversight & monitoring maintained by PSCS,
The COHB is contracted with the County Mental Health Programs for the
direct provision of care. The compliance with all contractual requirements for
the SPMI population will be monitored by the PSCS Compliance Department
in coordination with the Behavioral Health Department. To ensure that
services provided by the COHB to the SPMI population are closely
coordinated with the physical health and mental health services provided by
PSCS and their provider network, the PSCS Behavioral Health Manager (or




designee) and the COHB Executive Director (or designee) will maintain
standing positions on each of the other’s respective quality committees and
other committees as appropriate.

AJSA PSCS will use evidence-based or innovative strategies within
the delivery system network to ensure coordinated care, including the use of
non-traditional health workers, especially for members with intensive care
coordination needs, and those experiencing health disparities. PSCS currently
contracts with Community Health Workers (CHWs) at Mosaic Medical and
St. Charles Health System. CHWs are engaged as part of the Mosaic medical
home model and reimbursed through the primary care capitated arrangement
with the Central Oregon IPA (COIPA). Members who are not engaged with a
Mosaic medical home and who are identified as good candidates for a CHW
engagement, are referred to the St. Charles Community Health CHW
program. These CHWs are reimbursed on a case-rate and the success of the
program is closely monitored for process and outcome measures. Further
description of the evidence-based and innovative strategies for care
coordination is included in Section A.3.5.a.

A3.5.g. PSCS will adhere to current industry standards that ensure
access to care and systems in place to engage members with appropriate
levels of care and services beginning not later than 30 days afier Enrollment
with the CCO, PSCS and its subcontractors approach each interaction with a
member as a chance to educate and empower, PSCS has a belief that
members can be hindered and disadvantaged in managing their care due to a
lack of knowledge and confidence and lack of empathy from their health care
organization. PSCS places a focus on understanding each member’s sitnation
and supporting each member in addressing it. PSCS ensures that each
member is educated on the plans quality initiatives and any other community
resource available to them. The claim and authorization system can be used
to measure member activation rates. The time is measured from the first day
of enrollment to the first date of service on a clalm first call to Customer
Service or the first referral to a provider.

A35.h. PSCS will provide access to primary care to conduct
culturally and linguistically appropriate health screenings for members to
assess individual care needs or to determine if a higher level of care is
needed. PSCS will engage members in culturally and linguistically
appropriate ways. The enroliment system has the ability to track a member’s
race, ethnicity and primary lénguage. This allows PSCS to ensure all
materials sent to the members are provided in the member’s primary
language. It also allows customer service staff to route calls from a member
to a native speaker or to prepare a language line interpreter, The customer




service department will employ native Spanish speakers and utilize a
language line service for all other languages.
¥

Comprehensive transitional care:

A3.5.0L PSCS will address appropriate transitional care for members
facing admission or discharge from hospital, hospice or other palliative care,
home health care, adult foster care, skilled nursing care, residential or
outpatient treatment for mental health or chemical dependency or other care
settings. PSCS will address transitional services and supports for children,
adolescents and adults with serious behavioral health conditions facing
admissions or discharge from residential treatment settings and the state
hospitals, PSCS Medical Services team enforces evidence based Utilization
Management policies for members admitted to the hospital, skilled nursing
facilities and those receiving home health care. The Utilization Management
process ensures that all members transitioning to or from these care settings
are identified prospectively. As mentioned above, the PSCS Nurse Care
Managers have dual roles for Utilization Management and Case Management
for physical health conditions and serious behavioral health conditions. This
model ensures that the members identified as requiring transition to a new
care setting receive case management to ensure that all necessary services and
support are in place prior to the members move. All case management
activity is docomented in a proprietary Sharepoint application that was built
on NCQA case management standards. This ensures consistent case
management occurs across nurses and clinical situations. In addition, a full-
time embedded nurse care manager is located at St. Charles Health System,
the largest hospital system in the PSCS referral region. The embedded nurse
is responsible for screening all PSCS hospital admissions, providing intensive
case management to the highest needs members and working closely with the
hospital discharge planning team and the PSCS centralized nurse care
managers to ensure optimal transitions of care. Members with
severe/persistent mental illness and who otherwise are regarded as-
underserved, benefit from exceptional needs care coordination services made
available to them, with PSCS staff and Community Health Workers dedicated
to making sure they receive personalized/coordinated care for their care needs
as they face discharge from residential treatment settings and the state
hospital. There are no referral requirements for such members,

A3.5.. PSCS and local APD office will approach coordination and
communication in a multi-layered fashion. The local APD office will provide
a copy of the CA/PS assessment that is used with LTC members to PSCS.
PSCS and local APD office will coordinate staffing when appropriate. PSCS
will maintain contact with assigned APD case manager or diversion transition
worker. Meetings between PSCS and the local APD office will occur on a




regular basis to assist in coordination of care for members. In coordination
with traditional case management services PSCS currently provides and will
continue fo provide, case managers who are experienced in cooﬁdinating tasks
and communications and well-trained in providing coaching in transitions and
assistance with LTC providers. PSCS will identify local LTC providers in the
service area of application and assist with coordination and communications
if PSCS members require transitions of care in a LTC outside this service
area. In addition, an Advanced lilness Management Committee with
representatives from the hospital, palliative care, home health, in-home care,
hospice, and primary care is working to develop evidence-based guidelines
for advanced illness management, with the intention of educating and
improving coordination of member care and communication between PCPs,
Specialists, and ER providers.

A5k PSCS will develop an effective mechanism to track member
transitions from one care sefting to another, including engagement of the
member and family members in care management and treatment planning,

As described above, all case management activity is monitored in a
proprietary Sharepoint application that is built on NCQA Case Management
standards. This structured Case Management platform ensures that all case
managed care {ransitions are documented in one ceniralized system. This
structure also prompts PSCS nurse case managers with structured questions to
ensure that members have the proper level of social support for a safe
transition. This may include engagement of other family members.

Individual Care Plans:

A35l PSCS will create standards and procedures that ensure the
development of individualized care plans, including any priorities that will be
followed in establishing such plans for those with intensive care coordination
needs, including members with severe and persistent mental illness receiving
home and community based services covered under the State’s 1915(i) SPA.
The care plans of community partners will be integrated into the process.
Already, PSCS’s community partner, St. Charles Health System has
developed individualized care plans for individuals who are high frequency
utilizers of the Emergency Department, As described above, the Case
Management and Care Coordination software application used by PSCS
Medical Services staff ensures a structured workflow and standardized
questions. Every member engaged in Case Management or Care Coordination
receives a single record in the application, which includes an individualized
care plan. This application ensures consistent documentation and enables
reporting of process and outcomes. Members enrolled in case management
can be tracked over time and have their treatment plan adjusted according to
their current needs. (Please find attached screen shots of the Case




Management and Care Coordination sofiware in Attachment A.3.5.1 Case
Mgt Screens), PSCS will also address individualized care plans in p10v1dex
contracts and educational materiais

AJ3.S5m. PSCS will have a universal screening process that assesses
individuals for critical risk factors that trigger intensive care coordination for
high needs members; including those receiving DHS Medicaid-funded LTC
services. In addition, the local APD office will provide a copy of the CA/PS
assessment for LTC members. PSCS and the local APD staff will mutually
identify critical risk factors as appropriate. All members qualified as
Exceptional Needs Care Coordination members will receive a wellness
survey within 30 days of enrollment with PSCS. The sutvey is based on the
standardized Short Form 12. Upon completion, all surveys are scored and
logged in an electronic database. Using national SF12 norms, members are
ranked for severity of physical health and mental health needs, The PSCS
Care Coordinators conduct telephonic screenings for high-risk members using
a care coordination screening application built in Sharepoint. This care
coordination screening assessment is based on NCQA standards. PSCS
members who are interested in Case Management and have complex clinical
needs, will be assigned to a Nurse Case Manager for longitudinal case
management,

A3.S5m, PSCS will communicate and coordinate with the local APD
office and DHS Medicaid-funded LTC providers. In this coordination and
communication, PSCS will factor in relevant referral, risk assessment and
screening information. As a part of this coordination, it has been recognized
that an integration of information from both PSCS and the local APD office
will be needed for creation of service and care plans. Once the local APD
office completes a CA/PS assessment, a copy of the assessment will be
forwarded to PSCS and utilized in the coordination of care for that member,
In coordination with traditional case management services PSCS currently
provides and will continue to provide, case managers are well trained and
currently capable of coordinating tasks and communications with coaching
and transitions and assistance with LTC providers. PSCS intends to build
these relationships and collaboration further through the CCO/PCPCH model.
PSCS will identify local LTC providers in the service area of application and
assist with coordination and communications.

A3.5.0. PSCS will reassess high-needs members at least semi-
annually or when significant changes in status occur to determine whether
their care plans are effectively meeting their needs in a person-centered,
person-directed manner. All members engaged in PSCS Case Management
and Care Coordination services are entered into a proprietary application that
tracks their plan of care longitudinally. The medical services staff




responsible for maintaining these care plans represents the same staff
conducting utilization management. When members are identified through
the Utilization Management process with new clinical needs, the medical
services staff will update their care plan as appropriate. Additionally, the
medical services staff maintains a close relationship with the local provider
network and can update a plan of care based on physician referral if the
member is not captured through the Utilization Management process.

A.3.5.p. PSCS individualized care plans will be jointly shared and
coordinated with relevant staff from the local APD with and DHS Medicaid-
funded LTC providers. In this coordination and communication, PSCS will
share individualized care plans and CA/PS assessments will be shared by
local APD staff. This information will be jointly coordinated with shared
staff. In coordination with traditional case management services PSCS
currently provides and will continue to provide, case managers are
experienced in coordinating tasks and communications and well-trained in
coaching and transitions and assistance with LTC providers. PSCS intends to
build these relationships and collaboration further through the CCO/PCPCH
mode!l. PSCS will identify local LTC providers in the service area of
application and assist with coordination and communications.

A.3.6. Care Integration
Mental Health and Chemical Dependency Services and Supports

A.3.6.a, PSCS will develop a sufficient provider network, including
providers from culturally, linguistically and socially diverse backgrounds for
members needing access to mental health and chemical dependency treatment
and recovery management services. This network includes members in all age
groups and all covered populations. PSCS is a unigue health plan contractor
in that it is a Fully Capitated Health Plan contractor and a Mental Health
Organization contractor with the State of Oregon. PSCS is truly an integrated
health plan. PSCS’s plan ensures members have access to the full continuum
of behavioral health care services and supports. PSCS has an established
integrated provider network which spans both physical and behavioral health.
PSCS’s current integrated behavioral health provider network renders
services that are culturally and linguistically relevant to the local community
and PSCS membership demographics. The following information is an
overview of PSCS behavioral provider network which demonstrates
sufficiency to meet the needs of current membership. PSCS expects to make
adjustments to PSCS behavioral health provider network as dictated by 3
factors; needs of PSCS membership, alternative service delivery strategies
and alternative payment models. PSCS’s current behavioral health provider
network consists of 3 local Community Mental Health Programs (CMHPs)




and a large variety of private subcontractors to assist with volume and
specialty care. The local CMHPs provide a wide array of mental health and
chemical dependency treatment and recovery services and suppotts. In
addition to the CMHP providers, PSCS regional behavioral health provider
network consists of (intensity of services correlates to service intensity
described in A.3.6.b):

o]

18 outpatient mental health facility based subcontractors (low
intensity).

11 outpatient mental health subcontracts with individual
practitioners (low intensity).

6 acute mental health care facility based subcontractors (high
intensity).

1 adult residential facility based subcontractor (the CMHPs
hold other residential subcontracts).

6 children crisis respite subcontractors (high intensity).

11 psychiatric residential treatment facility based
subcontractors for children (high intensity).

1 child day treatment facility based subcontractor (high
intensity).

1 adult residential alcohol and other drug treatment co-
occurring disorder facility subcontract (high intensity).

2 outpatient mental health and chemical dependency facility
based subcontracts. One subcontract is with Mosaic Medical
(an FQHC) which carries a State designation as a Person
Centered Primary Care Home (PCPCH). The other is with a
private organization (low to moderate intensity).

PSCS anticipates adding 2 more outpatient subcontracted providers who are the local
CMHPs for Crook and Jefferson counties, These providers will add additional
outpatient mental health service capacity for PSCS Deschutes county members.
These providers could also provide outpatient chemical dependency treatment
services if the need arises.

PSCS anticipates having the following contracts in place by August 1, 2012 (low to

moderate intensity).

o 7 outpatient chemical dependency treatment facility
based subcontracts which includes an opiate
substitution treatment facility (flow to moderate
intensity).

o PSCS members have access to 3 aduit and 1
adolescent Fee-For-Service residential alcohol and
other drug treatment facilities in the region. PSCS
would like to point out that 1 of the adult facilities is

" dedicated to serving only the Hispanic/Latino




population. Once the State moves to place residential
alcohol and other drug treatment services under the
CCO, PSCS is prepared to subcontract with these
facilities (moderate to high intensity).

A driving principal of PSCS behavioral health provider network development
strategy is that PSCS’s provider network must be localized and the provider
workforce should reflect the community and PSCS membership demographics. For
example, in Central Oregon, Jefferson County population demographics indicate the
County has the highest percentages of Hispanic/Latino and American Indian/Alaskan
Native residing in their County®. The Jefferson County CMHP work force is diverse
and bilingual. The CMHP works closely with the Confederated Tribes of Warm
Springs Reservation in coordinating and delivering behavioral health services. In
addition, the Latino/Hispanic residential alcohol and other drug treatment program is
located in Jefferson County. The program is administered and operated by the entity
delegated by the Local Mental Health Authority as the CMHP.

A3.6.b. PSCS will provide care coordination, treatment engagement,
preventive services, community-based services, behavioral health services, and
follow-up services for members with serious mental health and chemical dependency
conditions requiring medication-assisted therapies, residential and hospital levels of
care including members with limited social support systems. PSCS will transition
members out of hospital, including state hospitals and residential care settings into
the most appropriate, independent and integrated community-based settings, PSCS’s
integrated approach to care management is iterative and in a continuous state of
evolution, PSCS in partnership with COHB, CMHPs and other healthcare providers
will work together to achieve optimal health care outcomes by “.... bridging the gap
between the healthcare delivery system and public community health systems,
because psychosocial and environmental factors contribute roughly 80 percent to an
individual’s overall health in ways the health care system is not designed to address.
To this end, effective care coordination must integrate the efforts of healthcare
organizations with those of the communities in which members live and work.
Although the healthcare system can and should provide appropriate medical care,
maximizing the use of community resources can offer critical support to individuals
and families in the prevention and management of diseases?”. PSCS’s innovative
integrated care management strategies and models describe below are built on the
ideals describe above.

! Central Oregon Health Report, 2012 Executive Summary. Demographics. pg.8. Jefferson County population demographics;
Hispanic/Lating 19.3% (11.9% higher than Deschutes and 12.3% higher than Crook). American Indian/Alaska Mative 16.9% {16%
higher than Deschutes and 15.5% higher than Crook).

2 Care Coordinating Convening Meeting Synthesis Report September 2010. National Priorities Partnership Canvened by the
National Quality Forum.




The COHB will coordinate employment programs, and other programs and services
for members requiring more intensive services and support. The COHB will receive
a global payment from PSCS to carry out these services, The COHB will be
responsible and accountable to provide comprehensive care coordination for
members receiving intensive services. Additionally, the COHB in collaboration with
the CMHPs will create seamless transitional care pathways which move PSCS
members from the state hospital-acute hospital and residential care settings into the
least restrictive community based setting, The COHB in partnership with the CMHPs
will be responsible and accountable to ensure PSCS members have access to and
receive all medically necessary behavioral health services and supports to maintain
their independence in the community.

PSCS will execute contracts and perform administrative oversight and clinical
management of low intensity behavioral health outpatient services®, PSCS will be
responsible and accountable for all of the care coordination and creating seamless
transitional care pathways into and out of high intensity services. Low intensity
services are rendered in outpatient care settings. Services are provided by PSCS’s
local network of providers and CMHPs. PSCS’s current Care Management Team
{CMT) consists of Nurse Case Managers (NCM) and Transitional Care Coordinators
(TCC). The work is targeted at members with physical health care needs and chronic
health conditions. The CMT assesses the members healthcare needs including their
psychosocial needs. These members often have unmet psychosocial needs and
behavioral health care needs or, they are currently receiving behavioral health
treatment. Their healtheare is uncoordinated and their psychosocial needs are rarely
addressed by the healthcare system, In an effort to improve care management for
these members, PSCS has developed and implemented innovative models of care
management which bridge the systemic gaps between the healthcare systems and
needed psychosocial supports.

PSCS has developed the Integrated Care Management model (ICM), The model is
community based approach to care management. The ICM team meets weekly and is
composed of PSCS’s CMT and community behavioral health providers. PSCS will
add a Behavioral Health Utilization/Care Manager within 60-90 days and potentially
add a Behavioral Health Transitional Care Coordinator to create a multidisciplinary
integrated CMT within PSCS. Other examples of innovative community based care
management strategies include the PSCS current Performance Improvement Project
(PIP). In partnership with the Deschutes County CMPH, PSCS is using the CMHP’s
Peer Support (PSS) Specialist (who are also Certified Healthcare Workers) to engage
and motivate individuals with Severe and Persistent Mental Iilness (SPMI) to obtain a
health screening. Based on the health screening results, the PSS helps the individual

3See A.3.6.0. bullet points for a list of low Intensity service contraets. These contracts will transition over to PaclficSource by
August 1, 2012, Residential alcohol and other drug treatment service providers are currently pald as fee for service through the
Division of Medical Assistance Programs. A contracting approach ond rates for these services will be developed by PacificSource
in partnership with the COHB and the providers once the State Includes these services In the CCO global budget.




make follow-up preventative physical health and dental care appointments. The PSS
helps the individual navigate the healthcare system and develop new healthcare
pathways. The overall aim of the PIP is reduce healthcare disparities and improve the
overall health statuses for members coping with SPMI. AMHI and Children’s Wrap
Around are other innovate care managements services provided to PSCS members
through the COHB and CMHPs,

PSCS is developing a post-hospital discharge program to call every member
discharged from the hospital. This process will be facilitated by the dedicated
Transitional Care Coordinators and a structured workflow that is built on the St,
Charles Health System census data. This program will focus on telephonic care
coordination and follow up to reduce readmissions. PSCS is actively pursuing census
data from other inpatient facilities in the proposed CCO service area. In addition,
PSCS utilizes a robust reporting system (Thompson Reuters) that utilizes claims
experience to identify members at risk for readmission and targeted care
coordination. Using this data, the care coordination team will provide telephonic care
coordination and follow up to reduce readmissions. Where appropriate, members will
be enrolled in case management., PSCS will enter into a service contract with the
Central Oregon Health Board (COHB) by August 1, 2012. PSCS will delegate the
contracting, administrative oversight and clinical management of high intensity
behavioral health services to the COHB*, High intensity services include but are not
limited to EASA, acute care hospital, AMHI, assertive community treatment,
Children’s Wraparound (ICTS), 24/7 crisis services, residential and other services as
appropriate.

AJ.6.c. PSCS will integrate care and service delivery to address mental health
and chemical dependency issues by proactively screening for and identifying
members with them, arranging and facilitating the provision of care, development of
crisis intervention plans as appropriate, and coordinating care with related health
services including DHS Medicaid-funded LTC services and other health services not
funded by the Applicant. This includes members from all cultural, linguistic and
social backgrounds at different ages and developmental stages. As described in
A.3.6.2and A.3.6.b, PSCS and the COHB have a fully operational integrated service
delivery system in place which addresses the physical, mental health and chemical
dependency treatment needs of PSCS members. All behavioral health providers are
either the local CMHPs or organizations certified by the State or local CMHPs. The
network of behavioral health providers are governed by OAR 309-032-1500
(Integrated Services and Supports Rule [ISSR]). Specifically, OAR 309-032-
152533 B CHDYF) requires comprehensive screening and the provision of
appropriate services or referral to qualified professionals for the provision of care.
Behavioral health provider contracts also mandate compliance with the ISSRs,

* See A.3.6.0. bullet points for a list of high intensity service contracts. These contracts will transition over to the COHB and
CMHPs by August 1, 2012,




If the CMT (e.g. TCC or NCM) identifies a behavioral health care need, a direct
referral to the appropriate behavioral health provider is made. The CMT receives
regular trainings and education on available community resources. Additionally, the
TCCs perform data mining to identify members who present as high risk. Often, these
members are in need of behavioral health services. The TCC will make direct
referrals or they will bring the case to the ICM. The ICM ensures these members are
connected to needed behavioral health services.

PSCS has been engaged in provider education and encouraging PCPCHs and the
hospital EDs to implement the EBP Screening Intervention and Brief Treatment
(SBIRT). PSCS will plan to increase efforts around implementation of SBIRT in
these settings. PSCS on behalf of PSCS members will work through the COHB to
gain access fo critical services and supports which may not be funded through the
PSCS plan. COHB will manage high intensity services. The COHB in collaboration
with the CMHPs and PSCS will work together in the development of care plans and
access to services and supports for DHS Medicaid-funded LTC services.

A3.6.d. PSCS will organize a system of services and supports for mental
health and chemical dependency. The 2012-2015 Central Oregon Regional Health
Improvement Plan will be used as the framework to develop integrated preventative
service. Under this framework, initiatives which target behavioral health prevention
at the community and clinical level will be developed and implemented. Integration
of behavioral healthcare into the primary care setting is underway. To date, Mosaic
Medical, an FQHC and PCPCH, employs an embedded Behavioral Health
Consultant. Mosaic wilt also hire a Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner.
Mosaic also provides embedded primary care services at Deschutes County Health
Services (DCHS and is the CMHP) Annex location. The Annex location provides
services to individuals who have a SPMI, DCHS and Mosaic are also planning to co-
locate services in Redmond. All of the CMHPs are continuing to experiment with

* different models of integrative care with FQHCs. There are also models of integration
being considered with PCPCHs that are not FQHCs. St. Charles Health System
provides embedded Behavioral Health Consultants in other primary care settings
throughout the PSCS region that serve PSCS clients.

As described in previous sections, PSCS has a robust provider network in place. The
CMHPs currently provide behavioral health 24/7 crisis services which serves
members of all ages. PSCS’s behavioral health providers offer a variety of approved
Addictions and Mental Health Division (AMH) Evidenced-Based Practices and
Processes (EBPs). For a complete listing of AMH approved EBPs and practices
please follow the link:

hitp/Avww.oregon.gov/OHA/amh/ebp/practices.shtm|

The Central Oregon Health Council has developed a subcommittee called the
Psychopharmacology workgroup. This workgroup is focused on providing




Oral Health

community education and resources fo improve the utilization of pharmaceuticalis for
mental health conditions. In Iate 2011, the COHC brought renowned speaker Dr.
Daniel Carlat to Central Oregon to conduct a day long educational seminar on the
appropriate use of mental health medications. It is anticipated that this type of
evidence based continuing education will bring clinical best practices and nationally
recognized service models to Central Oregon. The Psychopharmacology workgroup’s
efforts continue with the integration of mental health prescription claims data from
the State Fee-For-Service system with physical health prescription claims data from
PSCS. This integration of claims data was enabled by the passing of SB1506 in the
2012 legislative session, which was initiated and lobbied by the Central Oregon
Health Council. Integrated pharmacy claims data is a valuable tool in coordinating
care for members and providing education to prescribers. The COHC in coordination
with the National Alliance on Mental Itiness (NAMI} will also be convening a Mental
Health Advisory Group (MHAG) during the summer of 2012. The MHAG will
consist of providers from a variety of behavioral health backgrounds, including
psychiatrists, pharmacists, psychologists and LCSW’s. This group will be charged
with guiding future initiatives of the Psychopharmacology workgroup and reporting
their findings to the 2013 Legislature.

A.3.6.e. PSCS will have a formal contractual relationship with Advantage
Dental or other appropriate DCO who serves PSCS members in the Central Oregon
service area by July 1, 2014, Discussions are currently occurring with Advantage
Dental to define how dental care will be integrated and how roles will evolve.
Potential elements of the plan moving forward will be: emergent/urgent access to
dental; prevention; and general dental care screening in schools, HeadStart, and WIC
programs. PSCS with its community partners will further develop a plan to
coordinate dental care with behavior health, physical health and the hospitals to
reduce the use of emergency rooms, operating rooms and medications by diverting
members at the right time, to the right place, and for the right care.

AJ6.1. PSCS and its community partners will coordinate care for members’
oral health needs, prevention, and wellness as well as facilitating appropriate referrals
to dental care. It will be critical to establish a 24 hour/ 7 days a week after-hours on-
call system to meet the emergency and urgent needs of members and provide access
that is local. Prevention and general oral health care provided by dental hygienists
screening children in schools, the HeadStart, and Women Infants and Children (WIC)
programs for cavities and by applying fluoride varnish to the children’s teeth will be
considered. In addition, coordination of care will occur between dental health,
behavior health, and physical health and the hospitals to reduce the use of emergency
rooms, operating rooms and medications by diverting members o appropriate care.




Hospital and Specialty Services

Al.6.g. PSCS will have agreements with hospitals and specialty care
providers to address coordination and referrals to PCPCHs and performance
expectations as well as transition plans, Currently PSCS coordinates
communications, including data sharing and transfer of admissions and coordination
of notifications received by the hospital (St. Charles Health System) with PSCS nurse
case managers and members’ PCP care managers. PSCS communication agreements
are put in place and routinely coordinated between the Hospital, PCP Clinics and
PSCS case managers on a regular basis. With incorporation of PCPCHs, PSCS
intends to continue to improve upon this process and will be facilitators, partners and
supporters of this coordination of timely care and notifications. It is intended that the
Hospital Agreements will be available at Readiness Review,

A.3.7. DHS Medicaid-funded Long Term Care Services

A3.7.a. PSCS has begun discussions with the local APD office. Moving
forward, PSCS and the local DHS APD office will begin communicating on a regular
and interval basis to create a “multi-disciplinary” approach to coordination of
member’s care. It is anticipated that PSCS and the local APD office will participate
in care conferences, hospital transition meetings, diversion/transition and case
management efforts.

A.3.8. Utilization management

A3.8.a. PSCS will perform the following UM activities tailored to address the
needs of diverse populations including members receiving DHS Medicaid-funded
LTC services, members with special health care needs, members with intellectual
disability and developmental disabilities, adults who have serious mental iliness and
children who have serious emotional disturbance.

In performing UM activities, the authorization process differs between acute and
ambulatory levels of care in that often acute episodes of care are classified as urgent
or emergent and require analysis of the necessity, appropriateness, and efficiency of ©
medical and dental services, procedures, facilities, and practitioners after service has
been initiated. However, non urgent or ambulatory levels of care can be planned for
and reviewed in a more proactive way. Requirement of preauthorization for non
urgent care allows not only procedures and treatments to be reviewed for best
practice but also to develop a holistic and member centered care plan. The
authorization system has the ability to identify acute and ambulatory care and escalate
their priority to the Health Services staff.

PSCS will use methodology and criteria for identifying over- and under-utilization of
services. PSCS utilizes a robust reporting program to identify under and over-
utilization of services. Various reports are generated by the PSCS Actuarial Services
Unit and disseminated to the Health Services teams. These reports include




hospitalization rates, emergency room utilization rates, medication adherence, disease
burden, various cost categories and clinically appropriate tests. These data are
distributed to NCMs, pharmacists and Condition Support staff for member and
provider intervention and education. PSCS is also engaging a new Fraud Waste &
Abuse vendor in 2012 to target cases of overatilization. This vendor, Thomson
Reuters, will provide monthly reports to a FWA team at PSCS who will be
responsible for identifying legitimate FWA cases and reacting appropriately (contract
termination, recoupment of payménts, law enforcement referral, etc).

In addition, PSCS has created multiple data warchouses that integrate claims,
énrollment and referral information. The data warehouse allows plan staff to actively
identify over and under utilization of services. A key element of the data warehouse
is the collection of all encounters between members and providers within the claims
system. PSCS partners with its subcontractor Ph Tech to capture all viable
encounters within a single unified system. These data sets incorporate the states own
risk and rate member stratifications, revenue buckets and claims buckets. These data
sets have been key in both the lowest cost and base cost estimate exercises performed
at the request of OHA. The combination of those data elements allow PSCS to
compare its funding to the expenses incurred by rate group for inpatient, outpatient,
and other service types.

PSCS’s approach to Utilization Management enables PSCS Medical Services staff to
tailor all requests for services to a member’s unique need. PSCS’s model combines
Utilization Management and Case Management functions into a single nursing
position. This requires a Nurse Case Manager to focus on the whole member, All of
NCMs who are dedicated to Medicaid business are expected to spend 2-4 hours daily
providing telephonic case management to their population. Case Management cases
may be initiated through the Utilization Management process, by data analysis or by
referral. This consolidated model is at the core of PSCS’s Medical Services team.

PSCS also has a dedicated Behavioral Health Department to ensure all of the
behavioral health and physical health needs of PSCS members are met. This team is
responsible for conducting UM & CM for high need mental health members and
educating nurse case managers on the unique needs of those members with special
health care needs. In addition, PSCS has the following programs to ensure that all
UM activities are conducted in a manner consistent with the needs of each member:

o PSCS staffs a weekly Integrated Care Management (ICM)
meeting for clinical staff and community providers. The
ICM group is convened to identify the unique needs of a
small subset of high-needs members and ensure that all
barriers to optimal care are removed, This often includes
providing members with an exception to the standard
Utilization Management policies.




o The Exceptional Needs Care Coordination members
(ENCC) are identified in the claims adjudication and
authorization software to ensure that all NCMs conducting
Utilization Management are aware of their intensive care
needs, Through ENCC outreach, eligible members are
assigned to Nurse Case Managers who are also

" responsible for their Utilization Management, ensuring a
member-centered approach to both CM and UM,

o The PSCS Medical Services Manager conducts weekly
training with all Medical Services staff. This training
includes member centered topics such as Motivational
Interviewing, long term care services, availability of
community resources and program contact information.
Additional topics include: Living Well with Chronic
Conditions and other areas of focus on Behavioral Health.
Ali Nurse Case Managers are expected to complete
clinical training modules each month which often focus
on the unique needs special populations.

The same Medical Services team members process acute inpatient and ambulatory
care authorizations to ensure continuity of care and inter-rater reliability for PSCS
members. However, no authorizations are required for Urgent or Emergent services
and this is clearly communicated to members and providers through various channels
(letters, newsletters, handbooks, website, and meetings). Inpatient hospital stays are
reviewed concurrenily for appropriateness of the member’s level of care. Acute
inpatient hospital stays are overseen by an embedded hospital case manager at St.
Charles Health System. The embedded case manager is able to ensure all member
needs are clearly communicated between the hospital staff and the nurse case
managers at PSCS,

PSCS’s utilization management system can be configured to flag members with
specific conditions that require specific handling. These flags can be used in several
areas:

Customer Service — Customer Service staff can be alerted
that a member calling has special handling needs.

Benefit Package - The claims system can be configured to
alter the members benefit package based on any special needs.

Authorization Requirements — The claims system can be
configured to alter the member’s authorization requirement
based on any special needs.




Approval Rules — The authorization system can be
configured to allow automatic/expedited approvals for
members with special needs,

Provider Notification — Providers assigned to care for
members with special needs are alerted of those special needs
through the same system flags.

Health Services Notification — Health Services staff are
notified during their workflow if any referral or prior
authorization is for a member with special needs.

Section 4 - Health Equity and Eliminating Health Disparities

Ad.1. PSCS and its providers will work together to develop best practices of
culturally appropriate care and service delivery to reduce health disparities and
improve health and well-being of members. Currently, PSCS works closely with its
providers in the area of providing the best possible culturally appropriate care.
Partnerships with FQHCs, RHCs, and other provider entities skilled at the multiple
cultures within their communities give PSCS a foundation to succeed in this area.
PSCS uses culturally variable communication to members, and acts as a resource for
identifying and providing access to the must culturally appropriate care in the
community. PSCS has additionally collaborated in the community to invest in the
development of additional capability of PSCS provider partners to increase access to
those providers that provide such culturally-appropriate care. Examples of these
investments include the creation of a new provider reimbursement model in the
Central Oregon service area that no longer links higher reimbursement with providing
more services, This new model allows primary care providers the opportunity to
invest in the care that is culturally appropriate for the member population. Another
investment example includes PSCS grant funding which is invested in those
providers needing financial assistance in building new capabilities, as well as new
and continuing shared savings models whereby new capability investments are paid
for by cost reductions that result from the reduction of unnecessary/inefficient
provision of care. PSCS also participates in a weekly Integrated Care Committee
with local providers to share learnings on specific member care situations including
dental and behavioral health care needs, in order to meet the needs of complex
members and fo eliminate health disparities. In addition, PSCS is partnering with
community providers to create a new Complex Care model designated as the Medical
Home to meet the needs of the complex members who receive least-optimal services
by the current health care delivery system. The reduction of health disparities and
improvement of the well-being of members will be conducted at a community level,
and by engaging with local care providers and reviewing community care experiences
formed by the many Community Health Assessments that have taken place in the
Central Oregon Service Area. From these many point of analysis, a community




health improvement plan can be jointly created with the community providers that A)
has community-wide buy-in and B) can assess if further community data should be
assessed to identify further health improvement initiatives, and mutually craft
strategies to achieve them,

A.4.2, PSCS will track and report on quality measures by these demographic factors
that include race, ethnicity, primary language, mental health and substance abuse
disorder data. PSCS has developed and implemented a written strategy and work
plan for assessing and improving the quality of care to individual members, The
work plan addresses eliminating health care disparities through access monitoring of
appointment availability and provider capacity, The strategy describes systematic
monitoring to identify special populations through enrollment demographic data and
annual review of enroliment characteristics, including but not limited to race,
language, and dual eligibility status to monitor relevance to health risk and
utilization, Currently there is a significant population of members who speak Spanish
so most materials are available in Spanish. PSCS has customer service
representatives and grievance and appeals representatives available who speak
Spanish. Member Safety is monitored through Adverse Events tracking. Tracking is
currently reported for members with special health care needs and will need to be
developed further to include information for race, ethnicity, and language.

Member satisfaction is evaluated through analysis of the CAHPS survey results. The
CAHPS results reported for subpopulations are reported to the Quality Assurance
Utilization Management Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee (QAUMPT) for
review and potential follow-up action.

PSCS monitors the utilization of available interpreter services annually. The intent of
monitoring languages utilized is to identify early the need to make materials available
in langunages other than English and Spanish.

PSCS has some experience in the past year with reporting on members with mental
health conditions. A current Performance Improvement Project is focused on
improving preventive services to members with Serious Persistent Mental Illness.
The population was identified through ICD 9 codes. ER and Hospital utilization as
well as visits to PCPs and the use of preventive services were reviewed and compared
to the general population. This analysis helped identify the need to focus the project
on preventive services.

Client Process Monitoring Systemn data (CPMS) is submitted by behavioral health
providers to the state, This data includes demographic information and behavioral
health utilization data. It is used for monitoring providers' utilization rates and
calculating measures for Quality Improvement Report (outcome measures of clients).
This data source is can be used to assess utilization and performance.

Epidemiological Data on Alcohol, Drugs, Mental Health and Gambling is available
from the Addictions and Mental Health Division website. This site includes




information and data for 50 state measures and 41 county measures that can help
local communities better understand substance use and mental health of their
population.

Reporting quality measures by race, ethnicity, and language will involve ensuring
that data is available in member enrollment tables used for reporting. The process to
ensure the data is available has been initiated. Reporting specific quality measures for
mental health and substance abuse may require using claims data queried for relevant
ICD 9 and CPT codes to identify indicative diagnoses and services if the data is not
available through CPMS or Oregon Addictions and Mental Health data. Survey data
may also be used to identify these populations.

The claims and enroliment systems have the ability to capture and track race,
ethnicity, primary language and any chronic discase state. These fields may be
captured automaticalily if provided through the 834 enrollment feed from OHA,
captured by plan staff passively during member interactions, or proactively by plan
communication with members.

Chronic disease states such as mental health and substance abuse disorder can be
identified within claims and referral data within PSCS systems. Once identified these
disease states can be utilized for a variety of uses:

PCPCH — Members with a chronic disease can be encouraged
to seek their care within a patient centered primary care home
to receive the most complete care for their conditions.

Customer Service Interaction — Customer Service staff
alerted by the system that a caller has a chronic condition can
educate the member on the plans quality programs most
beneficial to the member.

Case Management — Members with identified chronic
conditions can be passively enrolled into a case management
system,

Alternate Payment - Members with identified chronic
conditions can be passively enrolled into an alternative
payment program that creates incentives for providers
delivering care to the chronically ill.

The inclusion of these chronic disease states and the enrollment status information
directly in the claims system allows a unified data set to be maintained. The unified
data set allows for easy reporting on expense, utilization and trend of race, ethnicity,
 language, mental health and substance abuse disorder data, and chronic disease states,




Section 5 - Payment Methodologies that Support the Triple Aim

A.5.1. PSCS’s payment methodologies will support and promote the Triple Aim.
PSCS will provide comprehensive coordination and create shared responsibility
through alternative payment methodologies. PSCS implemented a new community-
wide OHP capitation methodology which began February 2012. This new
methodology removes volume-of-service based financial incentives and replaces
them with incentives that reward primary care (including those who have applied for
and received PCPCH status) for providing the right care at the right time. This same
new agreement provides shared savings incentives for PCPCH primary care providers
as well as specialty providers for appropriate management of care as measured by
performance in a specialty care fund, a hospital fund, and a prescription drug fund.

PSCS will provide financial support that is differentially based. Financial support for
certain PCPCH providers has been and will continue to be provided for different
PCPCH-tiered providers based on PSCS agreement with COIPA. This agreement
provides for special funding mechanisms (i.e. additional PMPM payments) for
enhanced delivery of primary care. In addition, PSCS has provided grant-based
funding to many of the PCPCH providers based on capability and the need for
investment dollars for new innovative models.

PSCS will align financial incentives for evidence based and best emerging practices.
PSCS’s existing payment methodologies which include Medical Home incentive
payments aligned with quality and best practice metrics, are designed to promote high
quality care in tandem with cost-efficiencies, In addition, PacificSource has
partnered with COIPA who is investing in new informational capabilities which will
lead to community-wide evidence-based best practices and will provide a data-based
sclution to variations in care in the CCO population,

Section 6 - Health Information Technology

A.6.1. Health Information Technology (HIT), Electronic Health Record Systems (EHRs)
and Health Information Exchange (HIE)

A.6.1.a. PSCS plans to improve HIT in the areas of data analytics, quality
improvement, member engagement through HIT (using tools such as email, personal
health records, etc.) and other HIT. PSCS actively applies data analytics in numerous -
areas with a goal of improving population health and engagement. PSCS has recently
acquired significant analytical capability with the implementation of Thomson
Reuters Advantage Suite which is an analytical tool specifically focused at the
management of member health through the application of industry standard analytical
models that have the ability to risk stratify members for management in our condition
management programs. This application also has the ability to apply predictive




modeling with the goal of intervention prior to significant episodes occurring. This
system can take numerous inputs including: Claims Data, Prescription Data, Lab
value data, Vision data and EHR information. When combined, this information will
provide a holistic view of member health and adherence to standardized treatment
plans. This standardized data can be used to provide a feedback loop to our health
system stakeholders on the quality and efficacy of care delivered. As described in
more detail below, PSCS is also actively working with providers to encourage the
adoption of EHRs and supporting the Central Oregon HIE efforts.

PSCS’s community partner St. Charles Health System (SCHS) is currently providing
EMR platforms for all community hospitals and subsidies to any provider
implementing EMR in the community. SCHS is committed to substantial funding for
a HIE that will ultimately include all providers in Central Oregon. There is a
community Steering Committee which includes key stakeholders from provider
groups (COIPA, BMC, SCMG, etc) to determine needs for data analytics, quality
measures and a personal health record for members. Member engagement is critical
for the success of the CCO and includes open access for any member through a
member portal; the personal health record can be updated and will be available for the
member’s providers. Finally, PacificSource is currently in the process of
implementing an enterprise system to facilitate secure and non-secure messaging via
email and SMS/Text to our members and providers for the purposes of improved
engagement and communication efficiency,

A6.1.b. PSCS in working with community partners is developing strategies to track
and increase adoption rates of federal ONC certified EHRs. PSCS currently tracks
adoption of EHRs though frequent provider engagements with provider relations staff
who regularly engage the providers on capability, technology interfaces between
providers and PSCS, and technical capability growth/planning in the provider’s
offices. These engagements are supplemented by other workshops and surveys
conducted by provider relations staff in which EHR and other technology planning on
the part of the provider is discovered and assessed. In addition, neaily all the physical
health professional providers in the CCO service area are affiliated with an
independent practice association who tracks and makes available information on EHR
adoption. The Central Oregon provider community is using certified ONC-certified
EHRs, with a very high adoption rate running between 70-80%, possibly the highest
in the State, SCHS is upgrading the Bend and Redmond hospital systems to achieve

" Stage 1 Meaningful Use status. The rural hospital areas, Madras and Prineville, are
scheduled for 2013. In order to maintain high meaningful use standards, the SCHS
subsidy applies only toward certified EHRs. OCHIN is under contract with SCHS to
move EMRs out to the community, monitoring adoption is a part of their service
terms. In terms of increasing adoption rates of EHRs, PSCS has and will continue to
use various strategies. PSCS has already provided grant funding to some providers,
including safety net providers, to enhance workflows and use of EHR within a




medical home expansion, This grant funding is available every year for provider
enhancements to patient care through the robust use of EHR technology. PSCS will
continue to monitor EHR adoption and identify methods to further increase usage that
are consistent with our Triple Aim goals. Opportunities being explored include
establishing eligibility criteria for funding of medical home development based on
having an established and robustly-used EHR. PSCS may also consider future
incentives for differential reimbursement for providers dependmg on those practices
which have and robustly use their EHR,

A.6.1.c. PSCS with its community partners will facilitate meaningful use and HIE,
The HIE company under contract with SCHS, Relay Health~ a subsidy of McKesson,
is the partner designated as the connection point and ensures secure routing and
identification. Providers are required to register with Relay Health for access to the
information. Relay Health has access for external providers (after registration and
validation), and those in-area providers without an EHR, to log in to a web portal.
This configuration allows enrolled providers access to secure messaging, lab results
and other platforms under development. Currently over 150 providers without an
EHR are registered with Relay Health for these services. In addition, SCMG,
Mosaic, COPA, Harney County, Mountainview Hospital and others have electronic
lab results. SCMG (Redmond and Prineville Family Care) and Mosaic receive ED
notifications through the HIE, PSCS has been working with various providers to
fulfill meaningful use criteria through investments in grant funding to support
capability, staff, and workflow development to achieve meaningful use standards, and
will continue to do so in the future. PSCS may also consider future incentives for
differential reimbursement for providers who provide information to, and robustly
participate in community-based HIE, or an HIO, though those incentives are not
currently established. PSCS is providing significant leadership and engagement with
a newly formed group called the Central Oregon Health Information Exchange
(COHIE). The focus of this group is to pool regional resources to support the Triple
Aim through the use of HIT. This initiative is well supported by all of the primary
stakeholders in the regional health system. The COHIE team is looking to implement

. best practices as learned from other successful HIE initiatives that have been
implemented in other regions of Oregon and the country. Early goals are to leverage
existing technologies and standardized interfaces to minimize time to market and
maximize Triple Aim benefit to members and stakeholders. The initial focus will be
to establish the infrastructure for the basic exchange of health information among
stakeholders. Once this is in place, additional opportunities will exist for more
sophisticated analytics and efforts to improve quality and patient engagement. PSCS
has taken an early step along this path with the implementation of a daily patient
census interface between SCHS Emergency Departments and PSCS with the goal of
early detection of significant health episodes so that nurse case managers can develop
intervention plans as needed.




APPENDIX B — Provider Participation and Operations Questionnaire

Section 1 - Service Area and Capacity
PacificSource Community Solutions is applying for the areas as listed in the Appendix B — Table B-1, Please
note that 4 of the counties (Grant, Harney, Wheeler, and Lake) are pending due to current discussion, It is
anticipated these 4 counties may join the PacificSource Community Solutions Central Oregon CCO. Please see
attached, Appendix B - Table B-1 (Participating Provider Table).

Section 2 - Standards Related To Provider Participation
Standard #1 - Provision of Coordinated Care Services

PacificSource Community Sotutions will have a comprehensive and integrated care management network and
delivery system network servicing Medicaid and dually eligible members for the providers as noted below.
PSCS will either contract directly with these providers or work collaboratively with community partners such as
the COHB and Public Health to establish contracting mechanisms to allow the development of a comprehensive
and integrated care management and delivery system network that will meet the needs of PSCS members, As
the CCO evolves and the needs for other providers are identified, PSCS will work collaboratively with its
community partners to facilitate access fo these providers for PSCS members.

Acute inpatient hospital psychiatric  Health Care Interpreters Patient Centered Primary Care
care (qualified/certified) Home

Addiction treatment Health education, health promotion, Peer Specialists

Ambulance and emergency medical  health literacy Pharmacies and Durable Medical
transportation Home Health Equipment

Assertive Community Treatment Hospice Rural Health Centers

Chemical dependency treatment Hospital School-Based Health Centers
providers Imaging Specialty Physicians

Community Health Workers Laboratories Supported Employment

Community prevention services Mental Health Providers Tertiary Hospital Services

Dialysis services Navigators Tribal and Urban Indian Services

Federally qualified heaith center Oral Health Providers Urgent Care Centers

Palliative Care
Please see Table B-1 (Participating Provider Table) attached.
ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS ABOUT SPECIFIED INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM COMPONENTS

Standard #2 - Providers for Members with Special Health Care Needs

PSCS shall ensure those Members who have special health care needs such as those who are aged, blind, disabled,
or who have high health care needs, multiple chronic conditions, mental illness or chemical dependency or who
are children/youths placed in a substitute care setting by Children, Adults and Families (CAF) and the Oregon
Youth Authority (OYA) (or children receiving adoption assistance from CAF) have access to primary care and
referral providers with expertise to treat the full range of medical, mental health and chemical dependency
conditions experienced by these Members, As PSCS develops a relationship with a DCO, dental will become part
of this process. The providers and facilities identified in the Participating Provider Table or referral
provider/facility (Standard #1 Table), will be identified by special skills or sub-specialties necessary to provide a
comprehensive array of medical services to Members with Special Care Needs or Members who have high health
care needs, multiple chronic conditions, mental illness or chemical dependency. In order to reduce costs to health
care associated with chronic disease, PSCS will refer members to the Living Well Program and its Spanish-
language equivalent, Tomando Control de su Satud, administered regionally by Deschutes County Health
Services. Specially designed for people living with multiple chronic conditions, both mental and physical, Living
Well is an evidence-based chronic disease self-management program that consists of six weekly two-hour

- workshops that teach tools for living a healthy life with chronic health conditions in a culturaily and linguistically
appropriate manner. The Living Well Program is an effective intervention for addressing the needs of PSCS
members who incur the highest costs and use the most services, with significant return on investment, PSCS’s
collaboration with the Living Well Program will include:




* Covering workshops as a primary benefit for members with chronic mental or physical health conditions,
*  Setting up referral systems from primary care medical homes and specialty clinics to Living Well.
¢ Providing incentives for plan members to participate.

Standard #3 - Publicly funded public health and community mental health services

PSCS has executed agreements with publicly funded providers for authorization of and payment for point-of-
contact services (i.e. immunizations, sexually transmitted diseases and other communicable diseases) and for
cooperation with the local mental health authorities.

Publicly Funded Health Care and Service Programs Table
Please see Publicly Funded Health Care and Services Program Table attached.

(a) As members of the Central Oregon Health Board and Central Oregon Health Council; the three counties
(Deschutes, Crook, and Jefferson) have been involved in the development of the CCO application. Each county
has assisted in the writing of sections of the application and the Directors of Deschutes and Crook County have
been active members in the CCO Workgroup Committee overseeing the process. The Public Health Directors
will be in discussions with Pacific Source staff in the development of additional services that public health may
provide to improve the health of the citizens of our three counties.

{b) Current contracts for public health services are in place for Deschutes, Jefferson, and Crook., Additional
opportunities may develop as the CCO evolves which will be pursued.

{c) PSCS has agreements with these counties.
Standard #4 — Services for the American Indian/Alaska Native Population (AI/AN)

(a) PSCS has experience and ability in providing culturally relevant Coordinated Care Services for the A/AN
population, PSCS current Oregon Health Plan (OHP) membership includes the AI/AN population, As such,
PSCS has developed policies and procedures specifically addressing responsibilities to this population. This
includes providing AI/AN members with access to providers of their native culture and the processing of claims
for this population based on A/AN eligibility as reported on the 834 files received from the State. In addition, our
nurse case managers work in collaboration with the tribal clinic case managers and providers to assist with any
concerns or issues that arise within this population and to ensure they receive services that are culturally
appropriate.

Standard #5 — Indian Health Services (IHS) and Tribal 638 facilities

(a) All PSCS members who are identified by OHA to be of Indian Heritage have the ability to be able to seek
services with either a contracted provider or an Indian Health Service Facility. If the service or item is subject to
Prior Authorization, the AIVAN provider must follow and comply with all Prior Approval (PA) requirements. It is
the AT/AN providers’ responsibility to contact PSCS prior to providing services. All services requiring prior
authorization are provided on PSCS website at www.communitysolutions.pacificsource.com, Periodic updates to
the prior authorization requirements are also communicated to contracted providers via efectronic notice.

Standard #6 — Integrated Service Array (ISA) for children and adolescents

(a) PSCS will provide services as included in the Integrated Service Array. PSCS will enter into a service
contract with the Central Oregon Health Board (COHB). Under the service contract, the COHB will further
develop and administer the Central Oregon Integrated Service Array (ISA) in accordance with OAR 309-032-
1500 (Integrated Services and Supports Rules). The COHB ensures that appropriate and needed health services
including behavioral health and public health are provided to the residents of Central Oregon', Currently, Central
Oregon County Mental Health Programs (CMHPs) and PSCS, as the Central Oregon Mental Health Organization,
contract with a number of agencies and individuals in order to provide the full continuum of care for individuals
determined eligible for the ISA, The ISA contracts are currently executed by ABHA, a subcontractor of Pacific
Source. The ISA provider network includes both traditional and non-traditional services and supports which are
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provided in variety of settings, Care Coordination for the TSA population will continue to be primarily performed
by the local CMHPs in collaboration with other providers as appropriate.

(b) It is anticipated that COHB will administer the ISA as part of an agreement with PSCS in the manner consistent
with the following approach. Central Oregon counties in partnership with ABHA 'have invested in training, coaching
and monitoring to achieve full-fidelity wrap around services based on system of care principles, with a team creating a
family-driven plan for each child in partnership with other child-serving systems. As a result, Central Oregon counties
have reduced the percentage of children needing residential care, shortened the length of stay, and ¢reated a menu of
community-based supports that enabie children to be maintained in permanent homes in the community. Individuals
and families served in Centrat Oregon, also receive services as part of the ISA with wrap around as the primary model
used for team facilitation and care coordination. The ltocal CMIHPs for Central Oregon determine ISA eligibility and
pariner with all local child serving agencies through the wrap process and Community Care Coordination Committees,
Trainings in wraparouind and team facilitation have occurred and the services and supports are provided-when
documented as a need in the individual’s wrap around Plan of care. Psychiatric Residential Treatment Services, Sub
acute and Acute levels of care are utilized in a manner that best meets the needs of the individual and as medicatly
necessary.

(c) PSCS’s service delivery approach is family-driven, strength-based, culturally sensitive, and enhances
community-based service delivery. PSCS expects its providers, community partners, COHB and local CMHPs to
adopt similar practice guidelines currently being utilized and those that will be developed. The practice
guidelines prescribe the elements needed to insure that the service delivery approach delivered to individuals who
are determined eligible for the ISA meet the requirements for the Wraparound model, are family-driven,
community-based and culturally competent,

Standard #7A— Mental Illness Services

(a) PSCS will provide community-based mental health services to Members, including Members receiving home
and community-based services under the State’s 1915(i) SPA. Al services will be provided through PSCS’s
current community behavioral health (including mental health) provider network in partnership with the Central
Oregon Health Board. Our current behavioral health provider network consists of 3 local Community Mental
Health Programs (CMHPs). The local CMHPs provide a wide array of mental health and chemical dependency
treatment and recovery services and supports. The CMHPs also provide most of the home and community-based
mental health services to Members who qualify for these services under the State Plan 1915(i) wavier.

(b) PSCS will screen all eligible members for mental illness to promote prevention, early detection, intervention
and referral to mental health treatment — especially at initial contact or physical exam, initial prenatal exam, when
a Member shows evidence of mental illness, or when a Member over-utilizes services. The network of behavioral
health providers is governed by OAR 309-032-1500 (Integrated Services and Supports Rule [ISSR]). Specifically,
OAR 309-032-1525 @) )BYCYD)(F) requires comprehensive screening and the provision of appropriate
services or referral to qualified professionals for the provision of care. Behavioral health provider contracts also
mandate compliance with the ISSR. PSCS has been engaged in provider education and encouraging PCPCHs and
the hospital EDs to implement the EBP Screening Intervention and Brief Treatment (SBIRT). PSCS will plan to
increase efforts around implementation of SBIRT in these settings. Additionally, PSCS will continue to
emphasize and encourage screening for and early detection of behavioral health disorders in all primary care
settings and at the initial prenatal exams. PSCS has a robust reporting software used to identify high-needs
members (who maybe over utilizing cerfain services). These reporting systems, use predictive modeling
algorithms to integrate member demographics, disease burden and claims history to identify members who are
likely to require high resource levels in the near future. This data is overlaid with Clinicai Intelligence Rules
which help to identify members with interveneable conditions.

Standard #7B — Chemical Dependency Services

(a) PSCS will provide community-based chemical dependency services to members, including members receiving
home and community-based services under the State’s 1915(1) SPA. All services will be provided through
PSCS’s current community behavioral health (including chemical dependency) provider network in partnership
with the Central Oregon Health Board. This network consists of 3 local Community Mental Health Programs
{CMHPs). The local CMHPs provide a wide array of mental health and chemical dependency treatment and
recovery services and supports, The CMHPs also provide most of the home and community-based menial health
services to members who qualify for these services under the State Plan 1915(i) wavier. PSCS anticipates adding




2 more outpatient subcontracted providers who are the local CMHPs for Crook and Jefferson counties. These
providers will add additional outpatient mental health service capacity for PSCS Deschutes county members and
could also provide outpatient chemical dependency treatment services if the need arises.

(b) PSCS will screen all eligible members for chemical dependency to promote prevention, early detection,
intervention and referral to chemical dependency treatment — especially at initial contact or physical exam, initial
prenatal exam, when a Member shows evidence of mental illness, or when a Member over-utilizes services. The
network of behavioral health providers are governed by OAR 309-032-1500 (Integrated Services and Supports
Rutle [ISSR]). Specifically, OAR 309-032-1525(3)}(d)}BYC)D)F) requires comprehensive screening and the
provision of appropriate services or referral to qualified professionals for the provision of care. Behavioral health
provider contracts also mandate compliance with the ISSR. As noted above, PSCS has robust reporting software
used to identify high-needs members (who maybe over wtilizing certain services).

Standard #8 — Pharmacy Services and Medication Management

(a) PSCS has experience and ability to provide a prescription drug benefit as a Covered Service

for funded Condition/Treatment Pairs. PSCS, with its parent, PSCHP, Inc., currently manage a prescription drug
benefit for ~40,000 OHP members and ~16,000 Medicare members. The organization has significant experience
providing a prescription drug benefit that is consistent with OHP’s Prioritized List of Covered Services. Through
a customized benefit design algorithm, PSCS ensures payments for funded conditions, avoids payment for
unfunded conditions, and provide exceptions to those members who would otherwise not receive certain
medications. We propose using the current Medicaid formulary for the CCO population which contains over
18,000 different drug products every funded therapeutic class including prescription and OTC dirugs.

(b) PSCS intends to offer a closed formulary to its CCO members. The proposed formulary restricts certain brand
name medications as non-formulary, but maintains treatment options in all funded therapeutic classes as noted
above. The Utilization Management process allows all members and providers the opportunity to request non-
formulary medications through the Formulary Exception process. When formulary medications have been
exhausted or are not clinically appropriate, exceptions to the formulary status are granted by our clinical
pharmacist reviewers. The Quality Assurance Utilization Management Pharmacy & Therapeutics (QAUMPT)
Committee is a clinical committee consisting of ~12 Medical Doctors, Nurses and Pharmacists from the PSCS
service area. With the help of Pharmacy Services clinical staff, QAUMPT maintains a clinically appropriate,
evidence-based formulary. The formulary is reviewed at least annually and new molecular entities are reviewed
within 6 months of being FDA. approved. The QAUMPT Committee reviews medications for clinical
appropriateness and inclusion on the formulary while the Pharmacy Services clinical staff is responsible for
ensuring that treatment options exist in all therapeutic categories, including OTC treatment options, The
Pharmacy Services staff is also responsible for presenting community practice standards and requests for
coverage policy changes to the QAUMPT on behalf of local providers to ensure the PSCS’s clinical policies are
reflective of local practice patterns. All medication related Coverage Policies are developed by the Pharmacy
Services clinical staff after consultation with evidence-based literature, national treatment guidelines, FIDA
approved labeting and industry best practices. All coverage policies must be formally adopted by the QAUMPT
Committee prior to enforcement. Coverage Policies are reviewed annually for updates to ensure current best
practices are enforced. To ensure transparency and promote best practices, PSCS’ policy is to post all coverage policies
on the Member and Provider websites at www.communitysolutions.pacificsource.com. All formulary edits, utilization
management resirictions and pharmacy messaging is decided by the Pharmacy Services staff, in consultation with the
QAUMPT, and directed to the PBM for configuration,

(c) PSCP will provide an adequate pharmacy network to provide sufficient access to all enrollees and will
communicate formulary choices and changes to the network and other medical professionals. PSCS contracts
with a national Pharmacy Benefif Management (PBM) company to provide nationwide pharmacy access. The
current PBM is Express Scripts, Inc. In 2013, PSCS will be contracted with CVS Caremark. Both PBMs offer
nationwide pharmacy aceess with over 60,000 network pharmacies. The Pharmacy network information is
available to members and providers on our website at www.communitysolutions.pacificsource.com. The Prior
Authorization and Formulary Exception Request form is also available on our website and can be submitted by
members or providers. In the case of formulary or network changes which adversely impact members or
providers, PSCS will always provide advance notice of at least 30 days in written or electronic format. PSCS
contracts directly with a mail order pharmacy, Wellpartner Mail Order, to provide our Medicaid members with up
to a 60 day supply of covered medications, delivered through the mail.




(d) PSCS has the ability to process pharmacy claims using a real-time claims adjudication and provider
reimbursement system and capture all relevant clinical and historical data elements for claims paid in their
entirety by the CCO, and when the coordination of benefits is needed to bill Third Party Liability (TPL) when the
CCO is the secondary coverage. PSCS outsources pharmacy claims adjudication to a Pharmacy Benefit
Management (PBM) company. As mentioned above, the contracted PBM will be changing on 1/1/2013. Both
PBM’s process all pharmacy transactions from network pharmacies in real-time. Payment is guaranteed at the
point-of-sale when a network pharmacy submits an electronic claim to the PBM, Since 2006, PSCS has
coordinated benefits for dual eligible members to ensure that both primary and secondary pharmacy claims are
paid in real-time at point-of-sale. In the case of Medicare & Medicaid dual eligible status, two enrollment
segments are established in the pharmacy adjudication software. One enroliment segment is set to pay as primary
and the other to pay as secondary. The PSCS Enrollment & Billing team, in partnership with a subcontractor,
Performance Health Technology, LTD, (PH Tech) and the State of Oregon, are responsible for designating
primary and secondary pharmacy eligibility in the primary eligibility database, called CIM. An eligibility extract
is pulled from CIM nightly and submitted to the PBM for pharmacy claims adjudication. The pharmacy claims
platform can adjudicate both primary and secondary claims in real-time, according to the eligibility flag set by the
Enrollment & Billing team. The Pharmacy Services Helpdesk is available Monday — Friday, 7am - 6pm, for any
pharmacy adjudication issues that arise at the point-of-sale and will work with the Enroliment & Billing team to
ensure accurate eligibility setup.

(e) PSCS has the capacity to process pharmacy Prior Authorizations (PA) with in-house staff and through a
contracted PBM. PSCS maintains an internal Pharmacy Helpdesk, available Monday — Friday, 7 am — 6 pm, to
which prescribers or pharmacies are able to submit PAs, The Pharmacy Helpdesk works directly with pharmacies
and providers to ensure timely processing of all Coverage Determinations, which are defined as Prior
Authorizations, Formulary Exceptions and other Utilization Management edits. Providers and pharmacies are able
to contact the Pharmacy Helpdesk via direct telephone line or via fax during normal business hours (above).
Members can reach the helpdesk through our Member Customer Service team. The helpdesk also triages
emergency faxes and voicemails received after business hours and on weekends to ensure timely resolution of all
requests. The helpdesk is staffed with 4 full-time pharmacy technicians, a full-time pharmacy team leader and a
clinical pharmacist. All coverage determinations are logged in a proprietary Authorization Tracking software
which tracks decisions, communication points with providers, members and pharmacies and timeliness of
decisions made.

(f) Requested information regarding PSCS’s contractual arrangement with its PBM can be found in Appendix B
~ Pharmacy Contract Information. Please see attached.

(g) PSCS has the ability to engage and utilize 340B enrolled providers and pharmacies as a part of the CCO.
Mosaic Medical, the local FQHC, is pursuing a vendor based 340B program. St. Charles Medical Center is
developing a 340B pharmacy program. PSCS is actively engaged in dialogue and will partner with these
organizations to ensure eligible partners receive the lowest available cost for prescription medications.

(h) PSCS’s ability and intent to use Medication Therapy Management (MTM) as part of a Patient Centered
Primary Care Home is as follows: PSCS has an active MTM program in place for its MAPD beneficiaries,
including dual eligibles. PSCS contracts with local pharmacists to provide face-to-face consultation to our most
vulnerable Medicare members. Eligible members can receive MTM services from their dispensing pharmacist or
from consultant pharmacists in the community, PSCS provides private office space to consultant pharmacists and
reaches out to patients telephonically to set up appointments in order to ensure this service is widely used. In
2012, we anticipate extending this service to our Medicaid members in a limited fashion,

(i) PSCS has the ability to utilize E-prescribing and its interface with Electronic Medical Records (EMR).
Through its PBM contract(s), PSCS has access to a nationwide network of pharmacies capable of receiving
electronic prescriptions. In the proposed CCO service area there are approximately 40 pharmacies currently
coniracted to receive electronic prescriptions. This represents the vast majority of pharmacies in the service area.
PSCS is working diligently with the new PBM to provider our provider network with real-time access to the
PSCS formulary through their EMR. It is anticipated that this functionality will be in place in 2013.




Standard #9 — Hospital Services

(a) PSCS will assure access for Members to inpatient and outpatient hospital service as follows. Urgent care
services including mental health crisis or emergencies are covered 24 hours a day, 7 days a week whether in-area
or'outside the service area. Urgent care services do not require prior authorization, Members are directed to call
their PCP with an urgent care condition or go to an urgent care office nearby. The PCP office will be available 24
hours a day, 7 days a week. For Mental health crisis, members are directed to call the mentai health crisis line,
911, or go directly fo the emergency room. Emergency services do not require prior approval. For physical
emergency medical conditions, members are directed to call 911 or go to the emergency room, If members are not
sure their condition is an emergency, they are encouraged to call their PCP’s office that can help direct their care.
Physical Heaith and Mental Health Emergencies are described in the PSCS member handbook and by PSCS
custfomer service team, For outpatient services requiring prior authorization, requests will be received and
processed according to regulatory timelines and notice requirements. An organizational determination to provide,
authorize or discontinue a service to a member is made as expeditiously as possible. All prior authorization
requests are date-stamped with the date the request is received. Compliance with required timelines is reviewed
monthly by Corporate Quality Assurance and periodically by Tnternal Audit, If prior authorization timelines are
found to be outside established guidelines, an action plan for correction is developed by the manager of Medical
Services and reviewed by the Medical Director once completed.

(b) PSCS will educate Members about how to appropriately access care from Ambulance, Emergency Rooms, and
urgent care/walk-in clinics, and less intensive interventions other than their Primary Care home. Appropriate use
of these services is managed through benefit design, network development, communication strategies, and care
coordination and case management. Ambulance services are covered for emergencies only and in non-emergent
situations when transportation in another vehicle couid put member’s health in danger. Emergency services are
reimbursed when a patient’s medical needs cannot be adequately addressed by their primary care provider or
urgent care services. PSCS makes great efforts to contract with a broad network of primary care providers and
urgent care facilities to decrease the need for Emergency services. This includes contractual provisions to
encourage after-hours and same day access to primary care appointments and geographically dispersed urgent
care clinics as well as medical home contracts which provide financial incentive to clinics whose membership
maintains low utilization of Emergency Services. PSCS utilizes claims reports to identify members who
frequently use Emergency Services. Dedicated Transitional Care Coordinators use these reports to identify good
candidates for intervention and work to improve.patient access to necessary services (medical and behavioral
health care, food stamps, social support, etc) in order to reduce unnecessary use of Emergency Services. As
appropriate, the Care Coordinators will refer patients with complex medical conditions to internal Case Managers
and external Nurse Care Coordinators who are embedded in medical homes and/or contracted Community Health
Workers. Member Handbooks and Provider Directories noting the provider’s languages will be provided to
members annually and upon enroliment to ensure members can choose providers that are fluent in the member’s
primary language. Materials are written in 6™ grade reading level and will also be transiated into Spanish, since
we meet the thresholds in our service areas for this need. Customer Service team members can also provide
members with pertinent information in another form, if required. Interpreter services are also available, npon
request, for assistance at their doctor office visits, either in person or by phone. The plan will provide
transportation services to and from healthcare appointments for members facing significant culture or physical
transportation challenges. PSCS work with community partners in our service area to provide these services to our
members to ensure they get needed care. PSCS will also provide members with newsletters that include pertinent
benefit information, resources, and other important information about their health and access to ambu]ance
emergency, and urgent care.

(c) PSCS will monitor and adjudicate claims for Provider Preventable Conditions based on Medicare guidelines -
for the following:

Adverse events and Hospital Aequired Conditions (HACs) are identified through utilization management, case
management, claims review, reports from physicians, and member complaints.

+ Adverse Events: Adverse Events are defined as incidents in which harm resulted o an enrolled member or harm
could have potentially occurred through receiving health care. Reviews of the events are performed by the health
plan medical director, the QAUMPT Committee and/or an appropriate consultant, Events are logged and tracked
over time. The completed reviews are peer protected and considered at the time of practitioner recredentialing.




Frequent or severe events attributable to a single provider or facility will be subject to corrective action per policy
and procedure. An annual report is reviewed by the QAUMPT Committee.

*Hospital Acquired Conditions (HACs): The PSCS claims payment system is configured to stop payment and
trigger clinical review for claims received which meet the definition of HACs, as defined by Medicare. All
incidents of Adverse Events and/or HACs identified through the prior authorization and referral processes are
reported to the Health Services Quality Improvement team. The Quality Improvement team reviews and
compiles rates of Adverse Events and HACs for reporting to the Quality Assurance Utilization Management and
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee (QAUMPT). The Adverse Event and HAC’s rates are used to inform the
confracting and credentialing process to ensure that PSCS maintains a high-quality network of providers and
hospitals. PSCS has reporfed Medicare HAC’s and Serious Reportable Adverse Events to CMS for the past two years.
Policies and procedures have been developed and the process has been reviewed by a certified Medicare C&D
Validation audit firm. The same process will be executed for Medicaid members.

{d) PSCS’s readmission policy will be enforced and monitored. PSCS receives hospital census data from the
major hospital system in Ceniral Oregon. In addition, PSCS has embedded a Nurse Case Manager (NCM}) in St
Charles Medical Center. The census data, along with the embedded NCM, are part of a robust case management
system to reduce readmissions. Al PSCS members admitted to the hospital are screened and, when appropriate,
actively case managed during their inpatient stay, PSCS members who transition out of the hospital and require
additional services are assigned to a Nurse Case Manager or Care Coordinator for ongeing clinical follow up. The
case management and care coordination interventions target areas that are known to cause hospital readmissions
and improve overall quality of care (follow-up PCP appointment, medication adherence, fall risk, et¢). PSCS is
also developing a telephonic outreach and care coordination program through our Transitional Care Coordinators
with a structured workflow built on hospital census data, to ¢all every member discharged from the hospital for
follow-up and readmission prevention, PSCS is actively working with other inpatient facilities in the CCO service
area to coordinate daily exchange of census data, Additional members at risk for re-admission are identified
through our robust claims reporting suite and targeted for care coordination and case management, where
appropriate. Reporting of readmissions, urgent care and ED visits using claims history will be provided to each
Primary Car¢ Medical Home contracted with PSCS. This data is used to inform process improvement and quality
improvement opportunities with our provider network.

(e) PSCS employs the innovative strategies above including targeted interventions based on predictive modeling
through our reporting suite (Thomson Reuters) to decrease unnecessary hospital utilization.

Section 3 - Assurances of Compliance with Medicaid Regulations and Reguirements

1. - Medicaid Assurance #1 - Emergency and Urgent Care Services: Provider shall be responsible for
responding to or making arrangements for emergent needs of Members with respect to Covered Services twenty-
four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week, including holidays. In the event that Provider is unable to
provide required Covered Services, Provider shall arrange for a Covering Practitioner.

2. Medicaid Assurance #2 - Continuity of Care: The Medical Services staff documents ail authorizations
and referrals in a software application which are then available for providers and nurse case managers to review to
ensure care coordination and reduce duplication of services, The Medical Services management receives a daily
report with the total number of authorizations and referrals which includes the date the request was received. This
allows them to ensure requests received will be processed according to regulatory timelines and notice
requirements established by the Oregon Health Authority.

3. Medicaid Assurance #3 - Medical Record Keeping: Policies and procedures are in place to ensure
protected health information (PHI) maintained by PSCS is appropriately safeguarded against inappropriate uses or
disclosures. The procedures describe appropriate storage and destruction of PHI, PSCS performs medical record
reviews of primary care provider record keeping on an annual basis. Providers will be reviewed every 3 years in
coordination with their re-credentialing cycle,

4. Medicaid Assurance #4 - Quality Improvement: PSCS has a QAPI program which was reviewed by
External Quality Review Organization in 2011 and was found to have “Fully Met” the general Rules and basic
elements of for Quality Assurance Performance Improvement programs.

5. Medicaid Assurance #5 — Accessibility: PSCS surveys providers annually for appointment wait times for
routine, urgent and emergent appointments and reports those findings to the QAUMPT Committee. PSCS




monitors the number of members who do not have a PCP assigned within 30 days Member grievances are
monitored for indications of access problems.

6. Medicaid Assurance # Grievance System: PSCS has written policies and procedures available for
review by OHA, which outline the process by which the plan accepts, processes, and responds to all complaints
and appeals from members and their representatives. Information on these processes is shared with members as
well as with PSCS providers upon entering a contract and more often as ne¢ded. PSCS’s grievance system is
described above in more detail,

7. Medicaid Assurance #7 - Potential Member Informational Requirements: PSCS has the ability to
provide petential members with pertinent information to make a decision about enrollment. These materials
would be in both printed format and available online. However, current rules prohibit PSCS from marketing to
our potential members, so we do not provide this information currently.

8. Medicaid Assurance #8 - Member Education: Members receive a handbook annuatly or when significant
changes are made. A member newsletter is sent three times per year and includes topics related to benefits,
prevention, utilization and health improvement. The member website includes health care information for PSCS
members. Members identified for quality improvement projects are sent materials on self-management related to
the topic targeted for improvement. Materials are available in Spanish. Member Handbooks and Provider
Directories noting the provider’s languages will be provided to members annually and upon enrollment to ensure
members can choose providers that are fluent in the member’s primary language.

9. Medicaid Assurance #9 - Member Rights and Responsibilities: Member Handbooks are provided to
members upon enrollment and annually to ensure members have pemnent information about their rights and
1esp0n51b1htles as a member of the plan. The handbook is written in 6™ grade reading level and is being translated
into Spanish, since we meet the thresholds in our service areas for this need.

i0. Medicaid Assurance #10 - Intensive Care Coordination: Intensive care coordination services may be
requested by the member, the member’s representative, physician, other medical personnel serving the member,
or the member’s agency case manager, PSCS will respond to request for intensive care coordination services with
an initial response by the next working day following the request. PSCS will ensure transitional care coordinators
and case manger case manager’s name and telephone number are available to agency staff and members or
member representatives when intensive care services are provided to the member. ENCC members wilt have
direct access available fo specialists represented as an exception to the referral process.

11. Medicaid Assurance #11 - Billing and Payment Standard: PSCS will participate as a trading partner of
OHA in order to timely and accurately conduct electronic transactions in accordance with HIPAA electronic

transactions and security standards.

12, Medicaid Assurance #12 - Trading Partner Standard: PSCS has and wili continue to execute necessary
trading partner agreements and conducted business-to-business testing that are in accordance with accepted
professional standards.

13, Medicaid Assurance #13 - Encounter Data Submission and Validation Standard — Health Services and
Pharmacy Services: PSCS contracts with PH Tech for the processing of claims and encounters and the
transmission of those encounters to OHA. PH Tech maintains policies and procedures that promote the accurate
and timely submission of encounter data to OHA, PH Tech performs multiple levels of encounter validation and
auditing to ensure overall quality and adherence to customer and OHA requirements,

14, Medicaid Assurance #14 - Enroliment and Disenroliment Data Validation Standard:

PSCS contracts with PH Tech for the processing of enrollment and disenrollment transactions received from
OHA. PH Tech has built an automated system to accept and import both enrollment and disenrollment records in
the HIPAA 4010 and 5010 834 format. All tfransmission from OHA are archived on the PH Tech file servers and
imported into PH Tech’s data warehouse for storage and reporting on enrollment, revenue and expense,




APPENDIX C — Accountability Questionnaire
Section 1 — Accountability Standards

C.1.1. Background information

C.1l.l.a. PSCS has developed robust reporting systems that will be utilized in quality and
accountability measurements. PSCS submits HEDIS Medicaid administrative measures through
certified HEDIS software. Upon validation of results, these measures are utilized to benchmark
performance, identify opportunities for improvement, identify discrepancies in care and generate
indicators for Performance Improvement Projects. PSCS currently utilizes a software engine
purchased from Ingenix; however this is being transitioned to a Thomson Reuters application
during 2012. These reporting systems integrate member demographics, disease burden and
claims history to identify members who are likely to require high resource levels in the near
future, This data is overlaid with Clinical Intelligence Rules which help to identify members
with interveneable conditions, PSCS is also engaging a new Fraud Waste & Abuse (FWA)
vendor in 2012 to target cases of overutilization. This vendor, Thomson Reuters, will provide
monthly reports to a FWA team at PSCS who will be responsible for identifying legitimate FWA
cases and reacting appropriately (contract termination, recoupment of payments, law
enforcement referral, etc), Through its Pharmacy Benefit Management contract, PSCS also
receives Fraud, Waste & Abuse reports that highlight over-utilization of prescription
medications. These reports are provided to an internal team of pharmacists and pharmacy
technicians to curb drug abuse in collaboration with local prescribers. In 2011, approximately 14
PSCS members were identified as abusing prescription medications and the claims system was
configured to ensure they only received medications from specific prescribers and/or pharmacies.

PSCS has created multiple data warehouses that integrate claims, enrollment and referral
information. The data warchouse allows PSCS staff to analyze the data and identify over and
under utilization of services. PSCS partners with its subcontractor Ph-Tech to capture all viable
encounters between members and providers within a single unified system. These data sets
incorporate the State’s own risk and rate member stratifications, revenue buckets and claims
buckets and have been key resources in the development of both the lowest cost and base cost
estimate exercises performed at the request of OHA. The combination of data elements allows
PSCS to compare its funding to the expenses incurred by rate group for inpatient, outpatient, and
other service types. It also allows Ph-Tech and PSCS to run Ad hoc reports. PSCS will
continue to utilize and build upon these reporting systems for quality and accountability
measurements as the CCO is implemented and evolves over time,

C.1.1.b. PSCS will participate in external quality measurement and reporting programs
(e.g. HEDIS reporting related to NCQA accreditation, federal reporting for Medicare Advantage
lines of business). PSCS has participated in HEDIS Reporting to NCQA through PacificSource




Community Health Plans which has participated in HEDIS reporting to NCQA for the Medicare
Advantage Line of Business since 2000, including individuals who are dually eligible,

C.l.l.c PSCS upholds high internal quality standards and performance expectations and
works to ensure that providers and sub-contractors are held accountable for acceptable
performance and quality care. PSCS has several community pattners including Central Oregon
Independent Practice Association (COIPA) who share PSCS’s commitment {0 quality and are
working to reinforce quality and performance standards among providers and sub-contractors.
COIPA negotiates contracts with PSCS on behalf of its membership. In the Provider Services
Agreement between COIPA and PSCS, Section 2.8 states the following: “Compliance with
Health Plan Policies and Procedures requires provider compliance with -Health Plan requirements
relating to member grievances, credentialing, utilization review, quality assurance, medical
management”, In addition, Section 2.9 states the following: “Cooperation with UM and Quality
Improvement Activities: Health Plan Committee of the Agreement requires cooperation with
utilization management and quality management procedures”. Section 2.9 also requires COIPA
providers to agree to serve on Health Plan committees if requested to do so by the Health Plan.
PacificSource holds providers to record keeping standards through an audit of medical records
every 3 years. As a part of this process, Provider Medical Record Review (PMRR) requires
providers who do not achieve a passing score of 80% to complete a corrective action plan.
Internal claims and authorization processes ensure Oregon Health Plan guidelines are followed
such as those related to evidence based practice for radiology and requiring the submission of
consent forms with claims for sterilization,

PSCS contracts with a Pharmacy Benefit Manager to establish quality assurance measures and
systems for the contracted pharmacy network of more than 60,000 pharmacies nationwide. These
include review for compliance with minimum standards for pharmacy practice, concurrent drug
utilization review systems, policies, and procedures,

C.1.1.d. PSCS has several mechanisms for sharing performance information with
providers and contractors for Quality Improvement. Performance information is shared through
the PSCS Quality Committee. Feedback is mailed or faxed to providers on individual
performance related to quality improvement projects. Information is also shared through regular
provider meetings.

Cl.l.e, PSCS has a mechanism to share performance information in a culturally and
linguistically appropriate manner with members. Currently, the most significant language

~ population other than English in the proposed service.area is Spanish. PSCS provides the
member handbook in Spanish and describes how to obtain information in other alternative
formats. Interpreter services and demographic reports are monitored to identify the emergence of
other significant populations of members with primary languages other than English or Spanish.
In addition, the Provider Directory indicates which providers speak other languages.




PSCS is a subsidiary of PacificSource Community Health Plans (PCHP). PCHP has a section in
the Medicare member handbook informing members how to obtain quality performance
information. It is anticipated that this information will be added the CCO member handbook,

C.1.1.1. PSCS’s payment methodologies will support and promote the goals of the Triple
Aim. PSCS will include quality measures and reporting in connection with provider and sub-
contractor incentive payments. PSCS will provide comprehensive coordination and create shared
responsibility by shifting alternative payment methodologies, from volume-of-service based financial
incentives toward incentives that reward primary care (including those who have applied for and
received PCPCH status) for providing the “right care at the right time”. This framework provides
shared savings incentives for PCPCH primary care providers as well as specialty providers for
appropriate management of care as measured by performance in a specialty care fund, a hospital
fund, and a prescription drug fund.

PSCS’s alternative payment methodologies will be differentially determined, For example financial
agreements for certain PCPCH providers have been and will continue to be provided for different
PCPCH-tiered providers based on PSCS agreement with the COIPA. These agreements provide for
special funding mechanisms (i.e. additional PMPM payments) for enhanced delivery of primary

care. In addition, PSCS has provided grant-based funding to many of the PCPCH providers based on
capability and the need for investment dollars for new innovative models.

In addition, PSCS will align financial incentives with evidence based and best emerging practices.
PSCS’s existing payment methodologies, which include Medical Home incentive payments aligned
with quality and best practice metrics, are designed to promote high quality care in tandem with cost-
efficiencies, In addition, PacificSource has partnered with the COIPA as it invests in strengthening
informational capabilities, which will lead to community-wide evidence-based best practices and will
provide a data-based solution to variations in care in the CCO population.

C.l.l.g. PSCS has the ability to collect and report to OHA the accountability quality
measures as listed in the Table included as part of the RFA. PSCS has experience producing
performance measures from specifications such as HEDIS, which includes both administrative
method from claims data and hybrid method from medical record collection. A member survey
is currently administered to members with special health care needs (Exceptional Needs Care
Coordination) and Medicare members to perform health risk assessment. The member surveys
are used to identify high-risk members and enroll them into the PSCS Care Management and
Care Coordination program.

Section 2 — Quality Improvement Program

C.2.l1.a. PSCS QAPI program was reviewed by an External Quality Review Organization
in 2011 and was found to have “Fully Met” the general rules and basic elements of the Quality




Assurance Performance Improvement Requirements. The Quality Improvement program has the
following elements:

Policies and procedures.

Access Monitoring.

Annual program evaluation and improvement plan.

Performance Improvement Projects designed to improve health outcomes and
member satisfaction, use objective indicators, focus on clinical and nonclinical
arcas, evaluate the effectiveness of the interventions, and employ activities that
increase or sustain improvement,

Integration of physical and behavioral health.

Monitoring of utilization compared to benchmarks as well as monitoring for
under and overutilization of services.

Assesses the quality and appropriateness of care to members with special health
care needs. '

Generation of state performance measures.

Monitors member safety through Adverse Events tracking.

Assurance of the quality of the provider panel through adverse events tracking
and auditing provider medical records for consistency with state and federation
regulations and professional standards. Provider Corrective Action policies and
procedures are in place.

QI committee called the Quality Assurance Utilization Management Pharmacy
and Therapeutics (QAUMPT) that meets at least 10 times per year, reports to the
PSCS Board, is chaired by the medical director, and has members representing the
scope of services delivered. Committee minutes are recorded and maintained.
Prevention.

Disease management.

ENCC annual evaluation.

Quarterly review of Grievance and Appeals data.

Assessment of member satisfaction.

Member education.

In addition, the Central Oregon Regional Health Improvement Plan as referenced in Appendix A
has identified 10 Priority Areas:

Disparity/Inequity

Access to Resources
Early Childhood Wellness
Food Insecurity

Oral Health

Safety, Crime & Violence




¢ Chronic Disease

o Alcohol, Drug & Tobacco Use
¢ Behavioral/Mental Health

¢ Healthy Environments

The PSCS QI Program currently has interventions or elements that address seven of the ten
Priority Areas. These priority areas will be addressed through community and public health
programs in collaboration with PSCS community partners.

C.2.1.b. PSCS’s Quality Committee is called the Quality Assurance Utilization
Management Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee (QAUMPT). This committee has a
reporting responsibility to the PSCS Board that is accomplished through the PSCS Medical
Director. The committee provides oversight to the quality program and provides a mechanism for
stakeholder input. The committee membership includes adult and pediatric primary care
providers and specialty members including a neurologist, a physiatrist, and a neurosurgeon. The
committee also includes a community pharmacist, a public member, and a behavioral health
professional. Two committee members are experts in the care of elderly and/or disabled persons
to meet the requirements of the Medicare Part D program. Two committee members represent
Mosaic Medical and St Charles Family Care which are local federally qualified health clinics
who provide services to Medicaid members.

The current Quality Assurance Committee (QAC) is the Quality Assurance Committee for
behavioral health. It consists of representation from county partners, the ABHA Medical
Director, ABHA Quality Manager, ABHA Member Affairs Specialist, and at least 25% member
representation. The QAC reports to the Administrative Council and is accountable to the ABHA
Governing Board, This committee and function will transition to the COHB as the CCO
evolves.

Both the QAC and the QAUMPT have cross-representation from each committee to ensure that
committees are well-informed and work towards consistent clinical outcomes.

C2.l.c PSCS maintains a process in which the Quality Plan is developed, reviewed and
updated annually. The elements are reviewed according to current OAR’s, CFR’s and
appropriate contracts. Elements are added and removed based on changes to regulations, changes
in focus for quality improvement and feedback from members and providers. QI topics are
selected with input from the QAUMPT Committee based on performance measurement,
compatisons to benchmarks, and community priorities.

C.2.1.d. PSCS’s practitioners, culturally diverse community-based organizations and
members will be engaged to assist in the planning, design and implementation of the QI
program, Practitioners have the opportunity to be involved through participation in the
QAUMPT Committee and the QAC Committee, There is also the opportunity to provide input
and receive relevant QI Program information through educational provider meetings held several




times per year. As an example, community stakeholders were invited to participate in the
selection and development of a project targeted toward members with Serious Persistent Mental
Iliness. PSCS with its community partners will identify additional opportunitieé to engage
practitioners, community based organizations and members.

C2.l.e. PSCS’s QI program specifically addresses health care and health outcome
inequities, care coordination and transitions between care settings. The QI program has
elements designed to monitor access issues and identify discrepancies in care, Reports from
claims data are reviewed and compared to benchmarks or compared to rates for the general
population. A process is undertaken to identify the causes of the discrepancies and create actions
to mitigate the inequities. The current collaborative Performance Improvement Project is focused
on improving preventive services to member with Serious Persistent Mental Hiness. This project
was selected after reviewing data indicating the population was seeing their primary care
providers but not getting preventive exams. A second project is focused on improving low rates
of diabetes indicators in members with diabetes.

Members requiring care coordination are identified from health risk assessments, self referrals,
utilization management and prospective risk reporting. Hospital census data, inpatient utilization
review, and authorizations are used to identify the need for transitions coordination. Dedicated
staff assesses the needs of these members and coordinate transitions.

C.2.1.1, PSCS has regular monitoring of provider’s compliance and Corrective Action,
The monitoring of provider compliance occurs through claims processes, utilization
management, quality assurance, and grievance and appeals processes. Cotrective Actions are
monitored through credentialing processes and by the quality team with oversight by the medical
director. Fraud, Waste and Abuse policies and procedures are in place. Policies and procedures
document provider cotrective action processes. As an example, PSCS audits provider medical
record keeping and has developed a process verifying whether services billed by providers were
received.

C2.1.g. PSCS identifies QI opportunities through activities focused on customer
satisfaction: clinical, facility, cultural appropriateness; Fraud and Abuse/Member protections;
and Treatment planning protocol review/revision/dissemination. Customer satisfaction is
addressed through analysis of the CAHPS survey (Consumer Assessment of Health plans
Providers and Systems). Statistically different results will be assessed for the need to implement
an improvement plan. Member grievances are monitored for trends and patterns that would
indicate a need to change processes, provide education, or initiate corrective action. A
satisfaction survey has been utilized to assess member satisfaction with the Grievance and
Appeals process and identify opportunities for improvement. In addition to CAHPS results,
satisfaction with behavioral health services is solicited by County partners through use of
member comment cards. Hospitals and some clinics also perform surveys on PSCS members for
satisfaction and to identify opportunities for improvement.




PSCS also identifies QI opportunities through fraud and abuse/member protections. PSCS has a
Fraud and Abuse Reporting policy and procedure to ensure a non-retaliatory process for
reporting suspectéd instances of fraud, abuse or other misconduct. Reported issues are
investigated immediately, and confidentially. Confirmed fraud or abuse violations will be
reported to the Audit committee and appropriate government agency, if necessary and followed
by corrective action. PSCS is also engaging a new Fraud Waste & Abuse vendor in 2012 to target
cases of overutilization. This vendor, Thomson Reuters, will provide monthly reports to a FWA team
at PSCS who will be responsible for identifying legitimate FWA cases and reacting appropriately
(contract termination, recoupment of payments, law enforcement referral, etc). In addition, PSCS .
has developed and implemented a process to verify with members whether services billed by
providers were received. Grievances are also monitored for potential Fraud and Abuse issues,

Evidence-based guidelines are disseminated to providers as part of Quality Improvement Project
interventions. Guidelines are also embedded in all medication coverage policies and
disseminated to providers when prior authorizations for certain medications are requested.
Medical Coverage Policies are developed after consultation with the most current evidence based
medicine, State & Federal rules & regulations, and national treatment guidelines. All policies are
reviewed & approved by the Quality Assurance Utilization Management Pharmacy &
Therapeutics Committee (QAUMPT).

C.2.2. Clinical Advisory Panel

C.2.2.a. PSCS will establish a Clinical Advisory Panel (CAP) as a means of assuring best
clinical practices. The CAP will serve as a subcommittee of the Central Oregon Health Council
(COHC). The role of the CAP will be to provide clinical oversight and leadership to community
clinical integration efforts, clinical quality improvements projects and improvements in the local
health care system and delivery. The CAP will also serve a central role in coordination of the quality
commiftees of the health plan, Central Oregon Health Board (COHB) and the Central Oregon IPA
(COIPA). The CAP will consist of 15-17 members. Members will include a COHC member,
Operating Council and Community Advisory Council as liaisons. Additional members will inchude
representatives of behavioral health, oral health, the local FQBC, hospital system, health plan,
COIPA, public health, clinical pharmacy, Long Term Care, Alcohol & Drug, Alternative Medicine,
Obstetrics, and other Specialty Care. The representatives from COIPA, PSCS and behavior health
will be members of their respective organizations quality committees. Through all CAF members,
PSCS will also obtain representation from each of the following regions: Bend, LaPine, Sisters,
Redmond, Prineville, Madras and Warm Springs. The CAP will also include members that provide
representation of underserved populations. At least two positions each will be for members
presenting Jefferson & Crook Counties.

C.2.3. Continuity of Care/Outcomes/Quality Measures/Costs

C23.a. PSCS has policies, processes, practices and procedures in place that serve to
improve Member outcomes, including evidence-based best practices, emerging best practices,




and innovative strategies in all areas of Health System Transformation, including patient
engagement and activation. PSCS has collaborated with community partners on the Emergency
Department Diversion community health integration project. This projéct focused on high
utilization patients who were disconnected from the regular healthcare system, The successful
interventions were community wide treatment plans, a health engagement team concept, use of
community health workers and behavioral health consultants, This project realized a 49%
reduction in ED visits, Patient reports of pain issues hindering work or home activities were
improved and participating patients no longer perceived there were barriers to accessing the care
they needed.

PSCS will be incorporating a complex care clinic to care for those members with intense care
physical and mental health needs. PSCS has adjusted reimbursement processes to facilitate the
placement of a behavioral health nurse practitioner at Mosaic Medical; the community FQHC s
to specifically address behavioral health needs in the primary care setting.

PSCS has Case Management policies and procedures to ensure early identification of members
with special needs in order to allow interventions that can significantly impact the quality and
cost associated with their care without sacrificing medical appropriateness or member
satisfaction. Staff is dedicated for case management to members with special health care needs.
The staff has been trained in motivational interviewing and is working on patient engagement
and activation. Newly enrolled members with special health care needs are mailed a health risk
assessment called the Wellness Survey. The survey includes some plan specific questions as well
as the SF12, The SF12 is a valid and reliable survey that measures functional health and well-
being from the patient’s point of view, It is a widely used tool for monitoring population health,
comparing and analyzing disease burden, and predicting medical expenses. Scoring is based on
comparisons to national age related norms and s used to risk stratify members who may need
case management or conditions support.

Transitional Care Coordinators make outbound phone calls to all members meeting threshold
criteria and ask a series of questions designed to identify gaps in care, barriers to access,
educational need, and the need for referral to case management by an RN or BH specialist. If
members are not able to be reached after two outbound phone calls, a “Cannot Reach” letter is
sent to the member with the transitional care coordinator contact number in an effort to engage
the member to call them back. For those members that are contacted, Care Coordinators and
case managers complete assessment forms that are based on NCQA standards,

As a part of integrated care strategy, members meeting the threshold for prospective risk scores
are brought to a weekly Integrated Care Management (ICM) meeting. The ICM meeting is
designed as a collaborative effort to address gaps in care and bring community partners and
resources together to bring the appropriate care and utilization of health services. This
workgroup is comprised of behavioral health providers, ED diversion representatives, chemical
dependency representatives, community health workers, the member and any other community




health partners involved in the member’s health care. Prior to the meeting, members or the
member’s representative is contacted to inform them of this meeting and to identify the
member’s concerns, barriers or issues they see with their own health care. This information
obtained from the member is included in the discussion. After the meeting, a care plan is then
initiated and the case manager, care coordinator, pharmacist and/or behavioral health specialists
works with the PCPs office, member and community partners such as the brokerage,
transportation office, disability offices, member’s state case worker, specialist’s office, home
health provider to develop a targeted, consistent approach. Once the member or member’s
representative is successfully engaged, the member is transitioned from the ICM workgroup to
ongoing assessment and coordination with their nurse case manager. Six months after discharge
from the ICM group, the membet’s prospective risk score is re-assessed and brought back to the
ICM group if thresholds are again met,

Care Coordinators have facilitated care for members experiencing appointment delays. In one
case the intervention by the care coordinator resulted in an experience where the member no
longer felt “like a number” and ultimately had significant improvement in activities of daily
living.

C.2.3.b. PSCS processes HEDIS Medicaid administrative measures through certified
HEDIS software. These measures provide benchmark performance data and assist in identifying
opportunities for improvement, identifying discrepancies in care and generating indicators for
Performance Improvement Projects. Currently, an Asthma performance measure is run monthly
for the PSCS Medicaid population, This includes medication controller ratios, rescue medication
use, ED visits for asthma, and rate of follow up visits, CAHPS member satisfaction survey
results are reviewed and compared to state and national benchmarks,

C.23.c PSCS has implemented wellness and health improvement activities and practices
within the PSCS organization for Members and staff to strengthen this aspect of health care.
PSCS has a wellness program for employees with a mission to heilp employees achieve and
maintain wellness through year-round education and events that promote health and disease
prevention, Participation is encouraged by ensuring that events are interactive, fun, and
interesting. One very successful ongoing employee event is the Better Bites program. For this
event, the organization supplies a piece of fruit per day per employee and has other healthy
snacks available at cost. In an additional program element each employee was given a pedometer
as a holiday gift and teams are competing to increase their activity. Employees can earn
wellness points with certain point thresholds triggering company donations to a charity of the
employee’s choice.

A health fair was held in November 2011 at Deschutes County for members in the SPMI
population as part of a Performance Improvement Project. A second event is planned for 2012,
The event had booths with the following topics: Medication adherence, Blood Pressure checks,
Health & Wellness Information, Health Snacks, A Flu Shot Clinic, and Assistance to Make a
PCP Appointment.




The member website includes Health Coach 4 Me which includes information on Diet and
Nutrition, Exercise and Activity, Medicine, Smoking Cessatlon, Stress Management,
Vaccination, Weight Management and chronic conditions such as Asthma, Breast Cancer,
COPD, Diabetes, Heart Disease, and Migraine. Members with chronic conditions are
encouraged by case managers to enroll in local Living Well with Chronic Conditions programs.
Living Well with Chronic Conditions (the Chronic Disease Self-Management Program or
CDSMP) is a six-week workshop that provides tools for living a healthy life with chronic health
conditions, including diabetes, arthritis, asthma and heart disease. Through weekly sessions, the
workshop provides support for continuing normal daily activities and dealing with the emotions
that chronic conditions may bring about. '

C.2.3.d. PSCS has experience in staffing, policies, procedures, and capacity to collect the
necessary electronic and other data that will be required for meeting regular performance -
benchmarks to evaluate the value of Health Services delivered by PSCS. PSCS underwent
review by the External Quality Review organization and were found to have Fully Met the ISCA
requirements. PSCS has policies and procedures in place which will encourage and provide
suidance for collection of necessary electronic data and other data. Experienced staff is able to
produce reports from the data warehouse. Other PSCS ‘Staff have experience in producing
HEDIS reports and validating the results as well as producing measures from medical record
collection. As noted above, PSCS has reporting systems that integrate member demographics,
disease burden and claims history. This data is overlaid with Clinical Intelligence Rules which
help to identify members meeting specific criteria. This reporting system will assist PSCS in
collecting data to meet performance benchmarks,

C.2.3.e. PSCS has implemented other strategies to improve patient care outcomes,
decrease duplication of services, and make processes more efficient as referenced above through
current reporting capabilities and coordination of care processes.

In addition, PSCS has a weekly Integrated Care Management meeting (ICM). The ICM meeting
is designed as a collaborative effort to address gaps in care and bring community partners and
resources together to bring the appropriate care and utilization of health services, A care plan is.
then initiated and the case manager, care coordinator, pharmacist and/or behavioral health
specialist works with the PCPs office, member and community partners such as the brokerage,
transportation office, disability offices, member’s state case worker, specialist’s office, home
health provider to develop a targeted, consistent approach. Once the member or member’s
representative is successfully engaged, the member is transitioned from the ICM workgroup to
ongoing assessment and coordination with their nurse case manager. Six months after discharge
from the ICM group, the member’s prospective risk score is re-assessed and brought back to the
ICM group if thresholds are again met. '

Examples of Success with ICM:
1. Member had a stroke and had to be revived,




At first contact, member was very depressed and was unaware of available
resources and having a very difficult time navigating the system.

Between the ENCC Transitional Care Coordinators and the Nurse Case Manager,
working with the member, the member has been connected with several resources,
Member complex issues were discussed in a weekly ICM meeting. Member was given
American Blind Association information where member can order free books, other
media choices and have access to other resources. PSCS worked with member and found
providers in closer proximity to member, Member has been connected with a mental
health (MH) provider. Member has been given information on how to obtain much
needed dentures (nutrition issue) with this dental plan. Member has been given several
other resources including transpottation information,

2. When a member called Grievance and Appeals, staff referred the member to PSCS Care
Coordinators. Upon calling the member, the Care Coordinator learned that member had
been told the other pain clinic in town had a three month wait before next appointment.
Knowing it was a Monday and member only had 2 more days of pain meds on hand (and
the clinic the member had been dismissed from was not going to refill anymore), member
was very frustrated and "ready to give up on insurance and doctors all together”,

Member was bed ridden after a failed back surgery and needed assistance with all ADL's.
After Care Coordinator discussed with other staff, it was realized there was a pain clinic
in town that was currently going through the credentialing process, but was not yet
contracted. After calling and making arrangements, PSCS Care Coordinator was able to
approve visits fo the out-of-network provider to get the member the care needed. Member
had an appointment that Friday morning which was four days out. Staff called and
followed up that next Tuesday and member is able to move around and able to start
caring for self and doing all ADL's independently,

C23.f PSCS has policies and procedures to ensure a coﬁtinuity of care system for the
coordination of care and the arrangement, tracking and documentation of all referrals and prior
authorizations,

Care Coordination services may be requested by the member, the member’s representative,
physician, other medical personnel serving the member, or the member’s agency case manager.
Care coordination will be identified through wellness survey scoring as well as prospective risk
scores generated by our claims analysis software, Ingenix & Thomson Reuters. Interpreter
Services (including sign language) are covered for doctor visits for members who do not speak
English or have a hearing impairment. These services are available by phone or in person,

Transitional Care Coordinators make outbound phone calls to all members meeting threshoid
criteria and ask a series of questions designed to identify gaps in care, barriers to access,
educational need, and the need for referral to case management by an RN or BH specialist, Care
Coordinators and case managers complete assessment forms that are based on NCQA standards.
- If members are not able to be contacted after two outbound phone calls, a “Cannot Reach” letter




is sent to the member with the transitional care coordinator contact number in an effort to engage
the member to return the call.

1

As noted above, members meeting the threshold for prospective risk scores are brought to a
weekly Integrated Care Management (ICM) meeting. This workgroup is comprised of
behavioral health providers, ED diversion representatives, chemical dependency representatives,
community health workers, the member and any other community health partners involved in the
member’s health care. Prior to the meeting, members or the member’s representative is
contacted to inform them of this meeting and to identify the member’s concerns, barriers or
issues as identified by the member or the member’s representative.

PSCS has Case Management policies and procedures to ensure early identification of members
with special needs in order to allow intervention that can significantly impact the quality and cost
associated with their care without sacrificing medical appropriateness or member satisfaction.
Staff is dedicated for case management of members with special health care needs. Care
Coordination or case management services may be requested by the member, the member’s
guardian or representative, a physician, other medical personnel serving the member, or the
member’s agency case manager.

Newly enrolled members with special health care needs are mailed a health risk assessment
called the Wellness Survey. The survey includes some PSCS specific questions as well as the
SF12, The SF12 is a valid and reliable survey that measures functional health and well-being
from the patient’s point of view. It is a widely used tool for monitoring population health,
comparing and analyzing disease burden, and predicting medical expenses. Scoring is based on
comparisons to national age related norms and is used to risk stratify members who may need
case management or conditions support.

PSCS tracks and documents all referrals and prior authorizations. PSCS contracts with PhTech
for administrative services including authorization and referral tracking and claims payment.
Daily reports are sent with the total number of authorizations and referrals which includes the
date the request was received. This process ensures requests will be received and processed
according to regulatory timelines with completion of notice requirements established by DMAP
and DCBS. Authorization criteria are based on OHP benefits and guidelines and evidence based
tools such as American College of Radiology (ACR) appropriateness criteria, Milliman, and
Hayes Health Technology. Other references used in the process are Medicare criteria and
guidelines and in-panel and out-of-panel physician specialty consultants and industry best
practices. Clinical staff conducts medical review under the direction of the Medical Director, The
Medical Services staff documents all authorizations and referrals in a software application called
CIM, which is provided by PhTech. All prior authorizations and referrals are maintained in this
application and available for providers and nurse case managers to review to ensure care
coordination and reduce duplication of services, The Medical Services management receives a
daily report with the total number of authorizations and referrals which includes the date the -
request was received. This allows them fo ensure requests will be received and processed




according to regulatory timelines and notice requirements established by the Oregon Health
Authority. Timeliness for completion of prior authorization requests is reviewed monthly by
Corporate Quality Assurance and periodically by Internal Audit. If internal review demonstrates
prior authorization timelines are outside established guidelines, the manager of Health Services
is notified and an action plan for correction is developed. This report is reviewed by the Medical
Director once completed.
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Service Area
Description Zip Code
County
97751, 97752, 97753, 97754,
Crook 97760

97701, 97702, 97707, 97708,
97709, 97712, 97739, 97756,
Deschutes 97758, 97760

97730, 97734, 97741, 97760,
Jefferson 97761, 97711

Klamath (Members

in these four zip

codes access care in

Peschutes County) 97731, 97733, 97737, 87739

Pending Counties:

97817, 97820, 57825, 97845,
97848, 97856, 97864, 97865,
Grant 97869, 97873, 97877

97710, 97720, 97721, 87722,
. 87732,97736, 97738, 97758,
Harney 97504, 97511

Lake (Members in

Lake County seek

care in Deschutes 97638, 97640, 97641, 97735,
County) 97739

Wheeler 97750, 97825, 97830, 97874

Maximum Number of Members-
Capacity Level

3800

28000

5500

250

1100

1250

1300

250







APPENDIX D — Medicare/Medicaid Alignment Questionnaire
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Section 2 - Ability to Serve Dually Eligible Individuals

PSCS will provide integrated and coordinated health care and care management for all PSCS
members, including members who are dually eligible for Medicare and Medicaid services.

. PSCS has an affiliated Medicare Advantage Plan through PacificSource Community Health Plan
(PCHP) Medicare Advantage. As such, PSCS (Medicaid) and PCHP (Medicare) have the
capability to provide both the Medicaid and Medicare benefits to dually eligible members in the
proposed service area in a coordinated manner,

Currently, coordination of benefits and care occurs for dual members who are members of both
PSCS and PCHP and reside in the PSCS service areas. PSCS anticipates that this system will
continue moving forward with the Central Oregon CCO, PSCS did submit a Notice of Intent for
the CMS Medicare/Medicaid Alignment Demonstration for 2013, The CMS Medicare/Medicaid
Alignment Demonstration has been delayed until 2014, Recognizing this delay of the
Demonstration, PSCS will meet the requirement to coordinate care for its members who are
dually eligible through PSCS as the CCO and its affiliated Medicare Advantage Plan through
PCHP to provide both the Medicaid and Medicare benefits to its members. PSCS will once
again consider meeting the requirement for 2014 through participation in the CMS
Medicare/Medicaid Alignment Demonstration.




Appendix H: Transformation Scope Elements

PSCS and its community partners recognize that Appendix H contains certain Health System Transformation
elements that can serve as a starting point for contract discussions. PSCS and its commuhity partners also
recognize that the PSCS CCO will be evolving over the next 12 months. As such, PSCS and its community
partners hesitate to submit any contract language due to the evolutionary nature of the CCO and the high
probability that changes will be occurring over the next 12 months in relation to Governance, Payment
Methodologies, Health Information Systems, and the Delivery System. To include wording in the contract at
this time is premature and would commit the Central Oregon Community to language that will most certainly
change and in some cases, could become no longer applicable over the next 18 months,

For example:

The Governance of PSCS CCO is currently being developed. As such, PSCS is specifically named as
the Applicant for this application process. There is a desire by the community that more accountability
be shared in the near term. PSCS and its community partners would like to have the opportunity to work
with OHA to allow this evolution to be reflected in our contract as the discussion becomes more
concrete and final,

There are current rules and requirements in the system that need to be evaluated as CCOs are
implemented such as the ISSRs. For example, the ISSRs as they are currently stated are not realistically
applicable to current PCPCH models. As such, one area that PSCS and its community partners would
like to see included in a Core Contract is some relief if possible from the ISSRs in specific parts of the
system where the ISSRs may not be realistic in practice. This will have to be done in collaboration with
the CCOs and OHA to ensure that both parties are able to maintain compliance with what requirements
they may have. '

At the submission of this application, the CCO Rules are still temporary and PSCS and its community
partners would not know what to address in terms of requests for flexibility in relation to local solutions.

As such, PSCS and its community partners request the opportunity to work with the OHA through the first 18
months to identify flexibilities and local transformations to be incorporated within the contract. This could be
accomplished through contractual amendments.

RFA #3402 Appendix H — Transformation Scope Elements Page 1 of |




ATTACHMENT 2 —~ Applicant’s Designation of Confidential Materials
RFA #3402

1

Applicant Name: PacificSource Community Solutions, Inc,

Instructions for completing this form:

Applicant may not designate any portion of its Letter of Intent to Apply or CMS Notice of
Intent to Apply as confidential.

As a public entity, OC&P is subject to the Oregon Public Records Law which confers a right for
any person to inspect any public records of a public body in Oregon, subject to certain
exemptions and limitations. See ORS 192.410 through 192.505. Exemptions are generally
narrowly construed in favor of disclosure in furtherance of a policy of open government. Your
Application will be a public record that is subject to disclosure except for material that qualifies
as a public records exemption.

It is OC&P’s responsibility to redact from disclosure only material exempt from the Oregon
Public Records Law. It is the Applicant’s responsibility to only mark material that legitimately
qualifies under an exemption from disclosure. To designate a portion of an Application as
exempt from disclosure under the Oregon Public Records Law, the Applicant should do the
following steps:

1. Clearly identify in the body of the Application only the limited material that is a trade
secret or would otherwise be exempt under public records law. If an Application fails to
identify portions of the Application as exempt, Applicant is deemed to waive any future
claim of non-disclosure of that information.

2. List, in the space provided below, the portions of your Application that you have marked
in step 1 as exempt under public records law and the public records law exemption (e.g.,
a trade secret) you believe applies to each portion. If an Application fails to list in this
Attachment a portion of the Application as exempt, Applicant is deemed to waive any
future claim of non-disclosure of that information.

3. Provide, in your response to this Attachment, justification how each portion designated as
exempt meets the exemption criteria under the Oregon Public Records Law. If you are
asserting trade secret over any material, please indicate how such material meets all the
criteria of a trade secret listed below. Please do not use broad statements of conclusion
not supported by evidence.

Application of the Oregon Public Records Law shall determine whether any information is
actually exempt from disclosure. Prospective Applicants are advised to consult with legal
counsel regarding disclosure issues. Applicant may wish to limit the amount of truly trade secret
information submitted, providing only what is necessary to submit a complete and competitive
Application.




In order for records to be exempt from disclosure as a trade secret, the records must meet all four
of the following requirements:
r
¢ The information must not be patented,
¢ It must be known only to certain individuals within an organization and used in a
business the organization conducts;
e It must be information that has actual or potential commercial value; and,
o It must give its users an opportunity to obtain a business advantage over competitors
who do not know or use it.

Keep in mind that the trade secret exemption is very limited. Not all material that you might
prefer be kept from review by a competitor qualifies as your trade secret material. OC&P is
required to release information in the Application unless it meets the requirements of a trade
secret or other exemption from disclosuré and it is the Applicant’s responsibility to provide the
basis for which exemption should apply.

In support of the principle of an open competitive process, “bottom-line pricing” — that is,
pricing used for objective cost evaluation for award of the RFA or the total cost of the Contract
or deliverables under the Contract — will not be considered as exempt material under a public
records request. Examples of material that would also not likely be considered a trade secret
would include résumés, audited financial statements of publicly traded companies, material that
is publicly knowable such as a screen shot of a software interface or a software report format.

To designate material as confidential and qualified under an exemption from disclosure under
Oregon Public Records Law, an Applicant must complete this Attachment form as follows:

Part I: List all portions of your Application, if any, that Applicant is designating as exempt
from disclosure under Oregon Public Records Law. For each item in the list, state the exemption
in Oregon Public Records Law that you are asserting (e.g., trade secret),

“This data is exempt from disclosure under Oregon Public Records Law pursuant to
[insert specific exemption from ORS 192, such as a “ORS 192.501(2) ‘trade secrei’”’],
and is not to be disclosed except in accordance with the Oregon Public Records Law,
ORS 192.410 through 192.505.”

In the space provided below, state Applicant’s list of material exempt from disclosure and
include specific pages and section Letters of Support of your Application.

1. Appendix B Pharmacy Contract Information - Additional Information Appendix B

2. Attachment 3.5.1 Case Mgt Screens — Appendix A Extra Info

3.

[This list may be expanded as necessary.]




Part II: For each item listed above, provide clear justification how that item meets the
exemption criteria under Oregon Public Records Law. If you are asserting trade secret over any
material, state how such material meets all the criteria of a trade secret listed above in this
Attachment. :

In the space provided below, state Applicant’s justification for non-disclosure for each item in
the list in Part I of this Attachment:

1. Confidential negotiated and contracted rates for Pharmacy

2. Proprietary Case Mgt Program for PacificSource Health Plans

3.

[This list may be expanded as necessary.]




ATTACHMENT 2 — Applicant’s Designation of Confidential Materials
RFA #3402

t

Applicant Name: PacificSource Community Sclutions, Inc.

Instructions for completing this form:

Applicant may not designate any portion of its Letter of Intent to Apply or CMS Notice of
Intent to Apply as confidential.

As a public entity, OC&P is subject to the Oregon Public Records Law which confers a right for
any person to inspect any public records of a public body in Oregon, subject to certain
exemptions and limitations. See ORS 192.410 through 192.505. Exemptions are generally
narrowly construed in favor of disclosure in furtherance of a policy of open government., Your
Application will be a public record that is subject to disclosure except for material that qualifies
as a public records exemption.

It is OC&P’s responsibility to redact from disclosure only material exempt from the Oregon
Public Records Law, It is the Applicant’s responsibility to only mark material that legitimately
qualifies under an exemption from disclosure. To designate a portion of an Application as
exempt from disclosure under the Oregon Public Records Law, the Applicant should do the
following steps:

1. Clearly identify in the body of the Application only the limited material that is a trade
secret or would otherwise be exempt under public records law, If an Application fails to
identify portions of the Application as exempt, Applicant is deemed to waive any future
claim of non-disclosure of that information,

2, List, in the space provided below, the portions of your Application that you have marked
in step 1 as exempt under public records law and the public records law exemption (e.g.,
a trade secret) you believe applies to each portion. If an Application fails to list in this
Attachment a portion of the Application as exempt, Applicant is deemed to waive any
future claim of non-disclosure of that information.

3. Provide, in your response to this Attachment, justification how each portion designated as
exempt meets the exemption criteria under the Oregon Public Records Law. If you are
asserting trade secret over any material, please indicate how such material meets all the
criteria of a trade secret listed below. Please do not use broad statements of conclusion

" not supported by evidence,

Application of the Oregon Public Records Law shall determine whether any information is
actually exempt from disclosure, Prospective Applicants are advised to consult with legal
counsel regarding disclosure issues. Applicant may wish to limit the amount of truly trade secret
information submltted providing only what is necessary to submit a complete and competitive
Application.




In order for records to be exempt from disclosure as a trade secret, the records must meet all four
of the following requirements:
|3

¢ The information must not be patented;

¢ Tt must be known only to certain individuals within an organization and used in a
business the organization conducts;

¢ It must be information that has actual or potential commercial value; and,

o It must give its users an opportunity to obtain a business advantage over competitors
who do not know or use it.

Keep in mind that the trade secret exemption is very limited. Not all material that you might
prefer be kept from review by a competitor qualifies as your trade secret material. OC&P is
required to release information in the Application unless it meets the requirements of a trade
secret or other exemption from disclosure and it is the Applicant’s responsibility to provide the
basis for which exemption should apply.

In support of the principle of an open competitive process, “bottom-line pricing” — that is,
pricing used for objective cost evaluation for award of the RFA or the total cost of the Contract
or deliverables under the Contract — will not be considered as exempt material under a public
records request. Examples of material that would also not likely be considered a trade secret
would include résumés, audited financial statements of publicly traded companies, material that
is publicly knowable such as a screen shot of a software interface or a software report format.

To designate material as confidential and qualified under an exemption from disclosure under
Oregon Public Records Law, an Applicant must complete this Attachment form as follows:

Part I: List all portions of your Application, if any, that Applicant is designating as exempt
from disclosure under Oregon Public Records Law. For each item in the list, state the exemption
in Oregon Public Records Law that you are asserting (e.g., trade secret).

“This data is exempt from disclosure under Oregon Public Records Law pursuant to
[insert specific exemption from ORS 192, such as a “ORS 192.501(2) ‘trade secret’”],
and is not to be disclosed except in accordance with the Oregon Public Records Law,
ORS 192.410 through 192.505.”

In the space provided below, state Applicant’s list of material exempt from disclosure and
include specific pages and section Letters of Support of your Application.

1. Appendix E and all related attachments

2. Appendix F and all related attachments

3.

[This list may be expanded as necessary.f




Part II: For each item listed above, provide clear justification how that item meets the
exemption criteria under Oregon Public Records Law. If you are asserting trade secret over any
material, state how such material meets ali the criteria of a trade secret listed above in this
Attachment.

In the space provided below, state Applicant’s justification for non-disclosure for each item in
the list in Part I of this Attachment.

1. Proprietary information

2. Proprietary information

3.

[This list may be expanded as necessary.]
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PacificSource Health Plans

An Oregon non-profit Corporation
Licensed as a hezlth care services contractor

93-0245545
54976

Healthy KidsConnect

PacificSource Community Health Plans, Inc.

An Oregon Stock Insurer

20-3774713
12595

Public Employees Benefit Board
Medicare Advantage
Medicare Prescription Drug Plan

PacificSource Community Solutions, Inc.
An Oregon Business Corporation
56-2420416

Qregon Health Plan
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What is Community health?

“Community health” is a discipline of public health that examines and

seeks to improve the health-related characteristics of the relationships

hetween people and their physical and social environments.

Faf 102

“The term ‘community’ in
community health tends to
focus on geographic areas
rather than people with shared
characteristics. From a
community health perspective,
health is not simply a state free
from disease but is the capacity
of people to be resilient and
manage life's challenges and
changes.

Community health focuses
on a broad range of factors that
impact health, such as the
environment {including the built

"environment), social structure,
resource distribution {including,
for example, access to healthful
foods), social capital (social

Tre Essential Publke Health Bervices and Core Funchions
Sewrce: Corg Pubbe Health Furctions Stearing Commitlee,

cchesion), and socio-economic
status.

A key approach or
methodology of community health
is the creation and empowerment
of community partnerships to
take action that will improve the
health of the community.
Community health partnerships
include representation from a wide
variety of sectors of the
community, for example,
recreation, the faith community,
law enforcement, city planners and
policy makers, businesses, human
and social services, as well as
public health and health care
providers.”

—Public Heaith Accreditation
Board, 2011




ABOUT THIS HEALTH REPORT

The Central Oregon Heaith Report (COHR) 2012 is an
overview of data relatedto health in communities and
populations. COHR 2012 aims to provide useful data for
three Oregon counties commonly referred to as “Central
Oregon” or Central Oregon’s “tri-county region”: Crook,
Deschutes and Jefferson Counties. Recognizing that
many factors impact the health of individuals and
communities, a range of data from multiple sectors are
included in the report.

The Central Oregon Health
Report is not meant to
answer all questions. It is
meant to provoke them.

How to Use

We acknowledge that the Central Oregon Health
Report, 2012 is not a compendium of all indicators and
analyses applicable in community health assessment,
Thus, we highly encourage readers to dig deeper, check
sources, and pull-in additional information to help you
complete a more in-depth understanding of our
community.

COHR 2012 is not a static, single point-in-time
document, Instead, it is intended to be a first-step in our
region’s effort to continuously assess data in order to:
fdentify where to celebrate successes, recognize
weaknesses or areas of concern, instigate community
discussions on how to capitalize on strengths and turn
weaknesses into opportunities for positive change.

The COHR is not intended to answer all questions.
instead, it should proveke them. We encourage readers
to ask more questions, dig deeper and explore. Many
data reports and fact sheets on numerous relevant
topics exist for our area — check them out! (See the full
report for a list of suggested documents and resources).

This Executive Summary calls attention to a fraction of
indicators and Is a companion — not a replacement — to
the full report.

Ask more questions, dig
deeper, explore...
engage in conversations

As you look and dig deeper, consider the
weaknesses and limitations of the data. Engage in
conversations with colleagues, peers, friends,
family, neighbors, community members, and
strangers. Seek-out gualitative, personal and
experiential information to complement the
numbers you see. Only when communities engage
in this process can we draw the map to improved
health and well-being for our neighborhoods, cur
communities and our region,

Data

This health report utilizes multiple sources of data.
Some of this data is available through the state of
Oregon, some through national government and
non-government agencies, and some from local
organizations. Sources include Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention’s Behavioral Risk Factor
Surveillance System {BRFSS), U.S. Census Bureau’s
census statistics, Oregon Health Authority
Department of Pubiic Health's public health and
community data, Oregon Department of Education’s
school data, and data from local organizations
compiled by Deschutes County Health Services.

A Note About Data: There are many great and widely-
used data sources available today. Data sets like these
require significant amounts of labor and resources
before they are made publicly available. This ean mean
unavoidable lag-time where data is many months, often
several years old. This [ag can present complications
when trying to interpret and apply the information for
the present day. While the data is still very valuable, it is
important to always look at the data sources’ dates and
time frames, and to become familiar with what and how
it is measured. For example, the County Health Rankings
is a great and useful public health resource, but data
used to calculate 2012 County Health Rankings can date
as far back as 2003 {with 2010 being the most recent
year). Similarly, several indicators in this health report
pre-date the recession. These indicators are useful, but
cannot help us fully understand how difficult economic
times have impacted our region.




Lay the groundwork for future assessments
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A core function of pubiic health agencies and
public heaith practice is to examine the
community of interest. A wide range of data and
indicators that known to be related to population
and community health are used to describe the
community’s health status and factors that affect
the health of a community.

Attention to this data can help identify areas of
need, target populations at increased risk of poor
health outcomes, population health outcomes or
factors that appear better or worse than
comparison populations, or characteristics that
may increase or decrease risks of poor health. The
process is also important in gaining a better
understanding of how a community’s
characteristics play a role in the health and
wellbeing of a community.

Establishing a regular health
assessment processes ultimately
functions to inform timely public health
strategies that are responsive to a
community’s distinctive needs and to
lay the groundwork for assessing and
tracking health changes in the future.

This community health report is the first step in
creating a more coordinated, collaborative and on-
going process to continually assess our
community’s unigue needs.

In recent years, Central Oregon gained national
attention when unemployment rates approached
20% in some areas and subsequent shifts in the
economic climate dramatically altered day-to-day
living for many Central Oregonians. Other counties
in Oregon and the nation experienced similar
economic difficulties, but not with the magnitude
of Central Oregon.

Identify community strengths =

Identify current health needs and trends =

Track progress toward heaith goals =

Assess capacity & resources

The health impacts of these economically difficult
times should be monitoredin the coming years, as
many effects will not be seen for several years,

Many of the statistics that could describe Crook
County’s heatlth reside in the gaps of state and
national data systems. Several reliable nationwide
surveys are unable provide estimates or data for
Central Oregon, making it difficult to derive local
meaning from some of the more readily available
secondary data. For example, there are gaps in large
data sets such as the Behavioral Risk Factor
Surveillance System (BRFSS), the National Health and
Nutrition Examination Survey {NHANES) and the
Youth Risk Behavior Surveillance System {YRBSS),
which many counties rely on for data to drive
community health assessments.

Simitarly, indicators collected in nationwide surveys
are not always applicable to many rural popuiations.
For example, environmental exposures that may be
important indicators of environmental health to the
nation as a whole {e.g., number of quality air days)
may provide a false sense of environmental health in
Central Oregon when other exposures such as
pesticides or arsenic may be more relevant to the
pepulation. Yet, this information is not easily
accessed or routinely assessed.

Based on these factors, the following components
will be essential components to establish on-going
community health assessment in Central Oregon in
the future:

a) community and regional partnerships,

b) utilization of existing data from outside sectors
and organizations, ¢} improved data sharing among
collaborating agencles, d) dedicated resources to
compile existing data into comprehensive,
meaningful and interpretable formats, e) sharing
results broadly in accessible formats, and f) engaged
community-member and stakeholder input,
feedback and collaborative processes.

Understand the community =
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There are unlque characteristics in Central When coupling constraints on available data due to the

Oregon that set our region apart from the rest of nature of data sources, collection methods, data sharing
Oregon, Over many decades, climate, land types, agreements and fundamental ruies of statistics together
resources, history, economics, and policies have with Central Oregon’s small population size,

influenced our population, whe lives here, what
we do for work and pleastire, and the health of our
community.

Central Oregon has many strengths - from
wide-open spaces to groups dedicated to
improving access to outdoor recreation, from a
vibrant werkforce to organizations leading the
charge for a more collaborative, healthier Central
Oregon. Those communities, organizations and
decision-makers who work together in identifying
our unique strengths will be empowered to craft
strategies and initiatives that capitalize on the
elements that make our communities strong,

Taday, the peopfe of the Confederatea‘ Tnbes contmu :
“rassert and exerclse soverefgn authority over the trfba
o _reservatfon, ow_-r other territary within tnbal jurlsdict

Data shows that Central Oregon counties
are markedly different.

There are distinct and substantial differences
hetween our counties. Community characteristics
linked to health outcomes are found to have a
wide range between our counties. Thus, there may
be Issues or areas of concern that are specific to
individual counties. Similarly, our counties have
different strengths, capacity and resources to

address issues and concerns. The critical point to - Judiclal author!ty ta enfarce valid Ieg:siat:ve and executive
remember for program, policy and decision- - orders. Our: soverelgn authority includes the nght tochoose
making Is that while there are many similaritles . not to adopt formal, written laws, procedures, or policies

overnmg ‘particular subjectsforma} faws can be | in trus:ve

among countles, there are also many differences
that must be acknowledged for strategies to be
successful.

: 'ddressed by informal, 'traditmnal wa'

In the same vein, differences exIst within each
county at city, community and
neighborhood levels. Bend and La Pine are not
the same. One neighborhood of Madras may be
different from others in the same town. Day-td-day
in Prineville is different from remote, unincorporated
areas of Crook County. Sometimes these differences
impact people’s health. Sometimes they do not.
Regardless, these differences can affect whether or .
not a program, policy or initiative will be successful
and must be acknowledged.

it is difficull ~ often impossible -to get fown and
neighborhood-level data for numerous
indicators. COHR 2012, therefore, is limited in its
ability to provide detailed information for smaller
geographic areas. In the future, availability and utility of
data could improve by investing in:
strengthened partnerships and collaboration;
e changes in existing data systems;
e and establishing regional infrastructure and
capacity to collect, analyze and interpret data
with quality and reliability.




Health
Outcomes

Health
Factors

Mortality

Morbidity

Health
Behaviors

Clinical Care

Social &
Economic
Factors

Physical

Environment

Crook Deschutes Jefferson
CHANGE CHANGE CHANGE
FROM FROM FROM
2010 2011 2012 2010

2010 2011 2012 o010

2010 2011 2012 2010

14 14 12

*Only 33 of 36 counties ranked

= Bottom Quartile In State Rank of Countiss

=Top Quartile in State Rank of Countiss
= State ranking in 2012 lower than 2010
= State ranking in 2012 higher than 2010

5. Kingston, Deschetes County Health Services/Public Health Department, 04/2012
Rokert Wood Johnson Foundatlon, County Health Rankings: Oregon 2010, Oregon 2011, & Oregon
2011. Retrieved from htip:/fwww.countyhealthrankings.cra/ranking-methods/exploring-data




‘IO'impOrmni' things to know about HEALTH

*Excerpts from “Ten Things You Should Know About Health,” Unnatural Causes {2008)
- (California Newsreel, 2008, Retrieved from http://www. unnaturalcauses.orgften_things.php )

1. Hedalth is more than

hedlth care opoctors treat us
when we are ill, but what makes us
healthy or sick in the first place?
Research shows that sociat conditions—
the jobs we do, the money we're paid,
the schools we attend, the
neighborhoods we live in—are as
important to our health as our genes, our
behaviors and even our medical care.

2. Socidl policy is health

pO"CY Average life expectancy in
the U.S. improved by 30 years during the
20th century. Researchers attribute much
of that increase not to drugs or medical
technologies but to social changes such
as improved wage and work standards,
universal schooling, Improved sanitation
and housing, and civil rights laws, These
are as much health issues as diet,
smoking and exercise.

3. We dll pay the price

for poor health 1snotony
the poor but also the middie classes
whose health is suffering, We already
spend 52 trillion a year to patch up our
bodies, mare than twice per person than
the average rich country spends, and our
health care system Is stralned. Yet we are
far from the top for life expectancy and
infant mortality. As a society, we face a
choice: invest in the conditions that can
improve health today or pay to repair
bodies tomorrow.

4. Inequality (economic
and political) is bad for
health

5. Health is tied to

distribution of resources
The single strongest predictor of our
health is our position on the class
pyramid, Whether measured by income,
schooling, or occupation, those at the
top have the most power and resources
and on average live longer and healthier
lives. Those at the bottom are most
disempowered and get sicker and die
younger, The rest of us fall somewhere
in between. On average, people in the
middle are almost twice as fikely to die
an early death compared to those at the
top; those on the bottom, four times as
likely. Even amaong people who smoke,
poor smaokers have a greater risk of
dying than rich smokers.

4. The choices we make
are shaped by the

choices we have indiidual
behaviors —~ smoking, diet, drinking, and
exercise ~ matter for health. Making
healthy choices isn't just about self-
discipline. Some neighborhoods have
easy access to fresh, affordable produce,
others have only fast food joints and
liquor and convenience stores. Seme
have nice homes, clean parks, safe places
to walk, jog, bike or play, and well-
financed schools offering gym, art, music
and after-school programs. And some
don’t. How can we better ensure healthy
spaces and places for everyone?

10. Health inequities are not natural
Health differences that arise from our inequities result from decisions we as a society have made - and can make differently, Two
important strategies: make sure inequality is less and try to ensure that everyone has access to health promoting resources
regardless of their personal wealth (e.g., good schools and health care are available to everyone, not just the affluent).

7. Chronic siress can be

toxic {and is a strong predictor
of poor hedlth outcomes)

Exposure to fear and uncertainty
triggers a stress response. Our bodies go
on alert: the heart beats faster, blood
pressure rises, glucose floods the
bloodstream — all so we can hit harder
or run faster until the threat passes. But
when threats are constant and
unrelenting our physiological systems
don't return to narmal. Like gunning the
engine of a car, this constant state of
arousal, even if [ow-level, wears us
down over time, increasing our risk for
disease.

8. High demand + low

control = chronic stress
The lower in the pecking order we are,
the greater our exposure to forces that
can upset our lives - insecure and low-
paying jobs, uncontrolled debt, capricious
supervisors, unreliable transportation,
poor childcare, no healthcare, noisy and
violent living conditions - and the less
access we have to the money, power,
knowledge and social connections that
can help us cope and gain control over
those forces.

9. Racism and
discrimination in any
form imposes an added

hedalth burden Segregation,
social exclusion, encounters with
prejudice, the degree of hope and
optimism people have, differential access
and treatment by the health care system
— all of these can Impact health.




Demographics

Since 1990, Central Oregon has experienced dramatic population growth. From 1990 to 2010, the population increased
in Crook from 14,111 t0 20,978, in Deschutes from 74,958 to 157,733, and in Jefferson from 13,676 to 21,720

residents.

Crook County has an older population, with a
median age of 42.4 years and 20% of residents age
65 years or older. Deschutes County’s median age is
39.7 years, and 14,9% of residents are 65 years or
older. Jefferson County has the youngest median
age of 38.1 years and 15.3% of residents in
Jefferson are 65 years or older.

in lefferson, both the birth rate and the percent of
residents younger than 18 years old are than the
highest in Central Oregon. More than 1in 4
residents in Jefferson are younger than 18 years
old. In Deschutes, 23% of the population is under 18
years, compared to 21.9% In Crook. Since 2000,
Jefferson’s age-adjusted birth rate has been higher
than Crook, Deschutes, and the state of Oregon. In
2008, Jefferson’s age-adjusted birth rate was 16.8
per 1,000—higher than Oregon’s rate of 13 per
1,000, and higher than Crook (8.3) and Deschutes
{11.6).

Deschutes County is the most urban in Central
Oregon. Only 27.6% of residents live in rural
designations, compared to 48.02% in Crook and
63.12% in Jefferson, Deschutes County also has
higher population density—an average of 2,110
people per square mile in areas with a population
greater than 50,000 people, and 1,750.1 people per
square mile in areas with populations of 2,500-
50,000 people. Rural areas of Crook County have
the smallest population density: 3.4 people per
square mile.

AT A GLANCE...

Crook Deschutes lJefferson
MEDIAN AGE 42.4 39.7 38.1
% 65+ YEARS OLD 20% 14.9% 15.3%
% RURAL 48% 28% 63%
% HISPANIC/LATING 7% 7.4% 19.3%
% WHITE 89.4% 88.4% 61.8%
{NON-HISPANIC/ LATINO) 20 W70 il
AMERICAN INDIAN/
ALASKA NATIVE 1.4% 0.9% 16.5%
2 OR MORE RACES 2% 2.5% 3.8%
BEACK/
AFRICAN-AMERICAN 0.2% 0.4% 0.6%
ASIAN 0.5% 0.9% 0.4%

Parcent Latina Papuiation [2016)
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Life Expectancy & Births

Life Expectancy at
birth in
CROOK COUNTY:

80.1 years

Jefferson County is
the only county in

i Oregon where the

life expectancy has
declined since the

i year 2000.

2,170 babies were
born to Central
Oregon residents.
Of these, 8.3% were
from Crook, 78.8%
were from
Deschutes, and
12.9% were from
Jefferson.

Life Expectancy at
birth in
DESCHUTES COUNTY:

81.1 years

Age-Adjusted birth
rates (per 1,000)
Crook: 8.3
Deschutes: 11.6
lefferson: 16.8
Oregon: 13

In Crook and
Deschutes, birth
rates and total
humber of births
appear to be in

decline since 2007.

Life Expectancy at
birth in
JEFFERSON COUNTY:

75.8 years

Preliminary birth and
death data reveal that
Crook, unlike
Deschutes and
Jefferson, had more
deaths than births in
2010 and 2011: 181
births to 229 deaths in
2010 & 176 births to
220 deaths in 2011.

38% of Crook

County births,

35% of Jefferson
County births &

42% of Deschutes
County births were to
first-time mothers.




Modifiable Risks & Behaviors

Jefferson county’s rate
of death from motor
vehicle crashes is more
than Crook and
Deschutes County rates
combined.

Crook County’s adult
smoking rate is among
the highest in the state
at 23%.

: 69.4%o0f CROOK

- 61.1% of DESCHUTES &
51.4% of JEFFERSON
adults met
recommendations for
PHYSICAL ACTIVITY*

% Aduits who are
Overweight*
CROOK: 39.1%
DESCHUTES: 41.0%
JEFFERSON: 41.9%
OREGON:  36.1%

Last month, of all Central
Cregonians age 12 and
clder,

8.1% used MARIJUANA
4.6% used ILLICIT DRUGS
other than marijuana
6.1% used PRESCRIPTION
PAIN RELIEVERS to get
high' -

¥ of motor vehicle
fatalities In Jefferson
County involve alcohol.

11% to 12.5% of Central
Oregon adults use
smokeless tobacco.

More than 6,400 people
die every year from a

serious iliness caused by
TOBACCO USE in Central

Oregon.

14% of CROOK

26% of DESCHUTES &
32% of JEFFERSON aduits
consume at least

5 SERVINGS OF FRUITS &
VEGGIES PER DAY*

75.9 % of CROOK

69.4% of DESCHUTES &
77.1% of JEFFERSON
Two-year olds were up to
date on immunizations

{4 DTaP, 31PV, 1 MMR, 2 Hib, 3
Hep8 [or 2-dose Merck Series],
and 1 Varicella) .

*age-adjusted rates, BRFSS 2006-2009

- 91% of JEFFERSON

school-age children.

87% of CROOK
92% of DESCHUTES &

8 graders report they
live in a SMOKE-FREE
HOME

Deschutes County has
the highest rate of
tobacco quit attempts in
a year (61% of tobacco
users).

An estimated 6.7% of all
Central Oregonians age
12 and older have
ALCOHOL DEPENDENCE
That is more than 14,000
Central Oregonians.

% Adults who are
Obhese*

CROOK: 31.5%
DESCHUTES: 15.7%
JEFFERSON: 25.3%
OREGON:  24.5%

A growing number of
parents opt out of some
or all immunizations for

Deschutes’ kindergarten
religious exemption rate
of 9.0% for is
substantially higher than
the state average of 5.6%
(2010-2011 school year).
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Socio-Economic Health

The census tracts with
the highest median
incomes in Central
Oregon are in Deschutes
County. These tracts
have median incomes
from $61,000 to more
than 582,000 per year.

Food Insecurity is
believed to impact 22.2%
1 of Crook residents, 18.2%
: of Deschutes Residents,

: and 20.4% of Jefferson
residents (compared to

16.8% of Oregon}.

The 7 census tracts with
the lowest median incomes
in Central Oregon are:
Crook (1 tract), Deschutes
{4 tracts), Jefferson {2
tracts). Each of these have
median incomes less than
$40,000 per year,

Nearly 84% of Jefferson
County School District
children are eligible for free
or reduced lunch—more
than any other Central
Oregon school district.

Deschutes County has
more jobs per capita
than Crook and
Jefferson (2009
estimates).

In 2011, a 1-night
shelter count revealed a
total of 2,373 homeless
individuals in the tri-
county area. 2291n
Crook, 1,873 in
Deschutes, and 271 in
Jefferson.

UNEMPLOYMENT RATES (SEASONALLY ADJUSTED, %) 1/1990 to 2/2012

20
18

=== (rook

s Deschutes

[

Jan-80

Jul-90
Jan-81
Jul-91 -
Jan-82
Jui-92 -
Jan-93 4
Jul-93 -
Jan-94
Jul-84
Jan-85 1
Jul-95 A
Jan-96
Jul-96
Jan-97

Jul-97
1an-98 -
Jul-98 A
Jan-99 -
Jul-99 1
Jan-00
Jul-00
Jan-0%
Jul-01 1
Jan-02
Jul-02 =
Jan-03 7
Jui-03 -
Jan-04
Jul-04
Jan-05

Jul-05
Jan-06 1

Jul-06 -
Jan-07 1
Jul-07 A
Jan-08 1
Jul-08 A
Jan-08
Jul-08 -
Jan-10
Jul-10 A
Jan-11 1
Jul-11 4
Jan-12 -

While unemployment is trending downward across the nation, unemployment
remains high in Central Oregon. In Feb 2012, unemployment rates were:
CROOK 14.4%, Deschutes 11.3%, JEFFERSON 12.8%, OREGON 8.8%, U.S. 8.3%

Oregen Labor Market Inforrmation Systern {OLMIS), {03 April 2012) Oregon Employment Department, Local Area
Unemplayment Statistics, 01/1980 -- 2/2012, Retrieved fror hitp://vwawrw qualityinfo.orgfolmisiflabforce
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Central Oregonians Uninsured

Not having access to health insurance prevents individuals from accessing needed care and preventive services. The
majority of uninsured utilize fewer services than those with insurance; and those who do seek services are confronted
with bills that many cannot afford to pay. Delaying health care can be costly and life threatening—particularly in
circumstances where early detection and treatment could provide a cure or prolonged life.

Nearly 1 out of every 6 Central Oregonians are uninsured—about 1 in 5 adults age 19-64—suggesting more than
30,300 individuals are uninsured (based on results from the 2011 Oregon Health Insurance Survey}.

POINT-IN-TIME ESTIMATE

2,588 children 0-18 years old

468 in Crook, 1,559 in Deschutes, and 561 in Jefferson

10.6% 10.0%

27,723 adults 19-64 years old

2,581 in Crook, 22,419 in Deschutes, and 2,723 in
Jefferson

0-18 yrs 19-64 yrs 200%FPL&  201%FPL &
UNDER#$ ABOVE*

UNINSURED FOR 1 ENTIRE YEART

1,595 children 0-18 years old

241 children in Crook, 1,065 children in Deschutes, and
289 children in Jefferson

27,305 adults 19-64 years old

2,163 in Crook, 22,419 in Deschuies, and
2,723 in Jefferson
In the last 12 months:

5,639 children 0-18 years old

594 children in Crook, 4,334 children in Deschutes,
and 711 children in lefferson

29,756 adults 19-64 years old

2,868 in Crook, 23,863 in Deschutes, and
0-18 yrs 19-64 yrs 3,025 In Jefferson

*QOregon Health Insurance Survey estimated state uninsurance rates by reglon, Crook & Jefferson Counties were estimated in Region 2, with Gilllam, Grant, Hood River,

Morrow, Sherman, Wasco & Wheeler Counties. Deschutes County was the only county in region 2.

FEstimate for % of FPLIs Individuals of all ages

T All of previous 12 months 12
DHS/OHA Offica for Oregon Health Policy and Research, (2011). Reglonal Health insurance Coverage in Qregon: results from the 2011 Oregon Health Insurance Survey,

Septerber 2011, Retrieved from htp:/fwww.oregon.gov/OHA/OHPR/RSCH/docs /Uninsured/OHIS 2011 Uninsured Reglonal Fact Sheet Nov2i.pdf




Chronic Disease & Preventive
Screenings

Arthritis 25.8% 28.4% - 28.0% 47.5%

Asthma 9.7% 13.1% 9.2% 6.6% 1
Heart o

Attack 3.3% 7.3%%t 2.7% 3.0%t
Angina 3.4% 7.7%%+ 2.4% 2.8%}
Stroke 2.3% - 1.2%* 1.9%%t
Diabetes 6.8% 9.0% . 5.0% 6.5%
High Blood % .
Prossure 25.8% 46.2%* 20.6% 16.9%"*
High Blood

Cholasterol 33..0% N 41.8% 32.1% 20.2%%

* Statistically significant difference compared with Oregon.

T This number may be statistically unreliable and should be interpreted with caution.

- This number Is suppressed because it is statistically unreliable.

Age-adjusted estimates adjusted to the 2000 Standard Population using three age groups.

Source: Oregon BRFSS Caunty Combined Dataset 2006-2009
http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesCanditions/ChronicDisease/Documents/TablelV.odf

The % of adults who had | Lower rate of new of ! Higher rate of new
cholesterol checked fung & bronchus cancer cancer cases each year
within past 5 years is cases in Deschutes than  § in Crook than Oregon
lower in Jefferson than Oregon and US: and US:

QOregon and the region 57.7 per 100,000 £ 527.7 per 100,000
{age-adjusted rate), people* ! people*

Higher rate of new

prostate cancer cases 56.3% of adults in Jefferson had their cholesterol
each year in Deschutes checked in last 5 years, compared with 71.3% in
than Oregon and US: Oregon, 81.7% in Crook and 73.3% in Deschutes.
172.1 per 100,000

males*

*Age-adjusted incidence, statistically significant).




Healthy Environments

Average Annual | Asthma is the leading chronic health condition
A.s’fh-mo' among children in the U.S. A person’s immediate
Hospitalizations | environment—whether in the home, workplace,
Rates, All-Ages | gutdoors, at school—may have triggers that cause
Per 10,000 (age- serious asthma attacks. Common triggers found
adjusted), 2000-2007 indoors include: smoke, dust mites, mold, mildew,
animals with fur or feathers, chemicals and strong
CROOK: 6.7 fragrances. Common outdoor triggers include pollens
DESCHUTES: 5.3 | from plants, air pollution caused by industrial
JEFFERSON: 11.1 1| emissions, smoke, and exhaust from machinery and

OREGON: 4.5 | automobiles.

OHA/DHS Puﬁilc Helath Divislon, Environmenta! Public Health Tracking,
{2012). Ashtma: Hospitallzations, All €ountles, 2000-2007. Retrleved from
hitp://epht.oregon.gov/IRMA

% of households that are Low Income and...
CROOK DESCHUTES

more than 1 mile

to grocery store* 15.9% 12.97% 25, 5%
more than 10 miles 3.15% 0.14% S maw

to grocery store*

*DBata for this indicator from 2008. US bepartment of Agriculture Food Atlas Data, 2006, 2007, 2008, Retrieved
from http./fmaps.ers.usda.gov/FoodAtlas/

There are several identified causes of cancer— | Average A_\nnUCﬂ
family history, lifestyle and personal choices, diet, | Cancer incidence
drug, alcohol and tobacco use, and repeated : Rates, All-Ages

per 10,000 (age-adjusted),

exposure to carcinogens. Carcinogens can be
2004-2008

found in the air, food, drugs, workplace by-
products, chemicals, pesticides, x-rays and
radiation. While many cancers are caused by :

genetics or personal choices, cancer rates can also CROOK: 51.79
be indicators of the health of an environment. 1 DESCHUTES: 47.64
: JEFFERSON: 41.37
Crook County has the 3rd highest average annual : QOREGON:  44.5
-incidence of cancer among Oregon counties
(2004-2008). Even when looking at 10 years of
data, Crook County’s cancer rates remain higher Rates calculated using SEER*Stat,
than the state at a statistically significant level. http://statecancerprofiles.cancer.gov
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Behavioral, Mental &
Emotional Health

The estimated number of
adults with serious mental
Hliness:

CROOK.: 1,037
DESCHUTES: 7,178
JEFFERSON: 506

*hased on CMHS prevalence
estimation/ Kessler Adult SM|
and 2010 census data.

More than 3,300

consumers of mental health
services were HOMELESS in
Central Oregon in 2010.

% of youth who
exhibited
psychological Distres

{based on Mental
Health Inventory-5,
010.

11th Grade

8th Grade

Suicide Rates by County, 3-Year Moving
Averages* 1993-2010

ez (rook emmsDeschutes ewwenlefferson

1954-19%6
1995-1987
1996-19%8
1957-1999
1998-2000
1999-2001
2000-2002
2001-2003
2002-2004
2002-2005
2004-2006
2005-2007
2008-2008
2007-2009
2008-2010

1992-1995

*Crude {unadjusted] rate per 100,000 population; Using
intercensal Revised Population Estimates {July 1%) for 1993-
2010. Note: Suicide data for 2010 is preliminary data.

From 1993 to 2010, there were

533 deaths from suicide.
69 in CROOK
398 in DESCHUTES
66 in JEFFERSON

{ 18.4% of CROOK
20.6% of DESCHUTES
& 30.5% of JEFFERSON

An estimated 5,153

children HAVE SERIOUS
MENTAL ILLNESS in 11 graders had 2

Central Oregon {2008 depressive episode in
estimate). 2010.
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Communicable Disease

Reportable Disease Rankings by County & Type*:

FOOD, WATER, SANITATION &
HYGIENE

CRCOOK

#1 Campylobacteriosis (22.4)
#2 Cryptosporidiosis (8.8)
#3 Salmonellosis (6.8)

DESCHUTES

#1 Campylobacteriosis (29.6)
#2 Giardiasis (18.8)

#3 E. coli 0157 (10.6)

JEFFERSON
#1 Campylobacteriosis {26.6)
#2 Shigellosis (12.4)
#3 Giardiasis (9.5)
*Rate per 10,000
Unadjusted aggregated incidence rates, 2005-2010

DROPLET & AIRBORNE

CROOK

#1 Haemophilus influenza (2.9)
#2 Pertussis (1.9)

# 3 Tuberculosis {1.9)

BESCHUTES

#1 Pertussis {4.9)

#2 Haemophilus influenza {1.6)
#3 Meningococcal disease (1.5)

JEFFERSON

#1 Haemophilus influenza (6.7)
#2 Tuberculosis {2.9)

#3 Meningococcal disease (0.95)

OREGON

CROOK DESCHUTES JEFFERSON
Early Syphilis 95 .06 A4
. Gonorrhea 95 38 - 3.89
Chlamydiosis 13.35 32.52 b4 44 35.73

Unadjusted incidence {per 10,000)
preliminary rates

Oregon BHS/OHA Pubic Health Department {2012) Oregon STD Cases by County & Quarter of Report.
. http://public.health.cregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/DlseaseSurvelllancebata/Pages/
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Top 3 Killers

by % of Counly's Deaths{2009}

1 CANCER, 24.3%

2 HEART DISEASE, 17%

3 CHRONIC LOWER RESPIRATORY
DISEASE, 9.8%

1 CANCER, 23.8%

2 HEART DISEASE, 20.6%

3 CHRONIC LOWER RESPIRATORY .
DISEASE, 6.61%

1 CANCER, 20.3%
2 HEART DISEASE, 13.9%
3 UNINTENTIONAL INJURY, 7.9%

CROOK

What is killing use

The 2009 death rate was lower
than the state of Oregon (8 per
10,000} in both Crook (7.1 per
10,000) and Deschutes (6.7 per
10,000) at a statistically
significant level. However,
Jefferson’s death rate, was
higher than the state (9.5 per
10,000} at a statistically
significant level.

Chronic disease continues to
be the number one killer in
Central Oregon. Cancer, heart
disease, cerebrovascular
disease, arteriosclerosis and
chronic lower respiratory
disease claim numerous lives
every year. in 2009, Central

DESCHUTES

Note: Unadjusied, crude raies

CLRD: Chronic lower Respiratory Disease
CeVD: Cerebrovascular Disease

Oregon lost 369 lives to Cancer,
300 to Heart Disease and 107 to
chronic lower respiratory disease
{CLRD).

Death rates from heart disease
in Oregon are higher in rural
areas than urban areas {Oregon
DHS/OHA Heart Disease and
Stroke in Oregon: Update 2010).
Approximately 5.3% of Oregon
aduits have coronary artery
disease (2010).

Unintentional Injury claimed 86
lives, almost as many as
Cerebrovascular Disease {87
lives) and was the 3" leading
cause of death in Jefferson.

JEFFERSON

Mabetes

Foind) Mmoo TT

HBP: Hypertension with/without renal disease
ALS: Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis

Size represents the % of each county’s overall deaths for that year; color represents the difference in the county’s unadjusted crude to the state
of Oregon's rate for that cause of death (green means county’s rate is lower than the state, red means county’s rate is higher than the state’s)
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U.S. Deaths & Attributable Causes, 2000:

246k

193k
176k
168k
162k

156k

133k

119k
3%k

Sandro Galea, Melissa Tracy, Katherine J. Hoggatt, Charles DiMaggio, and Adam Karpati. Estimated Deaths Atiributable o Social Factors in the
United States. American lournal of Public Heafth: August 2011, Vol. 101, No. 8, pp. 1456-1465.

low

myocardial infarction

racial se

cerebrovascular disecse

low s
lung cancer
individual poverty

accidents

arag-level poveny

doi: 10.2105/A1PH.2010.300086
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Disparity/Inequity
Comparative mortality ratios In areas of Southern Deschutes County and Northern lefferson County are significantly higher
than state average and this difference is considered a health disparity — geographic area is related to a difference in
mortality. But, the disparity can be considered a health inequity because it could possibly be avoided or unjust. Central
Oregonians are often not surprised to learn that our rural areas have high rates of poverty, less access to services, greater
distances to travel for needed care, and many individuals struggle to meet basic needs. What is often overlooked, however,
is that these systematic barriers needlessly impact individuals” health.
This Is just one example of disparity and inequity in our region, but many other disparities exist. Attention must be devoted
to uncover disparities unique to Central Oregon and to determine which must be addressed as inequities. Improving our
population’s health will require working toward health equity—communities where all individuals have the opportunity to

attain their full health potential, and no one is disadvantaged from achieving her/his potential because of soclatly
determined circumstances related to rural or urban living, race, socioeconomic status, education, etc.

Access o Resources

The ability to access resources, services or assistance is impacted by numerous factors, such as transportation, distance and
travel time, finances, social and cultural barriers, waiting time, and existing systems of care and program eligibility,
availability, location and capacity. For example, an elderly person living alone with no social support and unable to drive may
have financial means to see a dentist, but limited access due to transportation issues. Similarly, a working single mother with
no car may have access to public transportation, but if she cannot afford taking unpaid time off of work, her access to service
diminishes, Similarly, factors related to access impact rural residents differently than urban residents — an important point to
consider when planning for programs and services — since more than 41% of Central Oregonians live In unincorporated areas
and towns with less than 2,500 people.

Early Childhood Wellness

A child’s growth begins in preghancy and continues into adulthood. Interacting internal and external factors impact a child’s
social, environmental, physical, and cognitive potential. Children in surroundings unable to support their healthy growth or
meet their needs have increased risk for poor health, safety, development and ahility to learn. These unmet needs during
childhood pose threats to health long into adulthood and later life. Ensuring early childhood wellness is a short-term
investment for today and a long-term investment for business, health, education and social sectors in decades to come.

Food Insecurity

Crook and Jefferson counties were among the top 5 Oregon counties with highest food insecurity. Deschutes County has the
largest total number of food insecure individuals in Central Oregon. In Crook County, the average cost per meal is nearly $1
higher than in Deschutes County and the rest of Oregaon. It is estimated that more than 37% of children in Jefferson and
Crook Counties may be food insecure. In Deschutes County, of all the food insecure adults and children, 45% are not eligible
for SNAP or other federal food programs—a sizeable number of children and adults who may not be able to access much
needed assistance,.
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Oral Health

Oral health is frequently identified by providers, teachers and community members as an area of concern in Central Oregon.
Existing data systems do not currently support mechanisms to arrive at accurate and timely estimates of the burden poor
oral health causes in the region, Poor oral health can cause pain, discomfort, and disfigurement. It can affect an individual’s
quality of life, ability to eat and to speak, or interfere with opportunities to learn, work, participate, engage and contribute.
What's more, oral health is related to chronic disease in later life. While prevalence and incidence data for the region may be
lacking, community and stakeholder input suggests improving the oral health of all Central Oregonians is important and
necessary.

Safety, Crime & Violence

A community’s safety impacts the population’s health in numerous ways—from victims of violence to post-traumatic stress,
from psychological distress to exercise and diet. Exposure to violence is known o increase stress, which is Iinked to
increased hypertension, stress-related disorders and chronic disease. Trauma from violence can have intergenerational
effects. Central Oregon’s rates of total crime appear to be on the decline since the late 1990s, and more work should be
done to continue this trend. Deschutes is in the top 5 Oregon counties with the highest rates (unadjusted 2010 rates) of both
total crimes and violent crimes per 10,000. fefferson County was among the 10 Oregon counties with the fewest number of
police per 1,000 population. Last year, more than 1,450 individuals in Central Oregon called an emergencey crisis line about
domestic violence alone. Healthy populations require safe communities to live, work and play where individuals affected by
violence or ctime can access necessary support and services to heal,

Chronic Disease

In the last 65 years, adult chronic disease has grown into the main health problem for industrialized nations. Cardiovascular
disease, cancers, diabetes and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease account for at least 50% of the global mortality
burden. In Central Oregon, chronic diseases are the leading causes of death for each county. Crock’s age-adjusted
prevalence of adults with high blood pressure is 46.2%, significantly higher than 25.8% of adults for all of Oregon. Deschutes’
age-adjusted prostate cancer incidence rate is higher than the state, while Jefferson’s age-adjusted prevalence of arthritis is
higher than its neighboring counties and the state, Multiple types of exposures, modifiable behaviors and risk factors are
known to play a role in the development of chronic disease in later life, such as personal dietary and exercise choices,
chronic stress, exposures in utero and throughout early childhood, income, genetics, and the built environment to name a
few.

Alcohol, Drug & Tobacco Use

Heavy drinking, drug use and tobacco use is associated with higher rates of all-cause mortality, chronic disease, violence and
abuse. Excessive alcohol and drug use s also a risk factor for motor vehicle fatalities, fetal alcohol syndrome, interpersonal
violence, overdose and sexually transmitted infections. Tobacco use causes multiple diseases such as cancer, respiratory
disease, and other adverse health outcomes. In 2009, more than 19% of adult males in Central Oregon reported binge
drinking in the last 30 days, In Central Oregon, younger adults have higher rates of alcoho! dependence {in past 12 months)
than older adults—217% of adults age 18-25 years, compared to 6.8% of adults 26 years and older. lefferson County has
higher rates of death from alcohol-induced disease and motor vehicle fatalities that involve alcohol, Since 2001, Crook’s age-
adjusted rates of death from drug-induced causes have been higher than lefferson and Deschutes {Crook —13.7, Deschutes -
10.1, lefferson —10.5 per 100,000}.
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Behavioral Health

Around the world, major depression is a major cause of disabllity. In Deschutes County, suicide is claiming nearly as many lives as
motor vehicle accidents. [t is estimated more than 9,000 adults in the tri-county region have serious mental iliness. Roughly 1/3 of
Central Oregon 11" graders reported having a depressive episode in the last year —high depression scores in youth are associated
with poor academic achievement, anxlety, and poor peer and teacher relationships. Central Oregon can improve behavioral health
by working to prevent behavioral/mental health issues at the individual and community level, to identify early risk factors and
warning signs and to ensure the capacity and infrastructure exists to provide quality, affordable and accessible services for all
individuals in need. '

Healthy Environments

There is much to [earn about the environmental health characteristics specific to Central Oregon's communities. The ecologies of
individuals, families, communities and regions often determine options available for individuals to reach their full potential.
Environments exist on many scales — individuals, homes, neighborhoods, geographic regions. Environments simultaneously shape
and are shaped by organisms and individuals within them. For example, built and natural environments directly impact human
heatth, and humans directly impact the built and natural environments. Until recent decades, “environments” in public health
were most often associated with the natural outdoors — woods, streams, rivers and lakes. Growing bodies of research are showing
relationships with environments on other scales to the health of our popuiations. Locations of stores to purchase affordable fresh
frults and vegetables impact healthy choices. Safe and affordable alternative commute options impact the behaviors of individuals
to choose alternatives to driving, thus impacting the environment and the often the individual. Safe and easily accessible places to
play outdaors impact the ability of children to play outside, thus impacting their physical activity and health,

Central Oregon tacks current and refevant data on multiple scales of environment to uncover relationships between where people
live, work and play to thelr averall health and well-being. This knowledge about the region is expected to expand in coming years,
particularly with recent coltaborative efforts with local agencies and individuals looking at transportation, commuting options,
healthy housing, farmers markets, and healthy spaces for kids and adults to play and exercise.
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APPENDIX E — Financial Reporting and Solvency Questionnaire

Section 1 - Financial Organization

E.l.1. Corporate Organization and Structure

E.1.2.

E13

RFA 3402

E.1.1.a,

E.1.Lb,

E.l.lc.
E.1.1.d.

E.l.le,

PacificSource Community Solution’s (PSCS) articles of incorporation are attached. Please
see Attachment 1. '

PacificSource Comimunity Solutions, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PacificSource
Community Health Plans, Inc., an Oregon stock insurer. Please see stock information in
Attachment 2. ‘

PSCS does not possess any special licenses.

PSCS is a current MCO. There will not be any organizational changes that occur to conduct
operations as a CCO. The proposed service area for PSCS CCO is part of the current service
area for PSCS FCHP and MHO.

PSCS does not provide any administrative services or management contracts to other parties
where PSCS is the provider of services under this contract.

Corporate Affiliations, Transactions, Arrangements

E.12.a

E. 1.2,b

Please find PacificSource Health Plans expanded organizational chart attached including
" the corporate structure, character state abbreviation of the state of domicile, Federal

Employer’s Identification Number and NAIC code for insurers. There are not any

instances of interrelationships that are a 50/50% ownership. Please see Attachment 3.

PSCS has an ASA agreement with its parent company, PacificSource Community Health
Plans, Inc (PCHP). PCHP provides general management, technical, contracting, medical
management and accounting services, as well as corporate reporting for PSCS. PSCS
paid ASA fees to PCHP of $3,405,833 and $4,184,820 in 2010 and 201 1, respectively.

- Please find PSCS S Organizational Chart attached as Attachment 4.

General Questions

E.13a

- E13b

PSCS deferred submission of supporting documents, tables, and data that are part of its
Technical Application until its readiness review under Section 6.7.1. PSCS is requesting
deferred submission of the following documents:

1. Analysis of Encounterable or Unencounterable breakout of expenses
~ pending further review and analysis.
2. Provider contracts including rate exhibits,

PSCS has demonstrated experience and capacity for:

e Managing financial risk and establishing financial reserves: PSCS and its affiliated
entities, PacificSource Community Health Plan and PacificSource Health Plans have
extensive experience managing financial risk. The consolidated entities manage
premiums in excess of $1B and carry an AM Best rating of B++. PSCS has long-term
experience in establishing and managing its reserve accounts as an MCO. Additionally,
its affiliates PCHP and PacificSource Health Plans have significant experience
establishing reserves under DCBS guidelines and reporting under statutory accounting
principles.
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Meeting the minimum financial requirements for restricted reserves and net worth in
OAR 410-141-3350: PSCS currently meets the schedule G reserve requirements for an
MCO. Additionally, PSCS’s current and projected capital and surplus position results in
a Statutory Risk Based Capital ratio in excess of 600% and therefore in excess of the
specified minimum financial requirement,

Section 2: Demenstration of Financial Solvency

E.2. Applicable Measurement Standard

= PSCSs

eeks to convert from an MCO to a CCO. As such, Section E.2.1 questions apply.

E.2.1., Measurement Standard—Applies to MCO converting to CCO

Financi

E.2.1.a.

E.2.1.b.

E.2.1.c.

E2.1.d.

E2.l.e.

al Solvency Minimum Standard

PSCS will maintain restricted reserve funds required by its MCO contract(s), Exhibit
G, Section 7. The restricted reserves will be in place before terminating the PSCS’s
current MCO contract(s) to begin operations as a CCO. PSCS understands that
restricted reserves previously held by PSCS may, with consent of OHA, be
transferred to the CCO.

PSCS shall maintain a level of net worth as required by its MCO contract(s), Exhibit

- G, Section 8. If PSCS has a net worth less than the calculated minimum requirement,
PSCS’s net worth must be increased to an amount greater than or equal to the
minimum requirement prior to the award of a Contract under this RFA.

PSCS financial statements demonstrate that PSCS currently possess funds greater
than the financial solvency minimum standard. The financial statements are prepared
using the standards and forms required under PSCS MCO Contract(s), Exhibit G.
The most recent audited financial statements and financial statements of PSCS are
attached. Please see Attachment 5 and Attachment 6.

A copy of the Assignment & Assumption Agreement providing a guarantee from
PacificSource Community Health Plans to PSCS is attached. Based on the capital
position and CCO requirements, it is PSCS’s intention fo cancel this agreement at the
time the CCO is initiated. Please see Attachment 7.

A developmental budget delineating all expenses prior to beginning operation using
Table E-2: Monthly Developmental Budget is attached as Attaghment §.

An operational budget covering the initial two years of operation using Table E-3;
Monthly Operational Budget is attached as Attachment 8.

E2.1.f.  PSCS’s monthly staffing plan for the last three months of the CCO developmental or

RFA 3402

planning budget and the initial three years of the CCO is as follows. In the past,
PSCS has staffed its operations with an administrative service agreement with
PacificSource Community Health Plans. It is PSCS plan to continue this practice as a
CCO. Additional hires to accomplish the work of transition will be completed in
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PCHP and will become part of the ASA expense for PSCS. The expense budget for
the CCO shows as a one line item titled ASA/Compensation which includes the cost
of all staff. Accordingly, no monthly staffing plan has been provided with this
document.

E.2.1.g. PSCS’s pro forma balance sheet, income statement (p&I) and cash flow schedules

reflecting anticipated assets, capital, revenue, expense, and cash flow using Table E-
1: Pro Forma Projections for the First Five Years is attached as Attachment 8.

Section 3 - Demonstration of Ability to Achieve the Financial Goals

E.3.1. General Questions Relating to Financial Management

RFA 3402

E.3.1.a PSCS uses best practices in the management of finances, contracts, claims processing,

E.3.1.b

payment functions and provider network administration through internal control measures
and regular monitoring and review of procedures. Monthly financials are prepared,
reconciled and compared to budget. Contracts are reviewed by multiple parties prior to
finalization. Claims processing is outsourced to a sophisticated subcontractor specializing in
Medicaid payments. Payment functions follow best practices for internal controls and are
audited at multiple levels. The provider network contracting is done through a dedicated
department with oversight by the Vice President of Provider Network.

Information related to PSCS’s assets and financial and risk management capabilities, is as
follows.

o Access to capital and ability to generate capital growth to fulfill restricted reserve and net
worth requirements: PCSC carries capital in excess of net worth requirements. PSCS has
the ability to generate additional capital though requests for investment from its parent
PacificSource Community Health Plans, subject to DCBS and Board approval,

e Risk management measures: PSCS has risk sharing with providers. Along with effective
utilization management programs, risk sharing is one of our most effective risk
management strategies, The already implemented integrated approach in Central Oregon
(integrating behavioral and medical health) also improves PSCS’s ability to manage costs
through better coordination of care that has already occurred..

e Delegated risk; risk sharing arrangements: PSCS has deferred submission of risk sharing
contracts or terms sheets until Readiness Review.

e Reinsurance and stop loss. Reinsurance or stop loss policy will reduce the risk borne by
PSCS CCO through shared risk with Presidio for certain claims over a specific dollar
threshold. A copy of the Reinsurance agreement has been provided as Attachment 9.

e PSCS has developed adequate Incurred but not Reported (IBNR) and unpaid claims
reserves given PSCS’s expected Enroliment level and its mix of covered lives/rate
category. This actuarial determination reflects health systems responsibilities requited by
HB 3650 as well as the effects of alternative payment methodologies implemented by
PSCS in its payments to hospitals, physician groups, or other providers and risk-sharing
arrangements:
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RFA 3402

o Claims payment: A combination of methods is used to estimate the claim

liability on unpaid claims. The “development method” is used for older
and more credible months and a combination of regression methods and

- PMPM methods are used for more recent months. In addition to claim lag,

other considerations in setting claims liability would be seasonality, claims
cost trends, growing/diminishing membership, claims administration
disruption/backlogs, shock claims and capitation changes. Margin for error
is added to the estimate to ensure adequacy within an acceptable standard
deviation. Risk arrangements if any are general adjustments to the liability
estimate, '

Participation in the All Payer All Claims reporting program: PSCS
contributes data to the All Payer All Claims program.,

Internal auditing and financial performance monitoring: There is an
internal peer review process to make sure IBNR reserves meet statutory
standards. The appointed actuary certifies reserves as part of the annual
statement process. External auditors confirms and certifies these reserves
as well,

Administrative cost allocation across books of business (including
Medicaid, Medicare, and commercial). PSCS has an ASA agreement with
its parent company, PacificSource Community Health Plans, Inc (PCHP).
PCHP provides general management, technical, contracting, medical
management and accounting services, as well as corporate reporting for
PSCS.
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CERTIFICATE

State of Oregon

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
Corporation Division

I, KATE BROWN, Secretary of State of Oregon, and Custodian of the Seal of
said State, do hereby certify:

That the attached Document File for.

PACIFICSOURCE COMMUNITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

is a true copy of the original documents
that have been filed with this office.

In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunto sef
my hand and affixed hereto the Seal of the
State of Oregon,

[y —

KATE BROWN, Secretary of State
April 18, 2012

Come vislt us on the intérnst at hitp:/Awww filinginoregon.com
FAX (503) 378-4381
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REGISTRY NUMBER: /plg 70— 25

ARTICLES OF INC
OF
- CENTRAL OREGON INDIVIDUAL HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC,

wmt:ou Act {the “Act”), the undcrsigrwd

mcmponﬁoninorganimdwpmds&alﬂmsemwem&mof
managed heatthcare plans, and such other purposes and activitics as may be determined
from time to time which are in sccordance with the provisions of ORS Chapter 60,

" The aggregate number of shares that cmporauon shall have authority to issue
is 10,000 shares of no par value, voting

. Action of Shareho&de:n ithout a Meeting

Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the shareholders
may be taken without a eeting if one or more consents in writing, setting forth the™
action so taken, shall be signed by the number of sharehiolders having not less than i
minimum number of voles that would be necassary to take such sction at a meeting at
which all shareholders entitled to vole on the action were present and voted, and such
consent(s) are delivered to the corporation for inclusion in the minute book. - Action
taken pursuant to this Article IV is effectivé when the consent or consenis bearing
sufficient signatures are delivered to the corporation, unless the consent .ot consents
specify an earlier or later effective date, If tho action to be taken requires that notice
must be given to nonvoling shareholders, corporation shall give the nonvoting
sharchoklers written notice of the pmposed ion promptly afier the action is taken.
The corporation shall also provide written notice of the action, promptly after the action

.ﬁ"zp




is taken, to those sharebolders who were entitled to vote upon the matter but did not

mmmmmm Nm het is required to be given pursuant to this
sccompaniad by the same material thet would have been

muhwdwbemmﬂwmavoﬁagaw regular sharchobders, aswp!mb!c ina

m of W #t M the W A RIE] m MW Mn plEgsesien

shareholders for sction, e such notice of mesting requivement

the corporation’s bylaws, A consent signed

mzeting voie and may be described as such I

ng violation of the law; (3) any unlawful
(ﬁmcw;demadmimpmpﬁpmmal

83  Certals Deflaitions, For the purposcs of this Article, the terms director,
expenses, liability, officer, party and proceeding shall have the meanings given to them in
ORS 60.387 a3 in effect as of the date these Articles of Incorporation are filed.

ARTI vi
Registered #8d Ageat

The address of the Thitial registered office of the corporation is 2650 NE Courtney™
Dr., Bend, Oregon 97701, and the name of the initial registered sgent of the corporation
at such address is Patricia Gibford, '

ART!CL§ L' |
Address for{ Notices

The mailing address of the corporation| where the Corporation Division may mail
notices is 2650 NE Courtney Dr., Bend, Oregon 97701.




Person to contact abowst this filing

Brent M, Crew
{503) 624-5789




Artioles of Amendment - Business/Professional
Seomiry of State - Corporation Division - 255 Caphol St HE, Sulls 161 - Sa%m, OR 873101327 - higiiwww . Filing!rOmegancom - Phena: {503) 388-2200

FILED

JAN 12 201
OREGON

. SECHITARY OF STATE
In gccordance with Cragon Revised Stabio $92.410-182.400, the Information on thks epplication Is public record,
We must releass this nformation to all pacties upon request and it will be posted on out wabsle, For oftce use gnly

Pleasa Type of Pirint Legibly In Black Ink.
1 Burmy Nane; Gentral Oregon [ndividual Health Solutions, Inc.
2} SyaTE THE ARTiCLE NUMBER(S): and sot forth tho artlcle(s) a3 it Is amondod to read. {Altich a separats shestif necossary)
Article | - The name of the corporatlon is PacificSource Community Solutions, Inc.

Recistay Numper; | 8 8O~ qs~

3) THE AMENDMENT waAS Apoprep On; January 5, 2011
(it mors tran one amendmant was adopted, kiontify the date of adoption of each smendment.}

4} CHECK YHE APPROPRIATE BTATEMENT!

g Sharaholder actlon was requited Yo adopt the amendment(s),

The vola was as follows:

Glass or serios of shares Nember of shames Number of votes erdittod Numbar of votes cast Nurnbar of voles cast
outsiarding

to bo cast FOR AGAINST

Common 1,000 1,000 1,000 0
O Si;grein%dor action was not requlred to adopt e amendment(s). The amendment(s) was adopted by the board of dreclors without sharehaldar
action. )

E] The corporation has hot issued any shares of stock. Sharohoklsr action was not required to adopt the amendmeart{(s}, The amendmeni(s) was
adoptad by the Incorporstons or by thae board of drectors,

5} EXECUTION: (Must bs signed by at loast one officar of director.) )
By my signatura, | declare as an authorized authorly, that this filing has been examined by me and s, to the best of my knowledge and bekef, frue,
correct, and compiete, Making fake s inthis document is agalnst the law and may bo penalized by fines, imprisanment of both,

Signature:, Printed Namo; Tithe:
/ Y / Kenneth P, Provencher President/GEQ
Vol | 3¢

LA ¥l

CONTACT HAMES {To tesolve questions with this fiing.) FEES
Kristin Kemutt _
PHORE NUMBER! {Inciudo erea codo.}

Coclrmation Copy (Oplenad} §5
Mo Feq for PreaierdiSrcrstory Charga.
541-225-1 967 Rrotsa png Faed are monnalindeble,  Pletge cosko chask poyadle b ‘Coporation Divain*

1 - Articles of Amandment - Bushess Professlonal {01410)

PACIFICSOURCE COMMUNITY SOLUTIO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees ,
PacificSource Health Plans and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidaled balance sheets of PacificSource Health Plans and
Subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, fund balance and cash lows for the years then ended. These conselidated
financial statements are the vesponsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated linancial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are frec of material misstaternent. An audit includes
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not {or the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall finuncial statement presentation. We believe that our
aucits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material vespects,
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The consolidated schedules of general and administrative expenses are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such mformation
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used 10 prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the conselidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion. the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the consohidated financial statements as a whole..

Wetwry Sroxcs tif
Lugene, Oregon -
April 9, 2012
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PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31
2011 2010
ASSETS
Investments. ' $ 157,773,378 § 125,678,610
Cash and cash equivalents 25,849,704 42,529,263
Trust funds 4,549,629 7,234,012
Accounts receivabie ' 21,755,372 18,245,327
Prepaid expenses and deposits 4,094,227 4,814,221
Prepaid income taxes 1,014,700 3,425,859
Prepaid pension costs - 885,062
Property, net 50,015,825 54,940,724
Goodwill 12,611,772 13,611,772
Intangible assets, net 8,989,732 10,297,789
Group life insurance and purchased annuities 1,950,895 1,992,959
Total $ 288,605,234 § 283,655,598
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES:
Unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses $ 76,902,301 $ 75,534,434
Book overdrafi 4,664,460 849,966
Line of credit 2,420,660 -
Accounts payable : 6,126,305 8,881,661
Accrued expenses 6,483,726 6,816,610
Accrued pension liability 4,714,111 -
Unearned premiums 7,508,388 6,636,517
Payable for securities - 180,374
Incentive compensation payable under managed care plans 2,706,986 1,434,872
Accrued retro settlements 1,290,224 1,126,571
Collections for others : 4,549,629 7,234,012
Deferred compensation payable to member physicians 1,950,895 1,992,959
Deferred tax liabilities 2,612,177 4,230,309
Notes payable 11,073,231 14,771,999
Total 133,003,093 129,690,284
FUND BALANCE:
Fund balance, unrestricted 162,151,267 154,496,481
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (6,923,261) (854,574)
Noncontrolling interests 374,135 323,407
Total ' 155,602,141 153,965,314
Total $ 288,605,234 $ 283,655,598

See accompanying notes,




PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31

2011

2010

PREMIUMS:
Commercial preminms

$ 652,038,430 $ 600,854,513

Medicare premiums 118,468,331 69,590,212
Medicaid premiums 126,604,314 55,950,516
Total : 897,111,075 726,395,241
CLAIMS EXPENSE:
Commercial 576,116,555 524,513,614
Medicare 87,179,015 44,569,021
Medicaid 121,352,244 46,005,070
Commissions on premiums 18,281,981 18,586,464
Total 802,929,795 633,674,169
EXCESS OF PREMIUMS OVER CLAIMS EXPENSE 94,181,280 92,721,072
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICE CONTRACTS:
Payments received from self-insured employers 2,128,379 1,203,079
Claims paid on behalf of self-insured employers (525,309) (229,384)
Service fees earned 1,603,070 973,695
EXCESS OF PREMIUMS AND FEES OVER COSTS 05,784,350 93,694,767
ADMINISTRATIVE REVENUES 12,116,141 11,471,676
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 100,104,083 88,201,183
UNDERWRITING GAIN 7,796,408 16,965,260
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Investment income 6,722,674 7,696,837
Interest expense (1,134,168) (771,605)
Charitable contributions (1,135,634) (2,011,364)
Miscellaneous expense (86,962) (192,260)
Total 4,365,910 4,721,608
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 12,162,318 21,686,868
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 4,442 526 8,047,389
TOTAL INCOME 7,719,792 13,639,479
LESS INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING
INTERESTS 65,006 56,995
NET INCOME $ 7,654,786 13,582,484

See accompanying notes. -3.




PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010
NET INCOME 5 7,654,786 $ 13,582,484
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME, NET OF TAXES:
Unrealized appreciation and depreciation of investments available-for-sale (2,760,395) 1,306,343
Reclassitication adjustment for gains and losses realized in net income 151,920 1,119,952
Net unrealized appreciation and depreciation (2,608,473) 2,426,295
Deferred income taxes 822,000 (982,000)
Unrealized appreciation and depreciation of investments
available-for-sale, net of deferred taxes (1,786,475) 1,444,295
Defined benefit pension plan net loss and prior service credit {7,062,212) (886,545)
Deferred income taxes 2,780,000 350,000
Defined benefit pension plan adjustments, net of deferred taxes (4,282,212) (536,545)
Total other comprehensive (loss) income {6,068,687) 907,750
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 1,586,099 § 14,490,234

See accompanying notes.




PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Fund Balance

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income Noncoutrolling
Fund Balance {Loss) Interesis Total

BALANCE, January 1, 2010 $ 140,913,997 $ (1,762,324) % 281,781 § 139,433,454
Net income 13,582,484 - 56,995 13,639,479
Redemption of IPN common stock - - (15,369) {15,369)
Unrealized appreciation of investments

available-for-sale (net of reclassification

adjustment), net of deferred taxes of

$982,000 - 1,444,295 - 1,444,295
Defined benefit pension plan net loss and

prior service credit, net of deferred

taxes of $350,000 - (536,545) - (5306,545)
BALANCE, December 31, 2010 154,496,481 (854,574) 323,407 153,965,314
Net income 7,654,786 - 65,006 7,719,792
Redemption of IPN common stock - - (14,278) (14,278)
Unrealized depreciation of investments

available-for-sale (net of reclassification

adjustment), net of deferred taxes of

$822,000 - (1,786,475) - {1,786,475)
Defined benefit pension plan net loss and

prior service credit, net of deferred ,

taxes of $2,780,000 - {4,282,212) - (4,282,212)
BALANCE, December 31, 2011 $ 162,151,267 §  (6,923,261) §$ 374,135 § 155,602,141

See accompanying notes.




PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

2011

Year Ended December 31

2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Premimms collected
Claims paid
General and administrative expenses paid
Investment income received
Other revenue received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

$ 896,103,503 $ 732,180,413

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sale of investments

Tnvestments purchased

Payment for purchase of PacificSource Community Health Plans Inc.
(Formerly Clear One Health Plans, Inc.), net of cash acquired

Proceeds from sale of Trusteed Plans Service Corporation (TPSC),
net of cash disposed '

Proceeds from sale of property

Property purchased

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from line of credit
Payments on notes payable
Redemption of common stock

Net cash used in financing activities

CHANGE TN CASH AND CASH FQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

(800,126,161)  (637,810,758)
(90,183,102)  (93,436,945)
5,296,200 3,807,981
12,116,141 9,164,589
(1,135,067) (772,443)

(47,499) (223,726)

22,024,015 12,909,111
112,073,582 241,494,954

(145,015,481)  (205,495,498)

- (33,598,919)
608,523 -
15,810 8,750

(5,093,622) (3,903,678)

(37,411,188) (1,494,391)
2,420,660 .
(3,698,768) (278,763)

(14,278) (15,369)
(1,292,386) (294,132)

(16,679,559 11,120,588
42,529,263 31,408,675

$ 25849704 $ 42,529,263 -

{Continued)

See accompanying notes.




PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010
NET INCOME 7,654,786 § 13,582,484
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income attributable to noncontrolling interest 65,006 56,995
Depreciation and amortization 10,237,547 8,213,476
Deferred tax expense 1,983,868 7,241,827
Gain on sale of investments (1,162,082) {4,343,503)
Loss on disposal of property 845,225 107,820
Adjustments resulting from changes in:
Accounts receivable (3,482,513) 7,394,822
Accrued investment income (264,392) 73,483
Prepaid income taxes 2,411,159 578,617
Prepaid (accrued) penston costs (1,463,039) (1,706,474)
Prepaid expenses and deposits 663,424 (963,553)
Unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses 1,367,867 {6,296,043)
Book overdraft 3,814,494 849,966
Accounts payable (2,676,631) (5,982,342)
Unearned premiums 871,871 (4,700,174)
Incentive compensation payable 1,272,114 (78,565)
Accrued retro seftlements 163,653 1,350,817
Accrued expenses (278,342) (2,470,542)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 22,024,015 § 12,909,111

(Continued)

See accompanying notes.




PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Schedule of Noncash Investing Activities

The following is a summary of transactions in the deferred compensation plan with respect to member
physicians for 2011 and 2010:

Group Life
Insurance Annuity
Contract _ Contracts Total

Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 1,575,786 § 478,517 $ 2,054,303
Earnings on contracts, net 62,736 23,189 85,925
Purchase of annuity (4,909) 4,909 -
Payments to annuitants - (147,269) (147,269)
Balance at December 31, 2010 1,633,613 359,346 1,992,959
Earnings on contracts, net 39,878 16,534 56,412
Payments to annuitants - (98,476) (98,476)
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 1,673,491 § 277404 $ 1,950,895

Other Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activifies

During 2011, the Company sold the stock of TPSC for $1,000,000 in cash ($608,523 net of cash disposed) and
received a note receivable for $300,000.

The Company has a payable of $0 and $180,374 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, for secuutles
that were purchased but had not settled by year-end.

At December 31, 2011, there was unrealized appreciation and depreciation of investments, net of
reclassification adjustments of $2,608,475 with deferred taxes of $822,000. At December 31, 2010, there was
unrealized appreciation and depreciation of investments, net of reclassification adjustments of $2,426,295 with
deferred taxes of $982,000. ‘

At December 31, 2011, there were defined benefit pension plan adjustments of $7,062,212 with deferred taxes
of $2,780,000. AtDecember 31, 2010, there were defined benefit pension plan adjustments of $886,545 with
deferred taxes of $350,000.

See accompatying notes,




PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

PacificSource and its subsidiaries are organized as follows:

PacificSource
Heatlth Plans

(PaciticSource)

. PacificSource Trusteed Plans
Admisiniors Primary Community Service
e, Health, Inc. Health Corporation
: (PHD Plans, Tne. (TPSC)
(PSA) (PCHP)

PacificSource

Idaho Physicians Primary Health Community Clear One Life and Clear Choice Flexible Benefits
Network, Ine. Medical Group Solutions, Inc. Heatth, LLC Properties, LLC Corporation
(60%) (PHMG) (PCS) {COLH) (CCP) (FBC)

{IPN)

The relative proportion of gross revenue attributable to each entity for the years ended December 31 are as
follows:

2011 2010
PacificSource $ 646,938,875  712%  $ 585,171,853  79.3%
PCHP and subsidiaries 250,297,460  27.5% 141,266,588  19.1%
PSA . 4,715,315 0.5% 5,998,278 0.8%
TPSC and subsidiary 4,885,949 0.5% 3,315371 - 0.5%
PHI and subsidiaries | 2,389,617 0.3% 2,114,827 0.3%
Giross revenue $ 909227216  100.0%  $ 737,866,917  100.0%

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying financial statements of PacificSource Health Plans
(PacificSource) are consolidated with their wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively the Company).
PacificSource owns 100% of the stock of four subsidiary corporations. These entities are: PSA, PHI,
PCHP (formerly Clear One Health Plans, Inc.) and TPSC. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation.

(Continued)




PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

PacificSource purchased a 100% interest in PCHP, an Oregon domiciled stock insurance company, and its
wholly owned subsidiaries PCS (formerly Central Oregon Individual Health Solutions, Inc.), CCP, COLH
and TPSC on May 21, 2010 for $45,497,600. (See Note 2.) Subsequent to the acquisition, PCHP
distributed TPSC to PacificSource. TPSC is the 100% owner of FBC, a Washington based for-profit

. non-insurance entity. TPSC was sold effective November 30, 201 1.

PacificSource is an independent, not-for-profit community health plan offering commercial medical and
dental plans in Oregon, Idaho, Montana and Washington,

PCHP is a health insurance company licensed in the states of Oregon, Idaho and Montana. They offer
Medicare Advantage and supplement products and, through their subsidiary, Medicaid plans.

PSA is a third-patty administrator specializing in administration of self-funded employee health benefit
plans, flexible spending accounts, health reimbursement arrangements and COBRA administration based in
Oregon,

PHI is a shell corporation which owns 60% of the outstanding shares of PN, an Idaho based for-profit
non-insurance entity and 100% of PHMG, an inactive company holding no assets or liabilities.

TPSC is a full-service third-party administrator and benefits consulting ficm providing administration of
self-funded employee benefit health plans, flexible spending accounts, health reimbursement arrangements
and COBRA administration based in Washington. On November 30, 2011, the Company sold its 100%
ownership interest in TPSC. The sale was for $1 million in cash and a note receivable for $300,000, with
payments due over three years and interest at 4.5%.

Basis of Presentation. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) that differ from statutory accounting practices (SAP)
used by regulatory authorities.

Operations. Services include commercial medical and dental insurance plans, Medicare and Medicaid
policies. The Company had written policies at December 31 follows:

2011 2010
Commercial 192,892 179,856
Medicare , 16,691 9.430
Medicaid 41,662 34,529
Total 245,245 223,815

(Continued)
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PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Codification. The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) completed a process to codify
statutory accounting practices for certain insurance enterprises (codification). Codification became
effective on January 1, 2001, The insurance laws and regulations of the State of Oregon require insurance
companies domiciled in the state to comply with the gnidance provided in the NAIC Accounting Practices
and Procedures Manual except as prescribed or permitted by state law.

Investments. Investments in debt securities, equity securities and mutual funds are classified as
available-for-sale and are reported at fair value. Realized gains and losses on investments are recognized on
the specitic identification basis and recorded using the original cost of the security. - Changes in fair value of
investments are recorded as unrealized depreciation or appreciation directly in the fund balance as other
comprehensive income or loss and have no effect on net income or loss. The certificates of deposit had a
maturity of more than three months at the time of acquisition and are carried at cost, which approximates
fair value. :

investments in other invested assets are accounted for using the equity method. Other invested assets
consist of investments in partnerships. The equity method of accounting for investments requires the
Company to recognize its pro rata share of the income or loss and distributions of the investments and to
increase or decrease the carrying value of the investment accordingly.

Statutory Deposit. PacificSource and PCHP maintain statutory deposits as required by regulatory
authorities. At December 31, 2011, the deposits were in the form of certificates of deposit maturing at
various dates through August 2013 and were included in investments on the consolidated balance sheets.
The fair value of the statutory deposit was $2,611,738 and $2,611,472 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010,

respectively.

Cash Equivalents. For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers all
highly liquid debt instruments purchased with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase to
be cash equivalents. Substantially all of the cash and cash equivalents are maintained at vatious banks
whose deposits exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses on such
accounts.

Trust Funds. Under the terms of administrative agreements related to self-insurance and third-patty
administrator services, the Company is requitred to maintain separate cash trust accounts for benefit

administration services received for various employers.

(Continued)
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PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accounts Receivable. Uncollected premiums represent amounts receivable from policyholders. Amounts
receivable relating to uninsured health plans are amounts collectible from groups under administrative
service contracts. Pharmacy rebates are receivable based upon pharmacy claims expenses of the Company.
Other receivables are claims refunds collectible from providers, insureds and third parties based upon
coordination of benefits under healthcare plans. All receivables of the Company are unsecured.
Management determines and evaluates past due balances on an account by account basis, and if amounts
become uncollectible, they will be charged to operations when that determination is made. As of
December 31,2011 and 2010, management determined that an allowance of approximately $0 and
$195,000, respectively, was necessary,

As of December 31, 201 I and 2010, pharmacy rebates were approximately $6.1 million and $4.8 million,
respectively, which will be collected over the next two years in the normal course of business in accordance
with contract terms and industry standards.

Property. Property is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Property additions and improvements are capitalized, while repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Goodwill. The Company assesses the realizability of goodwill annually and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate it may be impaired. When an impairment is indicated, any excess of carrying value
over fair value of goodwill is recorded as an operating loss. The Company completed annual tests for
impairment at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and determined that the fair value of goodwill exceeded the
carrying value, thus goodwill is not considered impaired.

Intangible Assets. Tntangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated usefid lives. Trade names and trademarks, customer relationships and contract arrangements are
amortized over ten to twenty years; other intangible assets are amortized over fifteen years; loan fees are
amortized over the life of the loan, which is five years. Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are
periodically reviewed by management to determine if events or circumstances watrant a change in the
remaining useful life of the asset.

Liability for Unpaid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expenses. The Company establishes a liability, based
on actuarial models, for unpaid claims and related administrative costs. The Company does not discount its
liability for unpaid claims. The liability is an estimate, and while the Company believes that the amount is
adequate, the ultimate Hability may be in excess of or less than the amount provided. The estimate is
continually reviewed and adjusted as necessary as experience develops or new information becomes
known; such adjustments are included in the period in which the revisions are determined.

(Continued)
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PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Incentive Compensation Payable Under Managed Care Plans. The Company has entered into
arrangements with certain medical provider groups that involve risk sharing of gains or losses. Providers
are paid a per capita fee for providing services to insureds and a portion of certain other payments to
providers are withheld (incentive pools). Based on an annual review of performance and wtilization, such
amounts are either retained by the Company or paid to providers.

Deferved Compensation - Management. The Company provides key employees a non-qualified deferred
compensation plan whereby patticipants can elect to make voluntary contributions to the plan. The
Company, at the discretion of the Board of Trustees, can also make contributions to the plan on behalf of
key employees. The assets are payable to participants upon retirement or termination of employment. The
Company includes in its assets the estimated present value of annuity contracts under the plan; there is an
associated liability for the plan as the contracts are payable to participants. Plan assets were $373,943 and
$317,472 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and are recorded in prepaid expenses and deposits
on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company contributed $27,906 and $21,196 to the plan for 2011
and 2010, respectively, '

Income Taxes. PacificSource is incorporated in Oregon as a not-for-profit health cate service contractor; it
is a taxable entity as a result of the Tax Reform Act of 1987. Income taxes are provided for the tax effects
of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of taxes currently due plus defetred taxes.
Deferred income taxes arise principally from temporary differences relating to the deferred compensation
plan, defined benefit pension plan, unrealized appreciation and depreciation of investments, depreciation,
cettain accrued and prepaid expenses, group life insurance and annuity contracts, premium deficiency
reserve, discounting of the claims provision, partnership differences, goodwill, bad debts, alternative
minimum tax credit carryforwards, charitable contribution carryforwards and federal and state net operating
loss carryforwards. PacificSource files consolidated federal income tax returns with its subsidiaries in
accordance with applicable tax law.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and multiple state and local
jurisdictions. The Company is not subject to state and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for
years prior to 2008 in jurisdictions where tax returns have been filed, as the statute of limitations has
expired on those years. The Company recently completed an IRS examination for federal tax years 2005
through 2008 and there was no adjustment to federal tax liability based on the examination.

Statutory Capital Reserves. PacificSource and PCHP are required by Oregon law to maintain minimum
capital reserves of 50% of their average monthly claims incurred during the last 12 months, to a
minimum of $2,500,000; this amount is included in the fund balance.

Revenue Recognition. Premiums are recognized on a monthly basis over the policy term. Administrative
revenues include the operations of the non-insurance subsidiaries. Revenues are recognized in the month

that the service is performed.

(Continued)
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PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Assessments. State mandated assessments are accrued at the time the events occur on which assessments
are expected to be based.

Advertising. Costs for advertising are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense was $2,579,446 and
$2,634,580 for 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The:
fair value framework requires the categorization of assets and labilities into three levels based upon the .
ability to observe the assumptions (inputs) used to value the assets and liabilities. Level One provides the
most reliable and observable measure of fair value, whereas Level Three generally requires significant
judgment. When valuing assets or liabilities, GAAP requires the most observable inputs to be used.

The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:
Level One - Unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level Two - Observable inputs, other than those included in Level One. For example, quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets or quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive
markets.

Level Three - Unobservable inputs reflecting assumptions about the inputs used in pricing the asset or
liability.

The fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input
that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs,

Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results conld differ from those estimates.

Business Risks and Uncertainties. The Company's investments are primarily comprised of debt and equity
securities. Significant changes in prevailing interest rates and market conditions may adversely affect the
timing and amount of cash flows on such investments and their related values. Due to the level of risk
associated with certain investment securities and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the value of
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in values in the near term could
materially affect the Company's consolidated balance sheets and the amounts reported in the consolidated
statements of income.

(Continued)
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PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Company invests in mortgage backed securitics (MBS) and other securities subject to prepayment and
call risk. Significant changes in prevailing interest rates may adversely affect the timing and amount of

~ cash flows on such securities. In addition, the amortization of market premium and accretion of market
discount on MBS is based on historical experience and estimates of future payments on the undertying
mortgage loans. Actual prepayments will differ from the original estimates and may result in material
adjustments to amortization or accretion recorded in futare periods.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements. Effective for the Company's 2011 annual impairment tests
of goodwill, the Company adopted new guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. The
new guidance provides an entity the option to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it
is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If an entity
determines that this is the case, it is required to perform the currently prescribed two-step goodwill
impairment test. If an entity determines that the fair value of a reporting unit is greater than its carrying
amount, the two-step goodwill impairment test is not required. Adoption of the new guidance did not have
a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events. Management evaluates events occurring subsequent to the date of the consolidated
financial statements in determining the accounting for and disclosure of transactions and events that affect
the consolidated financial statements. Subsequent events have been evaluated throngh April 9, 2012, which
is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Reclassifications. Certain 2010 amounts have been reclassified to conform with 2011 presentation. The
reclassifications had no effect on previously reported net income.

2. Business Combinations

On May 21, 2010, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding common shares of PCHP, PCHP is an
Oregon based company that had four wholly owned subsidiaries, which included PCS, COLH, CCP and
TPSC and TPSC's wholly owned subsidiary, FBC. PCS manages the business related to its contract with
the Oregon Department of Human Services, Division of Medical Assistance Programs. COLH sells life,
disability, dental, vision and voluntary benefit programs in Oregon and Montana. CCP manages the
building where the PCHP entities operate. TPSC provides administration and account management
services. FBC is licensed in the State of Washington as an insurance broker as a means to negotiate
insurance rates and benefits for excess foss insurance coverage for self-funded benefit plans. Subsequent to
the acquisition, PCHP distributed TPSC and FBC to PacificSource.

{Continued)
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PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Business Combinations (Continued)

PacificSource acquired the outstanding common stock of PCHP for $45,497,600, The allocation of the
purchase price for identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as of the date of the acquisition, was
as follows: '

Cash and investments $ 45,844,600
Other current assets 4,616,611
Property 2,314,249
Investment in subsidiary - PCS 24,140,494
Investment in subsidiary - COLH 29,754
Investment in subsidiary - CCP 5,405,559
Investment in subsidiary - TPSC 1,870,295
Deferred tax assets 6,733,223
Total assets 91,254,787

Liabilities (45,757,187)
Total net assets $ 45497600

The fair value of the interest in PCS was determined based upon the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
at the date of acquisition. The investment in subsidiary - PCS was allocated as follows:

Cash and investments $ 15,842,430
Other current assets 6,897,894
Intangible asset - goodwill . 9,087,214
Other assets 8,349,429
Total assets 40,176,967
Liabilities (16,036,471)
Total net assets - investment in subsidiary - PCS $ 24,140,496
(Continued)
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PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Business Combinations (Continued)

The fair value of the interest in COLH was determined based upon the assets acquired and liabilities
asswned at the date of acquisition. The investment in subsidiary - COLH was allocated as follows:

Cash $ 39,251
Liabilities (9,497)
Total net assets - investment in subsidiary - COLH $ 29,754

The fair value of the interest in CCP was determined based upon the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
at the date of acquisition. The investment in subsidiary - CCP was allocated as follows:

Cash and investments $ 2,162,510
Other current assets 18,937
Property 16,519,689
Other assets 27,069
Total assets 18,728,205

Liabilities (13,322,646)
Total net assets - investment in subsidiary - CCP $ 5,405,559

The fair value of the interest in TPSC was determined based upon the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition. At the time of the acquisition, TPSC became a wholly owned subsidiary
of PacificSource. The investment in subsidiary - TPSC was allocated as follows:

Cash $ 1,289,300
Other current assets 306,676
Property 253,381
Intangible asset - goodwill 1,000,000
Total assets 2,849,357

Liabitities (979.062)
Total net assets - investment in subsidiaty - TPSC $ 1,870,295
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PACIFICSOURCE HEALTH PLANS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Investments

Investments by major class consisted of the following at December 31:

2011 2010
Debt securities $ 116,922,980 § 79,726,340
Equity securities and mutual funds 30,968,056 34,903,805
Certificates of deposit 2,611,738 2,611,472
Other invested assets 6,381,674 7,812,454
Accrued investment income 888,930 624,539
Total $ 157,773,378 § 125,678,610

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. The Company classifies the following investments as
available-for-sale and records them at fair value,

The cost and fair value of the investments at December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Net
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Appreciation Tax Appreciation
Cost Value {Depreciation) Effect (Depreciation)
U.S. Government debt
securities $ 13356646 $ 14,060,871 § 704,225 §  (276,000) § 428,225
Mortgage/asset backed
securities 45,828,390 47,190,368 1,361,978 (533,000) 828,978
Corporate debt securities 54,731,222 55,671,741 094{(,519 {369,000) 571,519
Debt securities 113,916,258 116,922,980 3,006,722 {1,178,000) 1,828,722
Equity securities and
mutuat funds 31,949,439 30,968,056 (581,383) 384,000 (597,383)
Total $ 145865697 $ 147,891,036 § 2,025339 $  (794,0000 $ 1,231,339

The unrealized appreciation of debt securities of $3,006,722 for 2011 consisted of unrealized gains of
$4,224,565 and unrealized losses of $1,217,843. The untealized depreciation of equity securities and
mutual funds of $981,383 for 2011 consisted of unrealized gains of $1,442,980 and unrealized fosses of
$2,424,363. Approximately $3 million of gross realized gains and $1 million of gross realized losses were
included in investment income on the consolidated statements of income for 201 §,

{Continued)
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3. Investments (Continued)

The cost and fair value of the investments at December 31, 2010 are as follows:

Net
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Appreciation - Tax Appreciation
Cost Value {Depreciation) Effect (Depreciation)
.S, Government debt
securities $ 14,678,768 14,827,534 % 148,766 % (52,0000 $ 96,766
Mortgage/asset backed
securities 25,146,820 26,324,946 1,178,126 (411,000) 767,126
Corporate debt securities 37,280,752 38,573,860 1,293,108 (451,000) 842,108
Debt securities 77,106,340 79,726,340 2,620,000 {914,000) 1,706,000
Equity securities and
mutual funds 32,889,991 34,903,805 2,013,814 {702,000) 1,311,814
Total $109,996,331 § 114,630,145 § 4633814 § (1,616000) § 3,017,814

The unrealized appreciation of debt securities of $2,620,000 for 2010 consisted of nnrealized gains of
$3,105,562 and unrealized losses of $485,562. The unrealized appreciation of equity securities and mutual
funds of $2,013,814 for 2010 consisted of unrealized gains of $2,390,177 and unrealized losses of
$376,363. Approximately $9 million of gross realized gains and $4 million of gross realized losses were
included in investment income on the consolidated statements of income for 2010.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on an annual basis, and more
frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to the

length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, the financial condition and
near-term prospects of the issuer and the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment for a

period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

(Continued)
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3. Investments (Continued)

The aggregate fair values of securities, by category, that had gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2011,
and the securities that were in a loss position at December 31, 2010 that were still in a loss position at
December 31, 2011, are as foliows:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months o1 More Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value f.osses

Debt securities $ 23316490 § (1,094,857) $ 1,713,191 &  (122,986) § 25,029,681 § (1,21 7,843)
Eaquity securities/ _
mutual funds 18,467,653 (1,971,509) 1,023,318 (452,854) 19,490,971 (2,424,363)

$ 41,784,143 § (3,066366) § 2,736,509 $  (575,840) $ 44520652 $ (3,642,206)

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had 156 securities in an unrealized loss position. All of these
securities had a percentage decline of less than 19%. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company did
not hold any less-than-investment grade corporate debt securities.

At December 31, 2011, debt securities were scheduled to mature as follows:

Fair Unrealized
Cost Value Appreciation
Due in one year or less $ 547,301 $ 559,019 §$ 11,718
Due in one to five years 30,017,720 30,218,491 200,771
Due in five to ten years 36,489,313 38,034,530 1,545217
Due after ten years 46,861,924 48,110,940 1,249,016
Total ' $ 113916258 §$ 116,922,980 $ 3,006,722

See Note 8 regarding investment securities pledged to secure the line of credit at December 31, 201 1.

(Continued)
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3. Investments (Continued)

The change in unrealized appreciation in fair value of securities available-for-sale is as follows:

Unrealized Net Unrealized
Fair Appreciation Tax Appreciation
Cost Value {Depreeiation) Effect {Depreciation)
December 31, 2011 § 145,865,697 $147,891,036 $§ 2,025339 §  (794,000) § 1,231,339
Less December 31,2010 109,996,331 114,630,145 4,633,814 (1,616,000) 3,017,814
Change in unrealized
appreciation {(depreciation) § (2,608475) § 822,000 $ (1,786,475)

Investment expenses were approximately $301,000 and $383,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

Other Invested Assets. Other invested assets consist of investments in partnerships that are accounted for
using the equity method, which approximates fair market value. The percentage of the Company's
ownership in each of these investments varies based upon total investment in the secondary market.

During 2007, the Company purchased, for $3,486,406, an interest in Jefferies Special Opportunities
Partners, LLC, of which $170,289 was sold during 2010. On an annual basis, the LLC makes distributions
of the annual income. The Company's pro rata share of gain was $23,000 and $27,283 in 2011 and 2010,
respectively; cumulative loss prior to 2010 was $147,400.

During 2007, the Company purchased, for $19,780,256, an interest in Phoenix Fixed Income Fund, L.P.
(formerly Azure Fixed Income Fund, L.P.) Standard Units 2, of which $11,672,464 was sold during 2007,
$1,348,736 was sold during 2010 and $1,279,124 was sold during 2011. PacificSource's pro rata share of
the limited partnership foss was $174,656 and $307,571 in 2011 and 2010, respectively; cumulative loss
prior to 2010 was $1,835,031.
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4. Property

Major classes of property at December 31 consisted of the following:

2011 2010
Land f $ 3,172,078 $ 3,172,078
Buildings 20,358,271 20,318,082
Furnitare and fixtures 8,335,109 8,178,983
Electronic data processing equipment 8,316,071 7,737,316
Software 47,531,150 45,753,857
Automobiles 240,185 136,361
Leaschold improvements 2,018,215 1,867,651
Work in process 316,335 -
90,287,414 87,164,328
Less accumulated depreciation 13,537,920 11,311,861
Eess accumulated amortization - softwate 26,733,669 20,911,713
Total $ 50015825 $ 54,940,724
5. Intangible Assets
Major classes of intangible assets at December 31 consisted of the following:
2011 2010
Customer relationships $ 4868630 3 4,868,630
Contractual arrangements 4,858,055 4,858,055
Trade names and trademarks 600,000 600,000
Other intangible assets 130,163 282,061
Loan fees 97,904 97,904
10,554,752 10,706,650
Less accumulated amortization 1,565,020 408,861
Total $ 8,989,732 $ 10,297,789

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives, which range from five to twenty years. Amortization expense is expected to be as follows for each of
the succeeding five years: 2012, $722,299; 2013, $717,393; 2014, $702,718; 2015, $702,718; 2016,

$702,718; and $5,441,886 thercafter.
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6. Group Life Insurance and Purchased Annuities

The Company includes in its assets the cash value of a group life insurance contract and the estimated
present value of purchased annuities. The contracts were purchased with the proceeds of a deferred
compensation plan with member physicians which was offered from 1966 through 1991. The plan is
considered an unfunded, non-qualified, deferred compensation arrangement not subject to ERISA
requirements. The insurance contracts are subject to claims by general creditors and are, therefore,
considered a part of the Company's general assets. The contracts are payable to the member physicians and
are, therefore, recorded as a hability.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the single-premium group life insurance contract consisted of
aggregate paid-up life insurance of $2,921,891 and a cash value of $1,673,491 and $1,633,613,
respectively.

At a triggering event {such as the retirement or disability of a participant), a pattial surrender of the group
life insurance contract is requested and an annuity contract is purchased. The net present value of the
annuity contracts was $277,404 and $359,346 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The agreements with the participating physicians generally do not commit the Company to obtain a specific
rate of return on the deferred amounts. The following is a summary of transactions in the deferred
compensation plan:

Group Life
Insurance Annuity
Confract Contracts Total

Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 1,575,786 $ 478,517 § 2,054,303
Earnings on contracts, net 62,736 23,189 85,925
Purchase of annuity (4,909) 4,509 -
Payments to annuitants - (147,269) (147,269)
Balance at December 31, 2010 1,633,613 359,346 1,992,959
Earnings on contracts, net 39,878 16,534 56,412
Payments to annuitants - (98,476) (98,476)
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ | 1,673491 $ 277404 $ 1,950,895
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7. Liability for Unpaid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expenses

The liability for unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses is based on the estimated amount payable on
claims reported prior to the consolidated balance sheets date that have not yet been settled, claims reported
subsequent to the consolidated balance sheets date that have been incurred during the period then ended and
an estimate based on ptior experience of incurred but unreported claims relating to such period.

Activity in the liability for unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses is summarized as follows:

2011

2010

Unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses, Janvary |

§ 75534434 § 45,299,900

Less reinsurance receivable (1,104,602) (394,763)
Net balance - 74,429,832 44,905,137
Incurred related to:
Current year 799,677,007 669,013,628
Prior years 2,199,365 (1,459,469)
Total incurred 801,876,372 667,554,159
Paid related to:
Current year (722,392,362)  (594,189,033)
Prior years (77,733,799) (43,840,431)
Total paid (800,126,161)  (638,029,464)
Net balance 76,180,043 74,429,832
Plus reinsurance receivable 722,258 1,104,602
Unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses, December 31 $ 76,902,301 $ 75,534,434

As aresult of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the liability for unpaid claims and claims
adjustment expenses (net of reinsurance recoveries of $722,258) increased by $2,199,365 in 2011, The
 liability for unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses (net of reinsurance recoverics of $1,104,602)
decreased by $1,459,469 in 2010. The Company records a lability for unpaid claims and claims
adjustment expenses that includes an allowance for potential shock claims.
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8. Line of Credit

During 2010, the Company obtained a line of credit from a bank, which provides for maximum
borrowings of $40,000,000. The balance on the line of credit was $2,420,660 and $0 at December 31,
2011 and 2010. The line of credit bears interest at the Daily One Month LIBOR Rate plus 1.00% (an
effective rate of 1.30% at December 31, 2011) and matures in February 2013. Certain investment
accounts are assigned as collateral. The bank requires securities in the amount of twice the outstanding
balance of the line and letters of credit to be pledged to secure the line of credit. Securities pledged were
$4,841,320 at December 31, 2011. The line of credit is subject to certain covenants, which the
Company was in compliance with at December 31, 201 1.

9. Notes Payable
Notes payable consisted of the following at December 31:

2011 2010

Note payable to bank, due in monthly instaliments of $71,329,
including interest at 5.94% per annum, collateralized by real
property, due in full at maturity April 2016. $ 9,823368 § 13,368,055

Notes payable to individuals, due in monthly installments of $20,634,
including interest at the prime rate plus 2% adjusted annually, not
to be less than 7% or exceed 10% (effective rate of 7% at
December 31, 201 1), collateralized by business assets, matures
March 2018. 1,249,863 1,403,944

Total $ 11,073,231 § 14,771,999

The note payable to the bank is subject to certain covenants, which the Company was in compliance
with at December 31, 2011, :

(Continued)
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9. Notes Payable (Continued)

The estimated aggregate amounts of notes payable maturitics are as follows:

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
Thereafter

443,660
474,266
505,210
538,188
8,817,062
294,845

11,073,231

10. Retirement Plans

The Company has a non-contributory pension plan and a participatory retirement plan (401(k)), both of

which cover substantially all employees.

The non-contributory pension benefits are based on years of service and the employee's compensation
during employment. The Company contributes at least the minimum funding required annually.
Contributions are intended to provide not only for benefits attributed to service to date but also for those

expected to be earned in the future.

The following table sets forth the plan's funded status and amounts recognized in the Company's
consolidated financial statements at December 31:

2011 2010

Projected benefit obligation for service rendered to date

Plan assets at fair value

Funded status

$ (30,317,898) $ (20,565,252)

25,603,787 21,450,314

$ @714110 $ 885,062

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid and administrative expenses
Actuarial loss

Projected benefit obligation, end of year

$ 20,565252 $ 16,091,870

2,691,623 1,664,237
1,254,709 1,160,259

(355,759) (346,222)
6,162,073 1,995,108

$ 30,317,808 § 20,565,252

{Continued)
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10. Retirement Plans (Continued)

2011 2010

Change in fair value of plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 21,450,314 § 16,157,003

Actual return on plan assets 9,232 1,639,533

Employer contributions 4,500,000 4,000,000

Benefits paid (308,539) (308,018)

Administrative expenses (47,220) (38,204)
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $§ 25,603,787 § 21450314
Net periodic benefit cost:

Service cost $ 2,691,623 § 1,664,237

Interest cost 1,254,709 1,160,259

Expected return on plan assets (1,612,260) (1,059,884)

Amortization of loss 868,361 694,386

Amortization of prior service credits (165,472) (165,472)
Total net periodic benefit cost $ 3,036,961 $§ 2,293,526
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income:

Net loss $ 14134946 $ 7,238,206

Prior service credit (1,138,447) (1,303,919)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income $ 12,996,499 §$§ 5,934,287
Changes in other comprehensive income:

Net loss $ 7,765,101 $ 1415459

Amottization of net loss (868,361) (694,386)

Amortization of prior service credit 165,472 _165,472
Total recognized in other comprehensive income $ 7062212 $ 886,545
Accumulated benefit obligation, end of year $ 24282983 $ 16,764,478

The Company estimates net loss, prior service cost and transition obligation for the defined benefit pension
plan that will be amortized into periodic benefit cost in 2012 to be $1,235,056, $(165,472) and $0,

respectively.

(Continued)
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10. Retirement Plans (Continued)

The Company-expects to contribute $4,000,000 to its pension plan in 2012. Future anticipated benefit
payments from the defined benefit pension plan are as follows: 2012, $1,627,742; 2013, $984,452; 2014,
$934,044; 2015, $2,115,874; 2016, $598,679; and from 2017 to 2021, $15,419,969.

Assumptions used in the acconnting for the defined benefit pension plan were as follows at December 31;

2011 2010

Assumptions used for net periodic benefit costs:

Discount rate used in determining present values 5.5% 6.5%

Annual increase in future compensation levels 35 4.0

Expected long-term rate of return on assets 7.25 6.0
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligation:

Discount rate used in determining present values 4.7% 5.5%

Annual increase in future compensation levels 3.5 3.5

Measurement date

The plan assets are invested in the following asset classes:

December 31

December 31

Debt investments

- Equity investments
Cash equivalents
Other

Total

45% 68%
35 32
i3 -
7 -

100% 100%

The plan assets are invested in a variety of bond and equity mutual funds. The targeted composition is set
by the Company and reallocated periodically. The Company's expected rate of return on plan assets is
determined by the plan assets' historical long-term investment performance, current asset allocation and

estimates of future long-term returns by asset class.

(Continued)
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10. Retirement Plans (Continued)

The patticipatory retirement plan (401(k)}, which was adopted in 1984, provides for voluntary employee
contributions with employer matching. The plan requires a 50% Company match on eligible elective
deferrals. Elective deferrals in excess of 6% of eligible employee compensation ate not eligible to receive a
match. Company contributions under the plan were $750,345 and $571,553 in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

11. Income Taxes

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return with its subsidiaties on the basis of its annual
GAAP financial statements adjusted for the tax regulations. The Company files state income tax returns
based on its annual statement that is filed with the insurance regulatory authorities for PacificSource and
PCHP. The Company files on the basis of its annual GAAP financial statements adjusted for the state tax
regulations for the remaining subsidiaries. The allocation methodology under the adopted tax alfocation
agreement applies the projected consofidated group income tax rate to the entitics based on pre-tax net
income. Federal income taxes are settled between PacificSource and its subsidiaries based on the tax
sharing agreement.

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

2011 2610
Current income tax expense:
Federal $  2,539.176 $ 468,359
State 285,218 447,264
Total current income tax expense 2,824,394 615,623
Deferred tax expense 1,618,132 7,131,766
Total income tax expense $ 4442526 § 8,047,389

The reconciliation between federal taxes at the statutory rate and the Company's income taxes are as
follows: ‘

2011 2010
Tax expense computed at statutory rate $  4,135000 $ 7,373,000
State tax expense, net of federal income tax benefit ' 530,000 954,000
Permanent and other differences 39,526 (199,611)
Dividend received deduction ' (262,000). (80,000)
Total income tax expense - $ 4442526 $ 8,047,389

(Continued)
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11. Incoine Taxes (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31 are as follows: -

2011 2010
Deferred tax assets:

Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards 3,450,631 4,341,763
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards 1,560,000 2,476,000
Unrealized losses 1,430,000 151,600
Accruals 1,368,000 633,000
Contribution carryforwards 1,178,000 889,000
Defined benefit pension plan 1,045,000 -
Partnership difference 663,000 515,000
Deferred compensation 575,000 446,845
Discount of claims provision 516,000 465,560
Capital loss carryforward 258,000 . -
Goodwill 17,000 19,035
Operating lease impairment 14,000 -
Bad debt reserve - 66,242
Premium deficiency reserve - 4,857

Total deferred tax assets 12,074,631 10,008,302

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property (11,128,808) (10,225,481)
Unrealized gains (2,225,000) (1,683,602)
Prepaids (1,291,0600) (1,260,000)
Subsidiary equity income (42,000) (290,000)
Goodwill - (779,528)
Defined benefit pension plan - (290,000)

Total deferred tax lHabilities (14,686,808) (14,238,611)

Net deferred tax liabilities

(2,612,177) $  (4,230,309)

As of December 31, 2011, the Company recognized a deferred tax asset of $3,450,631, for the
anticipated utilization of federal and state net operating loss carryforwards. Federal net operating loss
carryforwards of $5,786,707 will expire on Décember 31, 2028, if not used before then. State net
operating loss carryforwards of $30,160,374 will expire on various dates through 2029. Contribution
carryforwards of $3,003,820 will expire on various dates through 2015. Alternative mlmmum tax credit

carryforwards of $2,607,034 have no expiration date,

{Continued)
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11, Income Taxes (Continued)

The Company is required to recotd a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that some portion
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets
depends on the ability to generate sufficient taxable income in the future. Based on its profitable operating
results in previous years, together with management's intention and active pursuit of strategies to remain
successful in the health insurance industty, no valuation account has been recorded because it appeats more
likely than not that the full tax benefit of deferred tax assets will be realized.

12. Reinsurance
Commercial business was reinsured against inpatient hospital costs and ancillary outpatient services under

the terms of an excess liability policy. The following is a summary of the coverage levels at December 31,
2011 in order of their application:

Commercial Retention | ~ Deductible Aggregate Limit
Layer 1 10% up to $135,000 $ 650,000 $1,350,000 per member
Layer 2 10% up to $300,000 $ 2,000,00b $3,000,000 per member
Layer 3 $ - $ 5,000,000 $5,000,000 per member

Medicare and Medicaid business were reinsured against inpatient hospital costs and ancillary outpatient
services under the terms of an excess liability policy. The following is a summary of the coverage levels at
December 31, 2011:

Medicare and Medicaid Retention Deductible Aggregate Limit

Layer1 10% $ 350,000 Unlimited

Premiums ceded under the terms of the reinsurance policies were $5,027,828 and $4,407,871 in 2011
and 2010, respectively. The reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its primary
obligation to policyholders,

13. Leases

Effective November 1997, PHI entered into a lease for real property in Mountain Home, Idaho. ITtisa
fifteen-year lease expiring November 2012. The lease has three renewal terms of five years each. The
Company is responsible for substantially all executory costs. Minimum paymerits under the lease are
subject to annual adjustment of 3%. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: $90,475 for 2012.

(Continued)
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13. Leases (Continued)

Effective June 2004, the Company entered into a real property lease for the Medford, Oregon sales
office under a five-year operating agreement expiring August 2009 and extended through August 2012,
The Company is responsible for substantially all executory costs. Future minimum lease payments are
$23,104 for 2012.

Effective August 2007, the Company entered into a real property lease for the Tigard, Oregon sales
office under a seven-year operating agreement expiring October 31, 2014, The Company is responsible
for substantially all executory costs. Minimum payments under the lease, which are subject to annual
adjustment, are $20,443 per month, Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 2012, $253,427;
2013, $261,554; 2014, $223,359.

Effective August 1, 2009, PHI assigned its interest in their Idaho Falls, Idaho real property lease to the
Company. Itis a five-year lease expiring July 2013 based on the original commencement date of Augnst
2008. Minimum payments under the lease, which are subject to annual adjustments, are $2,350 per month,
The Company is responsible for substantially all executory costs. Future mininnun lease payments are as
follows: 2012, $29,204; 2013, $17,281.

Effective October 2010, the Company entered into a real property lease for the Boise, Idaho office under
a five-year operating agreement expiring September 2015. The lease contains an option to renew the
lease for an additional five-year term. The Company is responsible for substantially all executory costs.
Minimum payments under the lease, which are subject to annual adjustment, are $25,485 per month.
Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 2012, $310,426; 2013, $316,635; 2014, $323,771;
2015, $248,251.

Effective February 2011, the Company entered into a real property lease for the Helena, Montana sales
office under a one year operating agreement, with the option to renew the lease for an additional one
year term. The Company is responsible for substantially all executory costs. Future minimum lease
payments are $650 for 2012,

Effective July 2011, the Company entered into a real property lease for an additional Springfield,
Oregon office under a three-year operating agreement expiring June 2014, The lease contains an option
to renew the lease for an additional two year, month to month term. The Company is responsible for
substantially all executory costs. Minimum payments under the lease, which are subject to annual
adjustment, are $15,962 per month. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 2012, $194,447;
2013, $203,154; 2014, $104,479,

Effective June 2007, the Company entered into a real property lease for the Boise, Idaho sales office
under a five-year operating agreement expiring May 2012. This lease was terminated in April 2011.

As part of the sale of TPSC, the Company transferred the real property lease for the Tacoma,
Washington office effective November 30, 2011.

Amounts charged to rent expense for the various leases were $1,229,140 and $1,089,634 for 2011 and
2010, respectively. '
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14. Administrative Service Contracts

Administrative service contracts between the Company and certain groups require the groups to pay the
actual costs of claims incurred, plus administrative service costs. In addition, the groups have the option to
pay premiums for stop loss coverage, and the Company pays such excess claims on the same basis as its
other indemnity contracts. '

15. Commitments

The 1995, the Oregon Legislature enacted Senate Bill 152, which created individual portability plans that
must be offered by all health insurers as a condition of transacting group insurance in the State of Oregon.
The law, which became effective October 1, 1996, requires insurers to offer individuals who lose group
coverage a choice of one of two individual portability policies. Benefits included in the policies are
established by Oregon Administrative Rules. The policies are guaranteed issue and guaranteed renewable;
individuals who meet eligibility criteria may not be excluded due to health conditions or pre-existing
conditions. The formula for establishing and increasing rates is prescribed by law. The Company had
premiums of approximately $5,137,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011, for policies issued under the
provisions of the law, with associated claims expense of $7,025,000. The Company belicves that any
premium deficiency that may be realized on these policies is built into the rates of their other lines of
business,

The 1991, the Oregon Legislature enacted Senate Bill 1076, which created a Basic Health Plan that must be
offered by all health insurers as a condition of transacting insurance in the State of Oregon. Senate Bill
1076, which became effective December 31, 1992, and Senate Bill 152, which was updated in 2007 by
House Bill 2002, establishes rules for all small group plans. In such plans, no employee may be excluded
due to health condition ot pre-existing condition, the plan must be guaranteed issue and guaranteed
renewable, and the amount and timing of rate increases is prescribed by law. As of December 31, 2011, the
Company has reflected profits on the aggregate policies issued under the provisions of these laws with
respect to small group plans. The Company believes that its financial position, together with its reinsurance
arrangements, provides a firm base to mitigate any significant adverse impact of these requirements.

In March 2010, the President of the United States signed into law a Patient Protection and Affordable Care
Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, This legislation includes a number of
provisions that impact the health insurance industry, including provisions on increasing the number of
insured members, new rules on guaranteed issue contracts, elimination of lifetime annual maximum caps on
policy payments, coverage of dependent children on the parents' policy until age 26 and many others. The
Company has calculated expected costs as a result of the reform and has adjusted premium rates
accordingly. In addition, this legislation created health insurance exchanges. The Company is in the
process of evaluating the impact of the exchanges on future business operations.

In February 2011, Oregon Legislature enacted Senate Bill 1580 that allows for the establishment of
Coordinated Care Organizations (CCOs). The Company is reviewing the opportunity to apply for various
CCOs.
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16. Litigation and Contingent Liabilities

The Company, consistent with the insurance industry in general, is subject to litigation in the normal
course of business. The Company's management does not beheve that such litigation will havc a
material effect on its financial position,

During 2009, as part of the acquisition of PHI, an escrow account was established for $2,000,000. The
escrow account was established to cover a contingent liability of PHI due to litigation. Upon settlement of
the lawsuit by PHI, its insurance company will pay up to $2,000,000 with the balance of the possible
settlement covered by the escrow fund. The lawsuit was settled during 2011 and the Company, PHI's
former shareholders and the reinsurer are discussing payments from the escrow account,

17. Related Party Transactions

The Board of Trustees formed the PacificSource Charitable Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation). Certain
trustees of the Company are also officers of the Foundation. As of December 31,2011 and 2010, total
assets (unaudited), consisting primarily of cash equivalents and marketable securities, were approximately
$5,950,000 and $6,900,000, respectively. The Foundation is a public benefit corporation organized for the
purpose of providing funds for the health and welfare of the poor and needy. It qualifies as a tax-exempt
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. During 2011 and 2010, the Company
made a contribution of $0 and $1,000,000 to the Foundation, respectively.

18. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value, There
have been no changes in the methodologies used at December 31, 2011, Valuation techniques utifized to
determine fair value are consistently applied.

The carrying amounts of financial insttuments including accounts receivable, accounts payable and other
short-term assets and liabilities approximate fair value, because of the relatively short maturity of these
instruments,

The carrying values of notes payable approximate fair value, as their interest rates approximate
current market rates.

Investments in debt and equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are reported at fair
value. These securites are fraded in active markets and are valued at quoted market prices. They are

generally categorized in Level One of the fair value hierarchy.

Certificates of deposit are traded in active markets and are valued at quoted market prices. These
investments are generally categorized in Level One of the fair value hierarchy.,

{Continued)
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18. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Other invested assets consist of investments in partnerships that are accounted for using the equity
method, which approximate fair market value. These investments generally trade in the secondary
market and are categorized in Level Two of the fair value hierarchy.

Fair values of assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis are as follows:

Fair Value Measurement at December 31, 2011

Quoted
Prices in
Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Available-for-sale debt securities:
U.8. Government debt securities $ 14,060,871 § 14,060,871 $ - $ -
Mortgage/asset backed debt securitics 47,190,368 47,190,368 - -
Corporate debt securities 55,671,741 55,671,741 - -
Total debt securities 116,922,980 116,922,980 - -
Available-for-sale equity securities:
Mutual funds 30,968,056 30,968,056 - -
Certificates of deposit 2,611,738 2,611,738 ' - -
Other invested assets 6,381,674 - 0,381,674 -

{Continued)
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18. Fair Value of Financial Instraments (Continued)

Available-for-sale debt securities:
U.S. Government debt securities
Mortgape/asset backed debt securities
Corporate debt securities
Total debt securities

Available-for-sale equity securities:
Mutual funds
Value
Fixed income
Growth
Balanced
Total equity securities

Certificates of deposit

Other invested assets

Fair Value Measurement af December 31, 2010

Quoted
Prices in
Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 14,827,534 § 14,827,534 § - $ -
26,324,946 26,324,946 - -
38,573,860 38,573,860 - -
79,726,340 79,726,340 - -
11,822,685 11,822,685 - -
8,396,289 8,396,289 - -
7,987,367 7,987,367 - -
6,697,464 6,697,464 - -
34,903,805 34,903,805 - -
2,611,472 2,611,472 - -
7,812,454 - 7,812,454 -

{Continued)
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18. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following presents a summary of the Company's defined benefit plan investment assets measured at fair

value:

Fair Value Measurement at December 31, 2011

Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Ohservable Unobservable
Assels Inputs Inputs
Deseription Total {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Registered investment companies:

Fixed income funds $ 9034326 $ 9034326 § - $ -
Balanced funds 4,612,013 4,612,013 - ’ -
Growth funds 4,044,528 4,044,528 - -
Value funds 3,337,838 3,337,838 - -
Money market funds 3,257,966 3,257,966 - -
Real estate funds 1,317,116 1,317,116 - -
Total $ 25,603,787 $§ 25,603,787 § - $ -

Fair Value Measurement at December 31, 2010

Queoted Prices
in Active Signifieant
Markets for Other Significant
. Identieal Observable Unobservable
Assefs Inputs Inputs
Description Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Pooled separate accounts:
Fixed income funds $ 6093500 % - $ 6,093,590 § -
Batanced funds 3,162,668 - 3,162,668 -
Growth funds 1,486,468 - 1,486,468 -
Value funds 1,467,134 - 1,467,134 -
Real estate funds 637,265 - 637,265 -
Total pooted separate accounts 12,847,125 - 12,847,125 -
Registered investment companies:
Fixed income funds 3,346,850 3,346,850 - -
Guaranteed interest fund 5,256,339 - - 5,256,339
Total § 21450314 $ 3,346,850 § 12,847,125 § 5,256,339
(Continued)
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18. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for the Company's defined benefit plan
investment assets measured at fair value.

The fair value of pooled separate accounts equals the number of shares owned in the underlying separate
account multiplied by the closing net asset value per unit as quoted by the contract issuer. They are
generally categorized in Level Two of the fair value hierarchy.

Registered investment companies are valued at quoted market prices. They are generally categorized in
Level One of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of guaranteed accounts is calculated by discounting the related cash flows based on current
yields of similar instruments with comparable durations. They are generally categorized in Level Three of
the fair value hierarchy.

The following table presents additional information about Level Three assets measured at fair value. Both
observable and unobservable inputs may be nsed to determine the fair value of positions that the Plan has
classified within the Level Three category. As a result, the unrealized gains and losses from assets within
the Level Three category may include changes in fair value that were attributable to both observable and
unobservable inputs.

Fair Value Measurement Using Significant Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3) - Guaranteed Interest Fund

Description Fair Value
Level 3 balance, January 1, 2010 $ 3,205,944
Interest 148,184
Purchases, issuances and seftlements 2,000,000
Distributions and fees (97,789)
Level 3 balance, December 31, 2010 5,256,339
Interest 72,507
Purchases, issuances and settlements 1,000,000
Distributions and fees (6,328,846)
Level 3 balance, December 31, 2011 $ -
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19. Subsequent Events

On February 29, 2012, the Company purchased certain commercial health business from New West Health
Services located in Helena, Montana, including large employer, association and individual policies through
a bulk reinsurance transfer for up to $1.25 million.

20. Statutory Financial Information

PacificSource and PCHP, which are domiciled in Oregon, prepare their statutory basis financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles and practices prescribed or permitted by the State of Oregon,
Department of Consumer and Business Services, Insurance Division (Insurance Division). Oregon has
adopted the NAIC's statutory accounting practices (NAIC SAP) as the basis of its statutory accounting
practices.

In addition, the commissioner of the Insurance Division has the right to permit other practices that may
deviate from prescribed practices. Prescribed SAP are those practices that are incorporated directly or by
reference in state laws, regulations and general administrative rules applicable to all insurance enterprises
domiciled in Oregon. Permitted SAP encompasses all accounting practices that are not prescribed; such
practices differ from state to state, may differ from company to company within a state and may change in
the future. PacificSource and PCHP follow the NAIC's SAP and do not have permitted practices that
deviate from NAIC SAP. Therefore, PacificSource and PCHP's statutory capital and surplus are in
accordance with NAIC SAP requirements.
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Consolidated Schedules of General and Administrative Expenses

Year Ended December 31
2011 2010

Salaries $ 37965545 § 32,197,206
Payroll taxes 3,376,709 2,923,368
Employee benefits 7,822,784 7,034,901
Retirement plans 3,831,429 2,900,184
Confract labor 349 498 289,142
Administrative expense, net 1,224,165 937,971
Advertising 2,579,446 2,634,580
Automobile expense 289,958 246,745
Banking charges 191,054 132,083
Board expenses 390,589 358,177
Building rent 1,229,140 1,089,634
Computer and software 244,188 301,664
Consultant fees 7,688,502 8,246,194
Depreciation and amortization 10,237,547 8,213,476
Dues and subscriptions 643,483 424,757
Insurance 301,900 632,861
Imaging expense 363,270 340,979
Legal fees 220,909 338,847
Professional accounting, state audit and actuarial services 485,722 466,161
Office and data processing supplies 678,718 434,108
OMIP assessments - 6,839,689 6,411,252
Outside service fees : 1,008,742 023,638
Postage 2,256,027 1,811,316
Printing expense 1,055,836 828,822
Repairs and maintenance 1,193,247 1,087,885
Taxes and licenses 5,099,168 3,733,115
Telephone 685,282 692,073
Travel and education ‘ 910,808 750,736
Utilities 226,220 195,893
Other ‘ 214,448 586,091
Merger and acquisition fees” - 1,037,324

Total $ 100,104,083 § 88,201,183
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ASSYGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT
(“Agreement™)

Partics: Central Orcgon Independent Health Services, Inc, (“COTHS”),
an Grogon corporation

Central Oregon Individual Healt Solutlous, ne, (“COTH Soluﬂom”)
an Orogon corporation

State of Oregon, actlng by wnd throagh its .
Department of Human Services (“Department”),
Office of Medical Assistance Programs (“OMATP?)

Effective Date: V2004

RECITALS
A. COIHS desires to assign 1o COTH Solutions all if its right, title and interest In
P and to Pully Capitated Iealth Plan Coniract #107195 between COIHS and Department,
- dnted October 1, 2003, a3 amended ("OMAP Contract”), The OMAP Contract doss not
include any orher sontract to which COTHS and Departmont may be parties,

B. COHH Solutiony desiras to assume, perform and discharge all of COIHS’
dutics, obligations and tabllittes under tho OMAFP Confract,

C. Dcpartment desires to consont to COIHS’ assignment of its right, title and
interest in the OMAP Coniract and to COIH Solutions’ assumption of COILHS’ duties,
obligations and liahilitics under OMAP Contract,

AGREEMENT

For pood and valughle consideration, the recelpt and adequacy of which are
horehy nckuowledged, COTHS, COIH Solutions, and Departmient agree as follows:

1, Assignment sud Assumption of COYHS Dulies, Obligations and Liabilities
COILHS hercby assigns to COTH Solutions all of COIHS’ vight, title and interest in.

and to the OMAP Conlract, COTH Solutions hereby agrees lo assume, perform and

discharge all of CONIS' duties, obligations and linbilities under the OMAP Contract.

2, Nature and Quality of Seyvices Under the OMAP Contract

GENHESOG
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COTH Bolutlons reprosonis and warrants thet the assignment of COTHS riﬁhl, titlo
and {nlerest in the OMAP Contract, and COIH Solutions’ assumplion of COTHS’ duties,
cbligations and Habilities under tho OMAP Contiact, will not xesnlt i any materdal
change in the nature or the quality of services provided thersunder.

3. Indemnliy

COIH Soluiions shall be responsible for, snd shall indemmify and hold the State of
Oregon harmless for, any and all lichilitics, known or unkrown, in relation to the OMAP
Coniract {hat are ouistanding on or bofore the Effective Date, including any stop-loss
claims awaiting OMAR doolston, hysterectomy/sterifization Jssues or other recoupments
of ganctions {n process with OMAP staff. COIXI Solutions shall indemnify and hold the
State of Oregon harmless for any cost, loss or expense incutred by the State due, direotly
or indircetly, to COIHS’ gotions or omisstons regarding such claims and liabilities, both
known and unknown, COIHS shell indemnify and hold the State of Oregon harmless for
any reasonablo attomey fees incurred by the State duo to COIHS' actions or omissions
rolated ta such ¢laims and lisbilities,

4. Reporting Obligatlons

a COIHS

COLHS shali provide OMAP wiik 4]l information due to bo reported to OMAP by
COIHS, including but not limited to, encounter data, membership
envoliment/discnroliment date, and financial solvency reports, for all reporting
obligations arising before the Bffeotive Date, :

b. COIH Soclutions

COLI Sotutions shall provide OMAR with all information doe 1o bo reported to
OMAP by COLH Solutlons, Including but not limited to, encounter data, membership
enrollment/disanrollment data, and financlal solvency reports, for all reporiing
obligations arising on or afler the Biffective Date.

8, Net Worth and Restricted Reserve
#. Net Wortﬁ

COUI Solutiony representa that it has or will have 4 nel worth of at leest one
million six hundred thousand dolars (31,600,000) &s of the Bffestive Dato,

_ b, Restricted Rescrve
COIH Solutions xéprcsems that is has or will have at leaat two hundred fifty

' X thousand dollars ($250,000) in its Primary Restricted Reyerve account & of the Effective
S Dato. COLL Solutions also reprosents that it has or will have at feast one million two
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hundred sixty thousand six hundred twonty seven dollars ($1,260,627) in its Secondary
Restrioted Rosorvo account, for a total Restricted Reserve of at least ono million five
hundred ten thousand six hundred twenty seven dollars (81,510,627). COIH Solutions
further coprogents that it has provided OMAP with a copy of the depository agreerment
seiting up tho rostricted roserve socount and a level of funds statement from the {hird
party holding the funds.

6. Relationship Between COTHS and COIH Solutions

8. Stock Subscription, COIH Solutions is 8 wholly owned subsidiary of
COYHS. As of the Bffective Pate, all of the issue and outstanding atock of COIHS
Solutions is or will be owned by COTHS, COIHS and COLH Solutions ¢ach represent
that COIHS has subseribed for and on or before the Effective Date will have purchased
al{ of the issued and outstanding stock of COIH Solutions, paid in cush or cash
equivalenis assigned, iransferred of othorwise paid to COIH Solutions by COTHS,

b. Assumption of COIHS Liabilitles. As a condition to the purchase of COIH
Solutions stock by COIHS, and in contemplation of the execution of this Agreemont and
the assumption of the OMAP Contrast by COLH Solutions, COIH Solutions has sssumed
certain linbilitics of COIHS directly velated to tho OMAP Contract, in particular (i)
cusvent estimated “fucusred but not reported” (IBNR) clalms in such amount s recorded
on the books of COTHS as of December 31, 2003 and (i) current provider withhold
peyments as recorded on {he books of COIHS as of December 31, 2003 (the ‘
“Liabilities™). The Liabllities represont approximately seven million nine hundred thirty
soven thousand fwo hundred eoventy six dollars (87,937,276). In order to oflset the
Liahilities assumed by COTH Solafions, on or before the Effective Dato, COIHS shall
gxcoute a promissory note, payable upon demand by COIH Solutions and secured by an
unconditional pledge of ceriain fvesiments assets hold in the name of COIHS, the
smount of which promissory note shall equal the Liabllitics assumed by COIH Soluifons,
COLHS and COTH Solutions ogres that COTH Solutions shall not forgive any amount of
tho prinocipal due under the promissory note described herein or shall not smend or
torminato prior to COLIS! payment in full flis promissory noto described herein, witheut
first glving the Department ninely (90) days written notice thoreof.

7. Not Worth and Restricted Reserve Maintenance

Notwithstanding COIH Solutions’ essumption of obligations under this
Agrecmcent or any other provision in this Agreement, COIHS agrees, guaraniees and
watrants that if COTH Solutions fails to roaintain its net worth or to maintain dis restrieted
reserves, ot to wmaintain both, a8 required under Section S(U) of the OMAP Contract, then
COTHS shall, at its oloction, undertike one of the following:

a, Immediatcly teke one or more of the following actions to being COIH
Solutlons inte compliance with the OMAP Coniract: (i) pay directly to any third pariies

all financiat obfigationa necessary to malntain COTH Solutions® complisnce with the net
worth and resiricted rasarve obligations under the OMAP Contract; (ii) provide sufficient
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funds to COII Solutions to satisfy COTH Solutions’ net worth and restricted reserve
obligations under the OMAP Contract; or (iii) deposit sufficient funds dircctly into the
restricted reserve account requived under Section S(U) of the OMAP Contratt fo satisfy
COIH Solutlons® restricted reserve obligations thersunder; or

bh. As the sole shareholder of COIH Solutions, ¢ause COTH Solutions to torminate
the OMAP Confract within the terins thereof, pay to COTH Solutiens any amounts
remaining wnder the prowissory note jdent!fied in Section 6.b horcto, and take such
further actions as are necessary to dissolve COTH Solutions and wind up its affalrs,

8. Amigoment; Successors and Assipns

COIM Solutions shall not assign or transfer any of its interest in the OMAP
Centract without Dopartment's prior written consent, The provisions of this Agreement
shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of tho parties hetelo, and their
respective suocessors and penmitted assigns, if any.

9, No Third Party Beneliciaries
COIHS, COIH Solutions, and Department ace the only parties to this Agreement

and are tho only partlos entitied to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agceoment glves, is
intonidod to givo, or shall be conatrued to give or provide any benefit or right, whether
directly, indireotly or othorwiso, to third persons unless such third persons are
individually identificd by namo heeein and expressly deseribed s intended bensficiaries

of the terms of this Agreament.
10, Goveraing Law; Venue; Consent fo Jurisdiction

This Agreement shall be govented and consired in socordance with the laws of
the State of Qrogon without regard to principles of conflicts of law. Any olaim, action,
suil or procoeding (colleotivoly, “Claim') between Depariment and efther COIHS of
COTHS Solutiors, or both, that atiscs from ot telates to this Agreement shall be brought
wnd conducted sololy and exelusively in the Clreuit Court for Marion County, State of
Oregon; provided, howaver, that if & Claim must be brought in a federal foram, than it
shall bo brought and conducted solely and exolysively within the United States Distriet
Court for the Distriot of Oregon. In o ovent shall this provision be construed as a waiver
of tho State of Oregon’s sovereign frnmunity, ‘

- 11, Scopeof Assignment snd Assumption
COIHS, COIH Solutions and Depariment agree that all other obligations of
COIHS to Deparimént under contracts othor than the OMAP Contract rernain in full foree
and offeet and aro not slfccled ag a result of assignment by COJHS and assumption by

-COIH Solutions of CONIS’ dutiss, obligations and liabilitics under the OMAP Coniract.
Thig Agreement does not relieve COTHS of any outstanding obligations it may have
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under any sther conteact bolwoen COIHS and Depariment, inoluding any obligation to
comply with Dcpariment’s right to withhold and recoup ahy amount as provided under
those contracts and any obligation to comply with any sanctions issucd under those
oontracts,

12, Counterparis

This Agreoment may be exeouted in several counterparts, all of which when taken
together shall constitute one agreement hinding on all partics, notwithstandiag that a1l
partios are not signatories to the same counterpart, Bach copy of the Agreement so
exeouted shall constitute and otiginal,
13, Consgent

COIHS, COIH Solutions and Depattment cach consent to all of the provisions of

this Agreoment,

euHe Jeortis oHF
Central Oregon Independent /e 34 Central Oregon Individuat
Health Sexvices Health Solutions

Bwﬁ&ﬁw&mw— BY:.%&ZM
e Chua  Cpecakung Di¥fsiv titte: Chot | Onocabuy Clpeosr

Date, - L9293, 0% Date: |or-72.03

State of Oregon by and through its
Dopariment of Human Services,
Office of Modioal Assistanee Programs

- 7.
; Date: )%% 5
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RFA 3402

APPENDIX F - Global Budget Questionnaire

Global Budget Methodology

Section 1 - General Questions Regarding Global Budgeting

PSCS has demonstrated experience and capacity for operating within a fixed global budget.
PSCS and its affiliated entities, PacificSource Community Health Plans and PacificSource
Health Plans have extensive experience managing financial risk. The consolidated entities
manage premiums in excess of $1B and carry an AM Best rating of B++. PSCS has long-term
experience in receiving and managing to a global budget under the current MCO process.
Additionally, it has significant experience in establishing reserves and the organizational
capacity to manage within a fixed global budget.

PSCS can provide, on a full risk basis, all services currently provided by Medicaid physical
health and mental health. It is expected that PSCS will provide, on a full risk basis, all dental
services by 2014 if not before.

PSCS has engaged with non-emergent medical transportation providers and is expecting to have
necessary relationships, processes and systems in place to provide non-emergent medical
transportation benefit to PSCS members by January 1, 2013,

PSCS is currently in discussions with Advantage Dental. It is anticipated that dental will be
integrated as early as August 1, 2012, but in no event later than January, 2014,

PSCS can provide, under full risk contract, all programs and services currently provided as
Medicaid benefits and outlined in Attachment 8, Table F-1 for inclusion in global budgets as of
the requested Medicaid effective date. Those services listed as optional are still under
consideration.

The optional programs and services outlined in Table F-1 for inclusion in global budgets are
under consideration and decisions will be made as the CCO continues to evolve.

As noted in Appendix H and in Appendix A, PSCS CCO is still evolving and will continue to
evolve over the next 18 months. As such, PSCS is expecting that flexibility and room for
innovation will be needed in order to invest in care that will decrease costs and achieve better
outcomes. It is too premature to identify the specific details of flexibility and innovation during
the early evolution of the CCO.

PSCS docs not anticipate the need to subcontract a portion of the health care delivery system.

Please find PSCS’s completed Base Cost Template in the attached Attachment 8, Table F-2.

Page 1 of 1
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The member website includes Health Coach 4 Me which includes information on Diet and
Nutrition, Exercise and Activity, Medicine, Smoking Cessatlon, Stress Management,
Vaccination, Weight Management and chronic conditions such as Asthma, Breast Cancer,
COPD, Diabetes, Heart Disease, and Migraine. Members with chronic conditions are
encouraged by case managers to enroll in local Living Well with Chronic Conditions programs.
Living Well with Chronic Conditions (the Chronic Disease Self-Management Program or
CDSMP) is a six-week workshop that provides tools for living a healthy life with chronic health
conditions, including diabetes, arthritis, asthma and heart disease. Through weekly sessions, the
workshop provides support for continuing normal daily activities and dealing with the emotions
that chronic conditions may bring about. '

C.2.3.d. PSCS has experience in staffing, policies, procedures, and capacity to collect the
necessary electronic and other data that will be required for meeting regular performance -
benchmarks to evaluate the value of Health Services delivered by PSCS. PSCS underwent
review by the External Quality Review organization and were found to have Fully Met the ISCA
requirements. PSCS has policies and procedures in place which will encourage and provide
suidance for collection of necessary electronic data and other data. Experienced staff is able to
produce reports from the data warehouse. Other PSCS ‘Staff have experience in producing
HEDIS reports and validating the results as well as producing measures from medical record
collection. As noted above, PSCS has reporting systems that integrate member demographics,
disease burden and claims history. This data is overlaid with Clinical Intelligence Rules which
help to identify members meeting specific criteria. This reporting system will assist PSCS in
collecting data to meet performance benchmarks,

C.2.3.e. PSCS has implemented other strategies to improve patient care outcomes,
decrease duplication of services, and make processes more efficient as referenced above through
current reporting capabilities and coordination of care processes.

In addition, PSCS has a weekly Integrated Care Management meeting (ICM). The ICM meeting
is designed as a collaborative effort to address gaps in care and bring community partners and
resources together to bring the appropriate care and utilization of health services, A care plan is.
then initiated and the case manager, care coordinator, pharmacist and/or behavioral health
specialist works with the PCPs office, member and community partners such as the brokerage,
transportation office, disability offices, member’s state case worker, specialist’s office, home
health provider to develop a targeted, consistent approach. Once the member or member’s
representative is successfully engaged, the member is transitioned from the ICM workgroup to
ongoing assessment and coordination with their nurse case manager. Six months after discharge
from the ICM group, the member’s prospective risk score is re-assessed and brought back to the
ICM group if thresholds are again met. '

Examples of Success with ICM:
1. Member had a stroke and had to be revived,




At first contact, member was very depressed and was unaware of available
resources and having a very difficult time navigating the system.

Between the ENCC Transitional Care Coordinators and the Nurse Case Manager,
working with the member, the member has been connected with several resources,
Member complex issues were discussed in a weekly ICM meeting. Member was given
American Blind Association information where member can order free books, other
media choices and have access to other resources. PSCS worked with member and found
providers in closer proximity to member, Member has been connected with a mental
health (MH) provider. Member has been given information on how to obtain much
needed dentures (nutrition issue) with this dental plan. Member has been given several
other resources including transportation information.

2. When a member called Grievance and Appeals, staff referred the member to PSCS Care
Coordinators. Upon calling the member, the Care Coordinator learned that member had
been told the other pain clinic in town had a three month wait before next appointment.
Knowing it was a Monday and member only had 2 more days of pain meds on hand (and
the clinic the member had been dismissed from was not going to refill anymore), member
was very frustrated and "ready to give up on insurance and doctors all together”,

Member was bed ridden after a failed back surgery and needed assistance with all ADL's.
After Care Coordinator discussed with other staff, it was realized there was a pain clinic
in town that was currently going through the credentialing process, but was not yet
contracted. After calling and making arrangements, PSCS Care Coordinator was able to
approve visits fo the out-of-network provider to get the member the care needed. Member
had an appointment that Friday morning which was four days out. Staff called and
followed up that next Tuesday and member is able to move around and able to start
caring for self and doing all ADL's independently,

C23.f PSCS has policies and procedures to ensure a coﬁtinuity of care system for the
coordination of care and the arrangement, {racking and documentation of all referrals and prior
authorizations.

Care Coordination services may be requested by the member, the member’s representative,
physician, other medical personnel serving the member, or the member’s agency case manager.
Care coordination will be identified through wellness survey scoring as well as prospective risk
scores generated by our claims analysis software, Ingenix & Thomson Reuters. Interpreter
Services (including sign language) are covered for doctor visits for members who do not speak
English or have a hearing impairment. These services are available by phone or in person,

Transitional Care Coordinators make outbound phone calls to all members meeting threshoid
criteria and ask a series of questions designed to identify gaps in care, barriers to access,
educational need, and the need for referral to case management by an RN or BH specialist, Care
Coordinators and case managers complete assessment forms that are based on NCQA standards.
- If members are not able to be contacted after two outbound phone calls, a “Cannot Reach” letter
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